
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, October 22, 2018 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
 

Union Sanitary District 
Administration Building 

5072 Benson Road 
Union City, CA 94587 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 
 

1. Call to Order.   
 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
  

 

3. Roll Call. 
 

 

Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting of October 8, 2018. 
 

 

Information 5. September 2018 Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
and Legal/Community Affairs Committees). 
 

 

 6. Written Communications. 
 

 

7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 

 

 
 

 

Motion 8. Consider Resolutions for the Application for Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
Financial Assistance for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project (to be reviewed by the 
Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 9. Consider Resolutions for the Application for Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
Financial Assistance for the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project (to be 
reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 10. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 9 with 
Monterey Mechanical Company for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 
(to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

Motion 11. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 with 
Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (to be reviewed 
by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee). 
 

 

1 of 188



Motion 12. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 6 with West Yost Associates
for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project, Phase 3 (to be reviewed by the
Engineering and Information Technology Committee).

Motion 13. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 with
Woodard & Curran, Inc. for the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project (to be reviewed by
the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).

Motion 14. Consider Approval of Portfolio Management Services Contract (to be reviewed by the
Budget & Finance Committee).

Information 15. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance
Committee).

Information 16. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of September 20, 2018.

Information 17. Board Member Expenses, First Quarter FY19 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance
Committee).

Information 18. Check Register.

Information 19. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):
a. Budget & Finance Committee – Wednesday, October 17, 2018, at 9:45 a.m.

• Director Kite and Director Toy
b. Engineering and Information Technology Committee – Thursday, October 18, 2018, at 12:30 p.m.

• Director Handley and Director Lathi
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – Friday, October 19, 2018, at 10:30 a.m.

• Director Fernandez and Director Handley
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet.
e. Legislative Committee – will not meet.
f. Audit Committee – will not meet.

Information 20. General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board).

21. Other Business:
a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District

business and are welcome to request information from staff.
b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.

22. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Special Meeting in the Alvarado
Conference Room on Tuesday, October 23, 2018, at 6:00 p.m.

23. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to a Regular Meeting in the Boardroom
on Monday, November 12, 2018, at 7:00 p.m.

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.  THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

2 of 188



 

 

 

 
 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Kite and Director Toy 

 

AGENDA 

Wednesday, October 17, 2018 

9:45 a.m. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
 

1.    Call to Order 
 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of October 22, 2018: 

 September 2018 Monthly Operations Report – Financial Reports 

 Consider Approval of Portfolio Management Services Contract 

 Cal‐Card Quarterly Activity Report 

 Board Member Expenses, First Quarter FY19 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 
 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

3 of 188



 

 
 

 

 

 

ENGINEERING AND INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Handley and Director Lathi 

 

AGENDA 

Thursday, October 18, 2018 

12:30 P.M. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of October 22, 2018: 

 Consider  Resolutions  for  the  Application  for  Clean  Water  State  Revolving  Fund 
Financial Assistance for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project  

 Consider  Resolutions  for  the  Application  for  Clean  Water  State  Revolving  Fund 
Financial Assistance for the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project  

 Authorize  the  General  Manager  to  Execute  Contract  Change  Order  No.  9  with 
Monterey Mechanical Company for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
with Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project  

 Authorize  the  General  Manager  to  Execute  Task  Order  No.  6  with  West  Yost 
Associates for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project, Phase 3 

 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
with Woodard & Curran, Inc. for the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 

 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings.  The Public may provide 

oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary District at least one working 

day prior to the meeting).If  the subject relates to an agenda  item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the  item is considered.    If  the subject  is within the Board’s 

jurisdiction but not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 

of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

4 of 188



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

LEGAL/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS COMMITTEE MEETING  

Committee Members:  Director Fernandez and Director Handley 

 

AGENDA 

Friday, October 19, 2018 

10:30 a.m. 

 

Alvarado Conference Room 

5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 

Tom Handley 

Pat Kite 

Anjali Lathi 

Jennifer Toy 

 

 

Officers 

Paul R. Eldredge 

General Manager/ 

District Engineer 

 

Karen W. Murphy 

Attorney 

 
1.    Call to Order 

 

 

2.  Roll Call 
 

 

3.  Public Comment 
 

 

4.  Items to be reviewed for the Regular Board meeting of October 22, 2018: 

 September 2018 Monthly Operations Report – Odor and Work Group Reports 
 

 

5.  Adjournment 
 

 

Items reviewed at committee meetings will be included in the agenda packet for the upcoming Board meeting.  No action will be taken at committee meetings. 

 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 

District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 

 

If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 

the speaker will be heard at the time “Public Comment”  is calendared.   Oral comments are  limited to three minutes per  individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  

Speaker’s cards will be available and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477‐7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

5 of 188



 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

October 8, 2018 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
President Lathi called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
PRESENT: Anjali Lathi, President 
  Manny Fernandez, Vice President  

Jennifer Toy, Secretary  
Tom Handley, Director 
Pat Kite, Director  

 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Karen Murphy, District Counsel  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment and Disposal Services Manager 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager 

Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Manager 
Gene Boucher, Human Resources Manager 
Michelle Powell, Communications and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator 
Regina McEvoy, Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk 

 
VISITOR:   Mallika Ramanathan, Brown and Caldwell Managing Engineer 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 24, 2018 
 
It was moved by Secretary Toy, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Regular Meeting of September 24, 2018.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
APPROVE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF OCTOBER 1, 2018 
 
It was moved by Vice President Fernandez, seconded by Director Handley, to Approve 
the Minutes of the Special Meeting of October 1, 2018.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
AUGUST 2018 MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance and Legal and Community Affairs 
Committees.  General Manager Eldredge provided an overview of the Odor Report and 
financial reports included in the Board meeting packet.  General Manager Eldredge stated 

6 of 188



District staff interviewed Portfolio management providers, and will present an item for the 
Board to consider a contract at a future Board meeting. 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
APPROVE MANAGER, MAINTENANCE AND TECHNOLOGY SERVICES AND 
COACH, ELECTRICAL AND TECHNOLOGY JOB CLASSIFICATIONS AND SALARY 
RANGE 
 
This item was reviewed by the Personnel Committee.  Human Resources Manager 
Boucher stated the Information Technology Team was placed under the Maintenance 
and Technology Services Team following the departure of the District’s Business Services 
Workgroup Manager.  The Maintenance and Technology Services Manager and Electrical 
and Technology Coach took on eight additional team members as well as responsibility 
for supervision and management of team budget and projects. The revised job 
descriptions and salary ranges included in the Board meeting packet, which were 
reviewed at a Board Workshop, have been updated to reflect additional responsibilities.    
Staff recommended the Board consider approval of the Manager, Maintenance and 
Technology Services and Coach, Electrical & Technology job descriptions and salaries. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Kite, to Approve Manager, 
Maintenance and Technology Services and Coach, Electrical & Technology Job 
Descriptions and Salary Ranges.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO QUITCLAIM EXISTING SANITARY SEWER 
EASEMENTS AT 4438 ENTEPRISE STREET OR ALONG THE EAST SIDE OF I-880 
FROM BUTANO PARK DRIVE TO ENTERPRISE PLACE, IN THE CITY OF FREMONT 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated Public Storage Properties, LTD, requested two vacant sanitary 
sewer easements (SSE’s) located on their property at 4438 Enterprise Street be 
quitclaimed.  The two SSE’s are part of a series of SSE’s that run alongside Interstate 
880 from Butano Park Drive to Fremont Boulevard and a sanitary sewer access easement 
off Enterprise Street.  Staff prepared the following two resolutions for the Board to 
consider:  Resolution A would quitclaim existing easements at 4438 Enterprise Street and 
Resolution B would quitclaim easements at 4438 Enterprise Street and along the east 
side of I-880 from Butano Park Drive to Enterprise Place. Staff recommended the Board 
consider the two resolutions included in the Board meeting packet. 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Vice President Fernandez, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2836 to Quitclaim Four Existing Sanitary Sewer Easements and a Portion 
of One Existing Sanitary Sewer Easement Along the East Side of Interstate 880 from 

7 of 188



Butano Park Drive to Enterprise Place, in the City of Fremont, California.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE FORCE 
MAIN CORROSION REPAIRS PROJECT, PHASE 2 FROM CRATUS, INC. AND 
AUTHORIZE RECORDATION OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated Carollo Engineers recommended all 
corroded elements within the District’s 78 manholes be rehabilitated or replaced.  Cratus 
Inc. completed Phase 1 construction in October 2017 and substantially completed     
Phase 2 in August 2018.   Staff recommended the Board consider a resolution to accept 
construction of the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 2 from Cratus Inc. and 
authorize recordation of a Notice of Completion. 
 
It was moved by Vice President Fernandez, seconded by Secretary Toy, to Adopt 
Resolution No. 2837 to Accept Construction of the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project 
Phase 2, Located in the Cities of Fremont, Newark, and Union City, California from Cratus 
Inc. and Directed Staff to Record a Notice of Completion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT CONSTRUCTION OF THE NEWARK PUMP 
STATION WET WELL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT FROM D.W. NICHOLSON 
CORPORATION AND AUTHORIZE RECORDATION OF A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain stated the Newark Pump Station Wet Well 
Improvements Project was designed by Carollo Engineers and constructed by D.W. 
Nicholson Corporation (DWN).  The Project included improvements to the Newark Pump 
Station to prevent flooding in the event of a power outage.  District staff provided 
construction management and inspection services for the Project, and DWN substantially 
completed construction in June of 2018. Staff recommended the Board consider a 
resolution to accept construction of the Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements 
Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation and authorize recordation of a Notice of 
Completion. 
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Kite, to Adopt Resolution          
No. 2838 to Accept Construction of the Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements 
Project Located in the City of Newark, California from D.W. Nicholson Corporation and 
Directed Staff to Record a Notice of Completion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
CONSIDER A MOTION TO CANCEL THE NOVEMBER 26, 2018, AND          
DECEMBER 24, 2018, BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETINGS 
 
Executive Assistant to the General Manager/Board Clerk McEvoy stated the second 
regularly scheduled meeting in November falls on the Monday following the Thanksgiving 
holiday.  The second regularly scheduled meeting in December falls on Christmas Eve.  
Staff recommended the Board consider several options for both meetings and provide 
direction to staff. 
 

8 of 188



It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Secretary Toy, to Cancel the        
November 26, 2018 and December 24, 2018, Board Meetings and Schedule a Board 
Workshop for November 26, 2018.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
UPDATE ON FATS, OILS, AND GREASE PUBLIC OUTREACH CAMPAIGN 
 
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Communications 
and Intergovernmental Relations Coordinator Powell stated the District’s Fats, Oils, and 
Grease (FOG) public outreach campaign was launched in 2012.  The updated FOG 
campaign contains messages about actions customers can take to help control FOG in 
sewers, with the effect of protecting property and the environment.  Staff drafted materials 
depicting appropriate disposal of residential FOG using photos and illustrations and 
requested the Board review and provide feedback.  
 
The Board directed staff to incorporate the following edits:  change the headline to “AVOID 
PIPE CLOGS!”; match the header font and use red text for “COOL IT, CAN IT, TRASH 
IT”; use red arrows on both the photo and illustrated images; readjust the middle image 
so the photo/illustration is lower in the pane. 
 
The Board directed staff to run both versions of the 2018 FOG advertisement during the 
holiday season. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Capital Improvements Projects Update 
This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  
Technical Services Manager Ghossain provided a summary of changes to the Headworks 
Screen No. 3 and Primary Digester No. 7 Projects detailed in the Board meeting packet. 
 
Check Register 
Staff answered Board questions regarding the Check Register. 
 
COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Engineering and Information Technology, Legal/Community Affairs, and Personnel 
Committees met.  The Budget & Finance Committee meeting was canceled, and 
individual briefings were held with Committee members. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
General Manager Eldredge reported the following: 

• The Alameda County Water District Desalination Facility Open House will be held 
Saturday, October 13, 2018. 

• The Castro Valley Sanitary District Board adopted a Private Sewer Lateral 
Ordinance which will require private sewer lateral inspections in conjunction with 
the sale of a property effective July 1, 2019. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS: 
There was no other business. 

9 of 188



ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The Board held a moment of silence and adjourned the meeting in memory of Union 
Sanitary District employee Paul Johnson at 8:12 p.m. to a Regular Meeting in the 
Boardroom on Monday, October 22, 2018, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
REGINA McEVOY     JENNIFER TOY 
BOARD CLERK     SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 
 

Adopted this 22nd day of October 2018 

10 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5 – Regular Meeting of October 22, 2018 
 Information Item: Monthly Operations Report for September 2018  
 
Background 
 
Attached are Monthly Operations Reports for September 2018.  Staff is available to answer 
questions regarding information contained in the report. 
 
Work Group Managers 
 
General Manager/Administration   Paul Eldredge  GM   
Collection Services     James Schofield CS   
Technical Support     Sami Ghossain  TS   
Treatment and Disposal Services   Armando Lopez  T&D  
Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction  Robert Simonich FMC 
 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:   
During the month of September 2018, there were two odor complaints received by the 
Collection System.  Details regarding the odor complaints were included in the August 2018 
Odor Report.   
 
 
SAFETY: 

• No new injuries or incidents were reported. 
• The Safety Survey data is being analyzed by the ET and Safety Committee.  There were 

94.8% positive responses with 110 employees participating 
• We reviewed an accident at a Martinez Water treatment plant where a portable 

Sodium Hypochlorite tank exploded.  All our tanks have safety devices to prevent this 
type of explosion. 

 

11 of 188



STAFFING & PERSONNEL:   
 
Completed Recruitments Resulting in Promotions:  

• Coach, Collection Services – Jose Rodrigues promoted effective 9/3/18 
• Collection Services Planner/Scheduler – Matt Lubina promoted effective 9/28/18 
 

Other Completed Recruitments:  
• Assistant/Associate Engineer – Somporn Boonsalat accepted the Associate Engineer 

position and will start 10/29/18. 
 
Continuing Recruitments:  

• Collection Services Mechanic II (replacement for Jose Ledesma retirement) 
• Organizational Performance Coordinator I/II (consolidation of two prior positions) 

 
Other Accomplishments: 

• Contract negotiations on-going 
• Human Resources Staff attended training on the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
• Deferred Compensation Committee reconvened with new participants 
• Medical Open Enrollment runs 9/10/18 – 10/5/18 

 
 

G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of September, the General Manager was involved in the 
following: 

 
• Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Managers Advisory Committee 

meeting 
• Attended the East Bay Dischargers Authority Meeting 
• Attended the Audit Committee Kick-off meeting 

  
 

Attachments: Odor Report and Map 
 Hours Worked and Leave Time by Work Group 
 Business Services 
 Technical Services 
 Collection Services 
 Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction 
 Treatment and Disposal Services 

12 of 188



 
  
                        ODOR REPORT 
                        September 2018 

 

 During the recording period from September 01, 2018 through September 30, 2018, there were two  
 odor related service requests received by Collection Services. 
 City:  Fremont 
 
 1. Complaint Details:  
 Date:  9/24/2018 Time:   1:43 pm 
 Location:   GOLD CT Reported By: Karthikeyan Venkatraman 
 Wind (from): North West Wind Speed:  6 mph 
 Temperature:  87 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 We inspected the upstream and downstream manholes next to the residence. We found odor  
 coming from the owner's clean out. The resident's lateral is backed up and sewage is coming  
 from their clean out. We explained to the resident steps to take care of his problem. We also  
 gave the resident our USD Lateral pamphlet. 
 City:  Union City 
 
 2. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  9/6/2018 Time:   6:28 pm 
 Location:   SHIELD DR Reported By: Judy 
 Wind (from): North West Wind Speed:  9 mph 
 Temperature:  65 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 We inspected the main near the residence. USD crew was clearing a stoppage near the  
 residence. We informed the homeowner of the work being done and to fill all of her P-Traps. We  
 checked in with the homeowner later when work was completed to ensure odor smell had  
 lessened. Homeowner confirmed that the smell was nearly gone. The preventative maintenance 

schedule of the line that had the stoppage has been changed and Environmental Compliance has 
been notified of the grease situation. 

 

 

Treatment Plant (Union City) 
 

 During the recording period from September 01, 2018 through September 30, 2018, there were  
 four odor related service requests received by the Treatment Plant. 
 
 1. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  9/1/2018 Time:  12:25 am 
 Location:   MACKINAW ST Reported By: Sam Dua 
 Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  6 mph 
 Temperature:  59 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 

 Collections checked upstream and downstream manholes adjacent to the residence. We checked  
     storm drain inlets in front and around the house. We found no sign of any odors. Our Gastec  
     detected no odors. When we drove around the neighborhood, we found the smell of horses six  
     blocks away. We relayed our findings to the Plant. 
 
 
 

 

13 of 188



 
 2. Complaint Details: 
 

 Date:  9/13/2018 Time:   6:37 pm 
 Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By:  Sam Dua 
 Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  11.9 mph 
 Temperature:  62 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 Tide Information: 
 High Tide Reading:  6.2 FT/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.2 FT/Time 
 High Tide Time:  4:00 PM Low Tide Time:  11:39 PM  
 Response and Follow-up: 

 ⚫ USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  

 ⚫ Was any odor detected at the complaint location?  Yes 
  If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  Yes 
 ⚫ Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 
  If yes, what odors were found? A secondary smell was detected. An expansion joint failed  
 on Aeration Basin 4. FMC was dispatched to repair the scrubber duct. The repair was  
 made and the odor control system went back into normal operation. 
 ⚫ Additional Information: N/A 
 

 3. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  9/14/2018 Time:   7:56 pm 
 Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By:  Sam Dua 
 Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  11.6 mph 
 Temperature:  61 Degrees F Weather: Cool 
 Tide Information: 
 High Tide Reading:  6.0 FT/Time Low Tide Reading:  0.5 FT/Time 
 High Tide Time:  4:42 PM Low Tide Time:  11:42 PM  
 Response and Follow-up: 

 ⚫ USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  

 ⚫ Was any odor detected at the complaint location?  Yes 
  If yes, was odor attributed to USD? An odor was detected but not attributable to USD.   
 Cause of odor was unknown. 
 ⚫ Were any odors detected at the Plant?  No 
  If yes, what odors were found?  N/A 
 ⚫ Additional Information: Piian system in service. Placed peroxide pumps in boost. 
 

 4. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  9/15/2018 Time:  10:38 pm 
 Location:  MACKINAW ST Reported By:  Sam Dua 
 Wind (from): West Wind Speed:  6.3 mph 
 Temperature:  59 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 Tide Information: 
 High Tide Reading:  6.1 FT/Time Low Tide Reading:  2.5 FT/Time 
 High Tide Time:  5:01 PM Low Tide Time:  10:52 PM  
 Response and Follow-up: 

 ⚫ USD Staff dispatched to complaint location? Yes  

 ⚫ Was any odor detected at the complaint location?  Yes 
  If yes, was odor attributed to USD?  Yes 
 ⚫ Were any odors detected at the Plant?  Yes 
  If yes, what odors were found? Slight secondary smell detected. Placed both Piian systems in  
 service and in hand. 
 ⚫ Additional Information: N/A 

14 of 188



#

#

!

!̂#

#

#

!

###

#

#

#

#

#

#

!

#

#

!

##

^

#

!

!̂̂

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Fremont
Newark

Union City

Location of Odor Reports
October 2017 to September 2018 .0 1 2 3 4 50.5

Miles

Legend
Odor Complaints: September 2018

Odor Complaints: Oct. 2017 to Aug. 2018
No odor found (1)

Odor found, not related to USD (5)
Odor found, USD resolved (1)

No odor found (18)

#

!

^

#

! Odor found, not related to USD (2)
^ Odor found, USD resolved (3)

1. Odor found, not related to USD

2. Odor found, USD resolved

Treatment Plant
1. No odor found
2. Odor found, USD resolved
3. Odor found, note related to USD
4. Odor found, USD resolved

15 of 188



NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, 

     Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves as well as protected time off, of which the District has

     no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34. 9  hour s

per week over the course of a year; with 20 vacation days, 34. 2  hour s  per  week .

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 28, 2018 through September 14, 2018

Weeks to Date: 12 out of 52 (23.08%)

10.5 
7.0 6.0 6.7 8.5 

12.2 
8.4 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

Average Annual Sick Leave Used Per Employee to Date 

Target is 47

32.2 
34.8 34.5 35.6 34.8 35.8 35.2 

 -

 5.0

 10.0

 15.0

 20.0

 25.0

 30.0

 35.0

 40.0

GM BS FMC TD TS CS All Groups

At-Work Hours Per Employee Per Week

Target is 34

16 of 188



Regular                       

(1)

Overtime               

(2)

Discretionary 

(3)

Short Term 

Disability

Workers 

Comp 

Sick                     

(4)

Average 

Number of 

Employees

At-Work 

Hours Per 

Week Per 

Employee

Annual 

Sick Leave 

Used

GM 2 745.00               19.00              32.2 194.00            -              -             21.00             10.5 2 35.7 34.6

BS 16 6,580.50           12.25              34.8 987.75            -              -             111.75           7.0 21 34.2 33.5

FMC 28 11,251.75         189.42            34.5 2,000.75         -              18.50         169.00           6.0 23 34.2 48.4

TD 26 10,762.42         206.16            35.6 1,553.68         12.38         -             175.37           6.7 27 34.7 39.1

TS 32 13,189.58         28.58              34.8 1,897.42         -              -             273.00           8.5 32 34.9 47.3

CS 31 12,333.16         836.26            35.8 1,837.50         170.54       -             377.56           12.2 31 34.1 77.6

All Groups 135 55,077.91         1,291.67         35.2 8,471.10         182.92       18.50         1,135.18       8.4 136 35.1 44.5

SICK LEAVE INCENTIVE PROGRAM TARGETS ≥34 ≤47

The Sick Leave Incentive Program target goals are 47 or less hours of sick leave per employee annually, and 34 or more hours of at-work time per week per employee. 

NOTES

(1) Regular hours does not include hours worked by part-time or temporary employees.

(2) Overtime hours includes call outs. 

(3) Discretionary Leave includes Vacation, HEC, Holiday, MAL, FLEX, Funeral, Jury Duty, Military, OT Banked Use, Paid Admin., SLIP, VRIP, Holiday Banked Use leaves.

(4) Sick Leave includes sick and catastrophic sick leaves, as well as protected time off, of which the District has no discretion.

An employee using 15 vacation, 11 holiday, 2 HEC, and 5 sick days will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year;  

with 20 vacation days, 34.2 hours per week.

LEAVE HOURS FY17

HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP

June 28, 2018 through September 14, 2018

Weeks to Date: 12 out of 52 (23.08%)

Average Annual Sick 

Leave Used Per 

Employee To Date

AT-WORK HOURS At-Work Hours 

Per Employee 

Per Week

Group Average 

Number of 

Employees

17 of 188



 BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT

FY 2019       Year-to-date as of 9/30/18 25% of year elapsed
Unaudited

Revenues % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/18

  Capacity Fees 16,211,521$   7,447,036$                       46% 23,623,947$          
  Sewer Service Charges 57,016,142     724,765                            1% 51,598,629            
  Operating (Work Groups) 1,326,550       292,506                            22% 1,399,533              
  Interest 650,000          547,072                            84% 1,675,655              
  Misc. (LAVWMA, Admin Fines, Forfeited Deposits 250,000          859,093                            344% 118,848                 

 Subtotal Revenues 75,454,213$   9,870,471$                       13% 78,416,612$          

  SRF Loan Proceeds -                  -                                    455,642                 

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds 75,454,213$   9,870,471$                       13% 78,872,254$          

Expenses % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

  Capital Improvement Program:
       Capacity Proj. 3,150,000$     256,508$                          8% 2,075,899$            
       Renewal & Repl. Proj. 6,142,500       549,621                            9% 4,795,992              
  Operating 39,162,656     7,856,228                         20% 33,803,950            
  Special Projects 1,410,000       128,408                            9% 861,694                 
  Retiree Medical (ADC) 626,089          220,133                            35% 708,015                 
  Vehicle & Equipment 660,201          576,445                            87% 552,020                 
  Information Systems 712,300          281,179                            39% 321,769                 
  Plant & Pump Stat. R&R 500,000          101,482                            20% 219,622                 
  Emerg. Fund -                  -                                    0% -                         
  Pretreatment Fund 7,000              -                                    0% 2,076                     
  Cty Fee for SSC Admin. 107,000          -                                    0% 107,581                 
  Debt Servicing:
     SRF Loans 3,902,080       1,319,228                         34% 4,254,481              

Total Expenses 56,379,826$   11,289,230$                     20% 47,703,098$          

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses 19,074,387$   (1,418,759)$                     31,169,156            

Unaudited
Operating (Work Group) Expenses % of  Last Year

Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals
Board of Directors 179,111$        31,954$                            18% 128,924$               
General Manager/Admin. 1,043,506       165,843                            16% 703,663                 
Business Services 3,762,036       682,717                            18% 4,313,340              
Collection Services 6,888,191       1,446,942                         21% 6,292,903              
Technical Services 6,347,451       1,358,458                         21% 5,645,524              
Treatment & Disposal Services 12,025,839     2,357,701                         20% 10,299,467            
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 8,264,514       1,646,187                         20% 5,953,854              
Non-Departmental 652,008          166,427                            26% 466,275                 

Total 39,162,656$   7,856,228$                       20% 33,803,950$          

Operating (Work Group) Expenses by Type % of  Last Year
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals

Personnel (incl D&E) 26,614,085$   5,628,795$                       21% 23,623,183$          
Repairs & Maintenance 2,256,450       445,213                            20% 2,102,059              
Supplies & Matls (chemicals, small tools) 3,182,740       548,117                            17% 2,338,977              
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 6,764,691       1,225,475                         18% 5,591,884              
Fixed Assets 344,690          8,629                                3% 147,848                 

Total 39,162,656$   7,856,228$                       20% 33,803,950$          

18 of 188



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 9/30/18

16,211,521

57,016,142 

1,326,550 
650,000  250,000  ‐

7,447,036

724,765 

292,506  547,072  859,093  ‐
 $‐

 $10,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $30,000,000

 $40,000,000

 $50,000,000

 $60,000,000

  Capacity Fees   Sewer Service
Charges

  Operating (Work
Groups)

  Interest   Misc. (LAVWMA,
Admin Fines,

Forfeited Deposits)

  SRF Loan Proceeds

Total	Revenues
 Budget  Actual

3,150,000
6,142,500 

39,162,656 

1,410,000 
626,089  660,201  712,300  500,000 

‐
7,000  107,000 

3,902,080 

256,508

549,621

7,856,228

128,408
220,133 576,445 281,179 101,482

0 0 0

1,319,228

$0

$5,000,000

$10,000,000

$15,000,000

$20,000,000

$25,000,000

$30,000,000

$35,000,000

$40,000,000

$45,000,000

Total	Expenses

 Budget  Actual

19 of 188



REVENUES AND EXPENSES REPORT 
as of 9/30/18

179,111

1,043,506

3,762,036

6,888,191
6,347,451

12,025,839

8,264,514

652,008

31,954 165,843
682,717

1,446,942 1,358,458
2,357,701

1,646,187

166,427
 $‐

 $2,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $8,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $12,000,000

 $14,000,000

Operating	Expenses	by	Work	Group
 Budget  Actual

26,614,085

2,256,450
3,182,740

6,764,691

344,690

5,628,795

445,213  548,117 
1,225,475 

8,629 
 $‐

 $5,000,000

 $10,000,000

 $15,000,000

 $20,000,000

 $25,000,000

 $30,000,000

Personnel (incl D&E) Repairs & Maintenance Supplies & Matls
(chemicals, small tools)

Outside Services
(utilities, biosolids, legal)

Fixed Assets

Operating	Expenses	by	Type
 Budget  Actual

20 of 188



 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Performance Measures for the USD Investment Portfolio    
 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

0.00%

0.50%

1.00%

1.50%

2.00%

2.50%

3.00%

Average Monthly Yield

LAIF 2 Year Treasury USD Yield

Business Services Group  
September 2018 

21 of 188



 

 

22 of 188



Union Sanitary District
Portfolio Holdings
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Average By: Cost Value
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 9/30/2018

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Agencies

FFCB 1.17 5/16/2019-
17 3133EF7L5 Moodys-

Aaa 5/16/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.170 990,700.00 1.170 5/16/2019 0.89

FFCB 1.3 11/25/2019-
16 3133EGBK0 Moodys-

Aaa 5/25/2016 1,000,000.00 997,950.00 1.300 984,120.00 1.360 11/25/2019 0.89

FFCB 1.35 6/24/2019 3133EEZ60 Moodys-
Aaa 5/24/2017 1,000,000.00 1,003,480.00 1.350 992,760.00 1.180 6/24/2019 0.89

FFCB 1.37 12/27/2018-
17 3133EGZ24 None 12/27/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.370 997,310.00 1.370 12/27/2018 0.89

FFCB 1.59 3/23/2020-
17 3133EFR25 Moodys-

Aaa 3/23/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.590 982,740.00 1.590 3/23/2020 0.89

FFCB 1.7 5/3/2021-17 3133EF5T0 Moodys-
Aaa 5/3/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.700 969,150.00 1.700 5/3/2021 0.89

FHLB 1.24 1/23/2019-
18 3130AAN20 Moodys-

Aaa 2/2/2017 1,000,000.00 999,100.00 1.240 996,780.00 1.286 1/23/2019 0.89

FHLB 1.375 2/28/2019-
17 3130ABEH5 Moodys-

Aaa 5/30/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.375 996,110.00 1.375 2/28/2019 0.89

FHLB 1.93 12/21/2020-
17 3130AADQ8 None 12/21/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.930 975,430.00 1.930 12/21/2020 0.89

FHLB 2 10/26/2021-19 3130AB3D6 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 967,960.00 2.000 4/26/2019 10/26/2021 0.89

FHLB 2.05 12/29/2021-
17 3130AAET1 Moodys-

Aaa 12/29/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.050 968,930.00 2.050 12/29/2018 12/29/2021 0.89

FHLB 2.4 12/22/2021-
17 3130AAHC5 None 12/22/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.400 975,980.00 2.400 12/22/2021 0.89

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-
16 3130A7PR0 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 988,110.00 2.114 10/28/2018 4/28/2021 0.89

FHLB Step 4/28/2021-
16 3130A7QX6 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 980,470.00 2.021 4/28/2021 0.89

FHLMC 1.2 12/14/2018-
17 3134GAZU1 None 12/14/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.200 997,870.00 1.200 12/14/2018 0.89

3134G8XQ7 4/28/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.250 984,680.00 1.250 10/28/2019 0.89

Page 1 of 4

23 of 188



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

FHLMC 1.25 
10/28/2019-17

Moodys-
Aaa

FHLMC 1.4 6/14/2019-
17 3134GBRH7 Moodys-

Aaa 6/14/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.400 992,090.00 1.400 6/14/2019 0.89

FHLMC 1.41 4/26/2019-
18 3134GBEG3 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.410 993,890.00 1.410 4/26/2019 0.89

FHLMC 1.5 12/30/2019-
17 3134GAYY4 S&P-AA+ 12/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 984,730.00 1.500 12/30/2018 12/30/2019 0.89

FHLMC 1.5 9/9/2019-18 3134GA7A6 Moodys-
Aaa 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1.500 989,550.00 1.500 9/9/2019 0.89

FHLMC 2 12/30/2021-
17 3134GAYV0 None 12/30/2016 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.000 967,180.00 2.000 12/30/2018 12/30/2021 0.89

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-
16 3134G8VZ9 Moodys-

Aaa 4/28/2016 2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00 1.375 2,444,925.00 2.116 4/28/2021 2.22

FHLMC Step 4/28/2021-
16 3134G8Z28 Moodys-

Aaa 5/10/2016 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 1.125 980,820.00 2.044 10/28/2018 4/28/2021 0.89

FNMA 1.5 6/16/2021-16 3136G3QX6 Moodys-
Aaa 6/16/2016 1,000,000.00 995,000.00 1.500 958,980.00 1.604 12/16/2018 6/16/2021 0.88

Sub Total / Average 25,500,000.00 25,495,030.00 1.521 25,061,265.00 1.676 22.62

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 3,076,354.69 3,076,354.69 2.140 3,076,354.69 2.140 N/A N/A 2.73

Sub Total / Average 3,076,354.69 3,076,354.69 2.140 3,076,354.69 2.140 2.73

Cash in Banks

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK None 12/31/2016 9,245,543.76 9,245,543.76 1.770 9,245,543.76 1.770 N/A N/A 8.20

Sub Total / Average 9,245,543.76 9,245,543.76 1.770 9,245,543.76 1.770 8.20

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 1.35 
10/28/2019 02006LQ48 None 10/27/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.350 243,810.02 1.350 10/28/2019 0.22

American Expr 
Centurion 2.45 4/5/2022 02587DN38 None 4/5/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.450 242,055.04 2.450 4/5/2022 0.22

Belmont Savings Bank 
2.15 3/22/2022 080515BV0 None 3/20/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.150 240,627.60 2.150 3/22/2022 0.22

BMW Bank 2.15 
3/10/2022 05580AGR9 None 3/10/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.150 239,715.11 2.150 3/10/2022 0.22

Capital One Bank 1.5 
10/26/2020 140420L99 None 10/26/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.500 240,538.82 1.500 10/26/2020 0.22

Comenity Capital 1.25 
4/11/2019 20033ASR8 None 10/25/2016 248,000.00 248,000.00 1.250 246,214.23 1.250 4/11/2019 0.22

Page 2 of 4

24 of 188



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

Discover Bank 2.25 
12/29/2021

254672Y36 None 12/29/2016 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 240,874.75 2.250 12/29/2021 0.22

JP Morgan Chase Bank 
1.1 7/15/2019 48125Y5L4 None 7/15/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.100 245,736.68 1.100 7/15/2019 0.22

Lakeside Bank 1.75 
5/29/2020 51210SMU8 None 5/30/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.750 244,010.34 1.750 5/29/2020 0.22

Landmark Bank 2.1 
3/29/2021-17 51506VCA9 None 3/29/2017 248,000.00 248,000.00 2.100 242,479.69 2.100 12/27/2018 3/29/2021 0.22

Ponce De Leon Federal 
Bank 1.85 5/28/2021 732333AJ8 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.850 241,448.03 1.850 5/28/2021 0.22

State Bank of India 2.25 
1/26/2022 8562846A7 None 1/26/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.250 240,746.75 2.250 1/26/2022 0.22

Summit Community 
Bank 1.65 5/29/2020 86604XLT1 None 5/31/2017 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.650 243,600.01 1.650 5/29/2020 0.22

Synchrony Bank 2.3 
2/24/2022 87165ELT2 None 2/28/2017 247,000.00 247,000.00 2.300 241,003.68 2.300 2/24/2022 0.22

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 
7/22/2019 9497486R3 None 7/20/2016 249,000.00 249,000.00 1.150 245,753.76 1.150 7/22/2019 0.22

Sub Total / Average 3,720,000.00 3,720,000.00 1.816 3,638,614.51 1.816 3.30

Corporate Issues

American Express 
Credit 2.7 3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 Moodys-A2 5/15/2017 1,000,000.00 1,013,279.67 2.700 974,330.00 2.406 3/3/2022 0.90

Barclays Bank PLC 
Step 4/26/2022-17 06741VR95 Moodys-A1 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 2.500 985,260.00 3.093 10/26/2018 4/26/2022 0.89

Chevron Corp 2.1 
5/16/2021 166764BG4 Moodys-

Aa2 5/10/2017 1,000,000.00 999,500.00 2.100 975,430.00 2.113 5/16/2021 0.89

Chevron Corp 2.193 
11/15/2019 166764AN0 Moodys-

Aa2 2/26/2016 1,160,000.00 1,167,806.57 2.193 1,151,740.80 2.004 11/15/2019 1.04

GE Capital International 
2.04 11/15/2020 36164QMS4 S&P-AA 3/10/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,642.28 2.040 977,120.00 1.738 11/15/2020 0.90

HSBC 4.875 8/24/2020 4042Q1AE7 Moodys-A1 5/17/2016 2,000,000.00 2,191,145.28 4.875 2,051,300.00 2.500 8/24/2020 1.94

Sub Total / Average 7,160,000.00 7,382,373.80 3.067 7,115,180.80 2.332 6.55

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 57,463,910.98 57,463,910.98 2.063 57,463,910.98 2.063 N/A N/A 50.98

Sub Total / Average 57,463,910.98 57,463,910.98 2.063 57,463,910.98 2.063 50.98

Municipal

City of Riverside CA 
2.125 6/1/2021 769036BA1 S&P-AA- 6/1/2017 500,000.00 500,000.00 2.125 484,935.00 2.125 6/1/2021 0.44

Page 3 of 4

25 of 188



Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit 

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @ 

Cost
Next Call 

Date
Maturity 

Date
% of 

Portfolio

La Qunita Redev 
Agency 2.034 9/1/2019

50420BCH3 S&P-AA- 12/22/2016 1,330,000.00 1,336,650.00 2.034 1,321,461.40 1.843 9/1/2019 1.19

State of California 2.152 
4/1/2022 13063DAD0 Moodys-

Aa3 4/27/2017 1,000,000.00 1,010,000.00 2.152 975,670.00 1.938 4/1/2022 0.90

Victor Valley College 
General Obligation 
Bond 2.35

92603PER9 Moodys-
Aa2 12/28/2016 500,000.00 490,150.00 2.350 481,695.00 2.811 8/1/2021 0.43

Sub Total / Average 3,330,000.00 3,336,800.00 2.130 3,263,761.40 2.056 2.96

Treasury

T-Note 0.875 5/15/2019 912828R44 None 4/26/2017 1,000,000.00 993,080.00 0.875 990,120.00 1.217 5/15/2019 0.88

T-Note 1.283 3/31/2019 912828SN1 None 2/22/2017 1,000,000.00 1,004,480.00 1.283 995,390.00 1.067 3/31/2019 0.89

T-Note 1.5 2/28/2019 912828C24 None 1/9/2017 1,000,000.00 1,005,440.00 1.500 996,410.00 1.241 2/28/2019 0.89

Sub Total / Average 3,000,000.00 3,003,000.00 1.221 2,981,920.00 1.175 2.66

Total / Average 112,495,809.43 112,723,013.23 1.956 111,846,551.14 1.939 100

Page 4 of 4

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the District’s Investment Policy. The District will meet its expenditure obligations for the
next six months. Market value sources are the LAIF, CAMP, and BNY Mellon monthly statements. Broker/Dealers: BOSC, Inc.; Cantella & Co.; First Empire Securities; Ladenburg,
Thalman & Co, Inc.; UBS Financial Services; Wells Fargo Securities.

Reviewer:

Approver:

26 of 188



Union Sanitary District
Transactions Summary
Board Report - Activity
Group By: Action
Portfolio / Report Group: All Portfolios
Begin Date: 08/31/2018, End Date: 09/30/2018

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total

Deposit

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 5,405.78 5,405.78 0.00 N/A 0.000 9/28/2018 5,405.78

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 9,245,543.76 9,245,543.76 0.00 N/A 0.000 9/30/2018 9,245,543.76

Sub Total / Average 9,250,949.54 9,250,949.54 0.00 9,250,949.54

Interest

American Express Credit 2.7 3/3/2022 0258M0EG0 0.00 0.00 13,500.00 2.700 0.000 9/4/2018 13,500.00

Belmont Savings Bank 2.15 3/22/2022 080515BV0 0.00 0.00 2,687.91 2.150 0.000 9/20/2018 2,687.91

BMW Bank 2.15 3/10/2022 05580AGR9 0.00 0.00 2,677.07 2.150 0.000 9/10/2018 2,677.07

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 5,405.78 N/A 0.000 9/28/2018 5,405.78

Comenity Capital 1.25 4/11/2019 20033ASR8 0.00 0.00 263.29 1.250 0.000 9/11/2018 263.29

FFCB 1.59 3/23/2020-17 3133EFR25 0.00 0.00 7,950.00 1.590 0.000 9/24/2018 7,950.00

FHLMC 1.5 9/9/2019-18 3134GA7A6 0.00 0.00 7,500.00 1.500 0.000 9/10/2018 7,500.00

La Qunita Redev Agency 2.034 
9/1/2019 50420BCH3 0.00 0.00 13,526.10 2.034 0.000 9/4/2018 13,526.10

Wells Fargo Bank 1.15 7/22/2019 9497486R3 0.00 0.00 243.20 1.150 0.000 9/20/2018 243.20

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 53,753.35 53,753.35

Withdraw

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 0.00 N/A 0.000 9/12/2018 4,000,000.00

Union Bank Cash LGIPUNIONBANK 4,627,016.70 4,627,016.70 0.00 N/A 0.000 9/29/2018 4,627,016.70

Sub Total / Average 8,627,016.70 8,627,016.70 0.00 8,627,016.70

Page 1 of 1

27 of 188



             Union Sanitary District's Internal Retiree Medical Fund

             Quarterly Report

     For Period Ended 6/30/18

Fund Balance 3/31/18: $123,242.26

Revenues:

Expenses:

Quarterly Net Medical Reimbursments 5,495.87

Transfers Out:

6/15/18 CalPERS OPEB Trust Annual Required Contrib. (ARC) (150,502.25)

(payment #4 of 4)

Ending Fund Balance 6/30/18: ($21,764.12)

28 of 188



Union Sanitary District

Please note the Grand Total is your actual fund account balance at the end of the period, including all contributions per GASB 74 paragraph 22 and accrued disbursements.  Please review your statement promptly. All information contained in your statement
will be considered true and accurate unless you contact us within 30 days of receipt of this statement. If you have questions about the validity of this information, please contact CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov.

360,093.033 360,093.033

$5,786,838.94 $5,681,601.63

16.07040016.070400Period Ending Unit Value

15.14362415.920238Period Beginning Unit Value

(27,090.404)

37,825.405

349,358.032

(7,005.563)

9,322.883

357,775.713

Year to DateCurrent Period

Ending Units

Unit Sales for Withdrawals

Unit Purchases from Contributions

Beginning Units

Unit Value Summary:Market Value Summary:

$5,786,838.94$5,786,838.94Grand Total

(428,862.80)

(2,721.19)

0.00

327,856.84

602,009.00

$5,185,309.46

(111,436.42)

(710.71)

0.00

53,129.21

150,502.25

$5,695,874.25

Year to DateCurrent Period

Ending Balance

Disbursement

Administrative Expenses

Other

Investment Earnings

Contribution

Beginning Balance

QTD Fiscal QTD Fiscal

FY End Contrib per GASB 74 Para 22 0.00 0.00

Transfer In

Transfer Out

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Unit Transfer In

Unit Transfer Out

0.000

0.000

0.000

0.000

(1,989.68)(519.64)Investment Expense

CERBT Strategy 2
Entity #:  SKB7-6011550262
Quarter Ended June 30, 2018

FY End Disbursement Accrual 0.00 105,237.31

1

29 of 188



Statement of Transaction Detail for the Quarter Ending 06/30/2018

Union Sanitary District

Entity #:  SKB7-6011550262

Date Description Amount Unit Value Units NotesCheck/Wire

05/02/2018 Distribution ($111,436.42) $15.906847 (7,005.563)

06/15/2018 Contribution $150,502.25 $16.143317 9,322.883 WIRE
2018061500118
189

If you have any questions or comments regarding the new statement format please contact CERBT4U@CalPERS.ca.gov

Client Contact:

CERBT4U@CalPERS.ca.gov

1

30 of 188



MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR THE MONTH OF SEPTEMBER 2018 
TECHNICAL SUPPORT WORK GROUP SUMMARY 

 
 
Capital Improvement Program 

 
Fremont and Paseo Padre Lift Stations Improvements Project – Project closeout and punch list work. 
 
Chemical Tanks and Piping Replacement Project – Project was accepted at the September 24th Board meeting. 
 
Sludge Degritter System Project –Replacement of degritter components to improve grit removal efficiency and 
re-test are scheduled for the first week of October. 
 
Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements – Project closeout and punch list work. 

 
Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project – Coatings work within Primary Digester No. 3 is in progress.  The 
digester cover has been coated and the walls remain to be coated.  Mixing pipe replacement design at Primary 
Digester No. 3 was completed and a request for quote has been issued to the contractor. 
 
Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project Phase 2 – Project closeout and punch list work completed. 
 
Cast Iron/Piping Lining Project Phase 7 – Submittal review period.  CIPP installation is scheduled to start in 
October. 

 
 
  

31 of 188



Customer Service 
 

Trouble Calls dispatched from the Front Desk during business hours: 
Month Fremont Newark Union City Total

September-18 8 0 1 9
August-18 8 3 1 12

July-18 7 2 4 13
June-18 4 0 1 5
May-18 6 2 1 9
April-18 5 3 2 10

September-17 9 2 2 13

6-Month Total 58

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Fremont

Newark

Union City

Total

 
 

Sewer Permits Issued 
 

Month Repairs Mains New Laterals Restaurants Other
September-18 18 1 51 0 2

August-18 28 7 2 1 0
July-18 22 1 91 0 4

New Laterals - New residential lateral connections
Other - Non-residential construction (except restaurants)

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

July-18 August-18 September-18

Repairs

Mains

New Laterals

Restaurants

Other

 
 
 
  

32 of 188



Communication 
 

• Completed Fall 2018 newsletter project 
• Social Media posts:  Plant Tour invitation, Newark Days announcement 
• USD website updates:  FY 2019 Utility comparison graphic, NACWA award announcement 
• Press release: NACWA Award 
• USD Centennial Stories Article in Tri-City Voice: USD goes back to school with Tri-City Students 
• Continued activities regarding District Branding initiative 
• Participated in Chamber of Commerce Board activities as Director and Past-President 
• Participated as member of CASA Communications Committee  

 
 
Environmental Compliance 
 

Pollution Prevention/Stormwater Programs 
 

USD’s Environmental Compliance (EC) team conducts pollution prevention inspections at restaurants, car wash 
businesses, and other commercial facilities.  EC also conducts inspections and enforcement for the City of 
Fremont’s Environmental Services group.  Over 600 Stormwater compliance inspections are conducted every year 
to ensure that commercial facilities, including restaurants and auto shops, comply with City Ordinance 
requirements, and do not discharge pollutants to the creeks and bay.  
 
During the past month, the EC team conducted 95 Stormwater (Urban Runoff), and 27 FOG (restaurant) 
inspections.  During this reporting period, Inspectors identified 28 Stormwater and 6 FOG enforcement actions.  
Fifteen (15) of the Stormwater enforcements resulted in administrative fines ranging from $100 to $500.  One (1) 
of the administrative fines were for illicit discharges and 14 were for repeated violations. 
 
Urban Runoff Inspections and Enforcements 

September 
2018 

No. of UR 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  

No. of Illicit 
Discharge/s 1 

95 4 0 9 15 0 28  % enforcement 29.5% 
 

FOG Inspections and Enforcements 

September 
2018 

No. of FOG 
Inspections VW WL NOV AF LA 

Total 
Enforcements  % Enforcement 22% 

27 0 5 1 0 0 6    
 

Enforcements: 
VW –Verbal Warning   WL – Warning Letter   NOV – Notices of Violation 
AF – Administrative Fine  LA – Legal Action   NOD – Notice of Deficiency 
AO – Administrative Order  C&D – Cease & Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance 

   
  

33 of 188



  Dental Inspections, School Outreach, and Plant Tours 
# of Dental Inspections # of School Outreach Events including 

Sewer Science 
# of Plant Tours 

10 3 None 
 
 
Industrial Pretreatment  
 
The Industrial Pretreatment program has pending permits as shown in the table below.  USD inspectors are working 
with each of these companies to establish permitted industrial discharges. 
 
    Pending Permits 

New Industrial/Groundwater Permits Groundwater/Temporary 
Raxium - Industrial  

N7K Neuralink - Industrial  
Perfect 85 Degrees C Inc. - Industrial  

Silicon Valley RO-DI Services LLC - Industrial  
 

Permits Issued  
Company Name Date Permit Issued 

Fairfield Development L.P. GW-0100  09/04/18 
Exxon Mobil Oil Corp. GW-099 09/10/18 

PG&E GW-0102 09/13/18 
 
    Industrial Permit Closures  

Company Name Date of Closure 
None  

 
Reports (Annual & Semi-Annual Pretreatment Report, Union City Report, etc.) 

Report Name Date Report Completed and Submitted 
None  

 
Enforcement Action 

IU Name & Nature of 
Business 

Comments City  Parameter 
Violated 

Discharge 
concentration 

(mg/L) 

USD/Fed Limit 
Violated(mg/L) 

Enforce- 
ment 

(1) 

None       

(1) WL   – Warning Letter NOV – Notices of Violation AO – Administrative Order 
 C&D – Cease and Desist Order  SNC – Significant Non-Compliance EM – Enforcement Meeting 

 
Other - Training, Special Meetings, Conferences, IAC (topics) 

Activity Date of Event Attendees 
Tri-State Seminar 09/25/18 - 09/27/18 Aaron Robles, Victor Padilla 

Industrial Advisory Committee 
Meeting-Slug Control Plan 

09/27/18 EC Inspectors and Industry Contacts 

 
 
  

34 of 188



Engineering/Construction 
 
No. of projects under construction: 7 

 Construction Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for  
September 2018 Activities 

1.  Fremont and Paseo Padre 
LS Improvement – Derek 

$2,801 10/16 100% 100% Project closeout and punch list 
work. 

2.  Chemical Tanks and Piping 
Replacement Project – 
Thomas 

$2,102 10/17 100% 100% Project was accepted by the 
Board on September 24th. 

3.  Sludge Degritter System 
Project – Kevin 

$1,436 11/17 95% 100% Fabrication of degritter 
components is in progress. 

4.  Newark Pump Station Wet 
Well Improvements – 
Thomas 

$674 03/18 99% 100% Project closeout and punch list 
item work. 

5.  Primary Digester No. 3 
Rehabilitation – Derek 

$1,956 08/18 76% 100% Digester 3 cover coated.  Design 
of mixing piping replacement at 
Digester 3 completed. 

6.  Force Main Corrosion 
Repairs Phase 2 – Andrew 

$932 09/18 100% 100% Punchlist work completed.  
Project closeout in progress. 

7.  Cast Iron/Piping Lining 
Phase VII – Andrew 

$291 11/18 10% 54% Submittal review period.  CIPP 
installation is scheduled to start  
in October. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

35 of 188



Design/Study 
 

No. of projects in design/study phase: 14 
 Design/Study Projects Capital 

($1000) 
Scheduled 

Completion 
Completed 

Scope 
Completed 

Time 
Comments for 

September 2018 
Activities 

1.  Plant Solids System/Capacity 
Assessment Phase 2 – Curtis 

$329 02/18 100% 100% Project has been 
completed. 

2.  Local Limits Study – Raymond $77 09/18 75% 90% Assist with industrial 
discharge permits. 

3.  Cathodic Protection System 
Project – Thomas 

$79 08/18 95% 100% 100% design in progress. 

4.  Newark Basin Masterplan – 
Andrew 

$303 08/19 84% 45% Draft of the Condition 
Assessment chapter 
received, sent to staff for 
review and comment. 

5.  Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project – 
Raymond/Kevin 

$1,976 12/18 15% 15% Staff completed review of 
the technical 
memorandum for the 
future electrical load 
analysis. 

6.  Force Main Condition 
Assessment – Andrew 

$121 10/20 60% 47% Next round of inspection 
will be scheduled with 
the next phase of Force 
Main Corrosion Repairs.  

7.  Emergency Outfall 
Improvements Project – 
Andrew  

$317 10/18 63% 90% Responses to Initial study 
and draft mitigated 
negative declaration 
comments completed 
and will send out in early 
October.  90% Design 
submittal anticipated in 
October. 

8.  Primary Digester No. 7 Project 
– Curtis 

$1,476 09/18 85% 100% Consultant will 
incorporate design 
modifications from value 
engineering effort and 
design a 2.4-million-
gallon tank. 

9.  Plant Master Plan – 
Raymond/Curtis 

$304 03/18 85% 100% Evaluation of building 
alternatives in progress. 
Preliminary findings 
discussed at September 
24th meeting. 

10.  Effluent Management Study – 
Curtis 

$155 03/18 92% 100% Study to incorporate 
results from Secondary 
Treatment Process 
Improvements. 

11.  Odor Control Alternatives 
Study – Kevin 

$330 01/19 65% 65% Pending results from odor 
pilot testing 

36 of 188



 Design/Study Projects Capital 
($1000) 

Scheduled 
Completion 

Completed 
Scope 

Completed 
Time 

Comments for 
September 2018 

Activities 
12.  Plant Condition Assessment 

Study – Kevin 
$118 06/18 95% 100% Final Study report in 

progress. 
13.  Headworks Screen No. 3 

Project – Thomas 
$159 11/18 70% 70% 90% design in progress. 

14.  Alvarado Influent Pump 
Station Improvements Project 
– Thomas 

$479 04/19 10% 15% 50% design in progress. 

 

37 of 188



COLLECTION SERVICES  
ACTIVITIES REPORT 

September 2018 
    

Progress/Accomplishments   
 

• Zero Spills in September 
• Completed 19.1 miles of sewer main cleaning in September. 
• Completed 13.7 miles of sewer main inspection in September. 
• Responded to 12 service request calls in September. 
• Completed a total of 13 sewer main repairs in September. 
• Jose Rodrigues promoted to Coach 
• Matt Lubina promoted to CS Planner/Scheduler 

 
Reported Bay Area Spills Sept. 1, 2017 Thru Sept. 30, 2018 

 
 
 38 of 188



Sept. 1, 2017 to Sept. 30, 2018 Spills Per 100 Miles of Pipe 
Union Sanitary District, State & Regional Average 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 39 of 188



 

Performance Measures 
 

 
 
 

40 of 188



 
Other Collection Services Status Data: 

 

 

Support Team Work Order Status: 
 

  
 
     

C/S Maintenance Status: 
 

 

    

41 of 188



l

l

l

l Mixing Pump 5 mechanical seal replacement
l

l Overhaul of Mixing Pump 6B

Future Planning
l Installed new flow meter for Secondary Clarifier 4
l Replaced mechanical seal on IPS Sewage Pump 2
l Installed new surge buster check valve on Reclaim Pump 4
l Secondary Clarifier 5 & 6 RAS Seal Replacement

Performance Measurements

Fabrication, Maintenance and Construction
Activities Report
September 2018

Progress/Accomplishments
Completed 98.23% of preventive maintenance activities for the month of September
Completed 130 corrective maintenance work orders for the month of September
Secondary Clarifier 4 flow meter installation

GBT 2 spray bar motor replacement

0

5

10

15

20

Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18 Jun-18 Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Priority A Repairs Required

Total Target

142 of 188



0

25

50

75

100

125

150
N

o.
  o

f  
W

O
s

Number of Work Orders Initiated & Completed Within Month

Initiated Completed

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

N
o.

 o
f W

O
s

Number of Work Orders over 90 Days

# WO's Target

243 of 188



l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Treatment & Disposal

Activities Report

September 2018

Progress/Accomplishments

Completed 100% preventive maintenance activities for the month of September.

Maintained 100% compliance with NPDES permits.

Attended the Hazen and Sawyer Secondary Process Improvements Comprehensive Workshop.

Drafted an RFP for purchase of a laboratory Information Management System (LIMS).

Future Planning

Begin Wet Weather Operational Refresher Training.

Cogen system produced 68% of power consumed for the month of September.

Other

Review air pollution potential-to-emit data provided by B&C for submittal to BAAQMD and part 

of the Digester No. 7 application for construction.

Continued parallel testing of the PCB and new Hach WIMS system.

Create a cogeneration system natural gas usage tracking procedure to document usage under 

Tariff G-EG and a downtime logging procedure to recover standby reserve charges. 

Negotiate contract terms with Commercial Energy for purchase of natural gas under Tariff G-EG.

Issue RFP for Laboratory Information Management System (LIMS) and select a vendor.

Attend the Hazen and Sawyer Secondary Process Improvements Exploration Phase Workshop.

Continue to support the Force Main Calcium Nitrate Odor Control Pilot Test.

Competency testing of two Plant Operator III Trainees.

Supported the Force Main Calcium Nitrate Odor Control Pilot Test.

Evaluated bids for third party natural gas and continue to negotiate migration to natural gas 

PG&E tariff G-EG.

Attended the Hazen and Sawyer Comprehend workshop.

Completed competency testing for a Plant Operator III trainee.

Provided support and laboratory analysis for a pilot study of force main alternatives as part of 

the treatment plant odor study (calcium nitrate trials).

Staff attended TNI implementation Seminar No. 4 presented by the CWEA.

The Annual Union City report was submitted to the City of Union City.

Supported ODMS system testing.

Began providing Plant Operational Overview Training to new CIP and FMC staff.

Provided historical potential-to-emit data to B&C in support of the BAAQMD air permit request 

for Digester No. 7.

44 of 188



Performance Measurements

18

20

22

24

26

28

30

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

M
G

D

m
g/

l

Lab Results and Effluent Flow

EFF SS CBOD EFF SS Limit CBOD Limit Flow MGD

73% 76% 74%
62%

72% 72% 69%

39%

77% 76% 77% 78%
68%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

kW
h

 /
1

0
0

0
0

P
er

ce
n

t 
P

ro
d

u
ce

d
Cogen Power Produced

Percent Produced kWh /10000

Parameter EBDA Limit Jul-18 Aug-18 Sep-18

Copper, µg/l 78 4.3 4.5 4.5

Mercury, µg/l 0.066 0.00190 0.00230 0.0024

Cyanide, µg/l 42 E 2.0 E 1.9 E 1.3

Ammonia- N, mg/L (Range) 130 36.5 - 38.4 35.3 - 43.0 39.8 - 46.4

Fecal Coliform, MPN/100ml (Range)

• 5-Day Geometric Mean 500 13 - 38 28 - 33 16 - 48

• 11-Sample 90th Percentile 1100 55 - 66 55 - 59 59 - 91

Enterococci

• Monthly Geometric Mean 240 10 10 10

USD's Final Effluent Monthly Monitoring Results

E = Estimated value, concentration outside calibration range.  For SIP, E = DNQ, estimated 

concentration.

45 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Curtis Bosick, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 

Consider Resolutions for the Application for Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
Financial Assistance for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board consider all the following resolutions: 

(1) Resolution to authorize the application for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund financial 
assistance for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project and designate the Manager of Technical 
Services or his designee as the District’s representative to execute the financial assistance 
application for a financing agreement, 

(2) Resolution to dedicate and pledge the Wastewater Enterprise Fund and Net Revenues 
thereof for the repayment of any and all Clean Water State Revolving Fund financial 
assistance on the Primary Digester No. 7 Project, and 

(3) Resolution to reimburse expenditures paid prior to the approval of the Primary Digester 
No. 7 Project Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) financial assistance by the State 
Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 

 
Background 
 
Staff is preparing an application package to the SWRCB for financial assistance of up to $25 million 
for the design and construction of the Primary Digester No. 7 project.  The SWRCB requires Union 

46 of 188



Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Sanitary District’s (District) governing body to adopt an “Authorizing Resolution/Ordinance” to 
authorize and direct a representative to sign and file the financial assistance application and 
execute the documents on behalf of the District.  The attached “Authorizing 
Resolution/Ordinance” meets this requirement and recommends that the Manager of Technical 
Services, or his designee, be designated to execute the financial assistance application 
documents.  This designation is consistent with previous designations for past CIP projects when 
CWSRF financial assistance was pursued. 
 
The SWRCB also requires the District’s governing body to adopt a “Pledged Revenues and Fund(s) 
Resolution” to dedicate and pledge the Wastewater Enterprise Fund and Net Revenues thereof 
for the repayment of CWSRF financial assistance.  The District has established the SRF 
Contingency Reserve fund for repayment of CWSRF financial assistance.  The fund shall remain 
in effect throughout the term of such financing unless modification or change of such dedication 
is approved in writing by the SWRCB.  The attached “Pledged Revenues and Fund(s) Resolution” 
meets this requirement. 
 
Furthermore, the SWRCB requires the District’s governing body to adopt a “Reimbursement 
Resolution” that would allow the District to incur expenditures on the Primary Digester No. 7 
Project before the approval of the CWSRF financial assistance application.  Staff is requesting 
authorization to file the financial assistance application for up to $25 million.  The final amount 
of financial assistance the District requests from the SWRCB will be contingent upon the 
construction contract amount awarded by the Board.  The attached “Reimbursement Resolution” 
meets this requirement and states the District’s intention to get reimbursed by the SWRCB for 
expenditures incurred on the project before the approval of the CWSRF financial assistance 
application. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/CB;dl 

 
Attachments: Authorizing Resolution/Ordinance 
 Pledged Revenues and Fund(s) Resolution 
 Reimbursement Resolution 

47 of 188



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District (the “Entity”), in Alameda 
County, California, as follows: 
 
The Manager of Technical Services (the “Authorized Representative”) or designee is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of the Entity, a Financial Assistance 
Application for a financing agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board for the 
planning, design, and construction of the Primary Digester No. 7 Project (the “Project”). 

 
The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to provide assurances, 
certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, including 
executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board and 
any amendments or changes thereto. 

 
The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to represent the Entity in 
carrying out the Entity’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including certifying 
disbursement requests on behalf of the Entity and compliance with applicable state and federal 
laws. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District, in Alameda 
County, California, held on the 22nd day of October 2018. 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

        _______________________ 
        ANJALI LATHI 
        President, Board of Directors 
Attest:         Union Sanitary District 
     
_________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District  

48 of 188



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

PLEDGED REVENUES AND FUND(s) RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS the Union Sanitary District (the “Entity”) has established the SRF Contingency Reserve 
fund for the repayment of the Clean Water State Revolving Fund financial assistance per the 
Entity’s policy; and 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Entity approved the Capital Improvement Program that 
identified the Primary Digester No. 7 Project. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Entity hereby dedicates and pledges the Wastewater Enterprise 
Fund and Net Revenues thereof for the repayment of any and all Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund and/or Water Recycling Funding Program financing for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project 
(the “Project”).  The Entity commits to collecting such revenues and maintaining such fund(s) 
throughout the term of such financing and until the Entity has satisfied its repayment obligation 
thereunder unless modification or change is approved in writing by the State Water Resources 
Control Board. So long as the financing agreement(s) are outstanding, the Entity’s pledge 
hereunder shall constitute a lien in favor of the State Water Resources Control Board on the 
foregoing fund(s) and revenue(s) without any further action necessary.  So long as the financing 
agreement(s) are outstanding, the Entity commits to maintaining the fund(s) and revenue(s) at 
levels sufficient to meet its obligations under the financing agreement(s). 

CERTIFICATION 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District, in Alameda 
County, California, held on the 22nd day of October 2018. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

        _______________________ 
        ANJALI LATHI 
        President, Board of Directors 
        Union Sanitary District 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District  

49 of 188



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Union Sanitary District (the "Agency") desires to finance the costs of constructing 
the Primary Digester No. 7 Project (the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency intends to finance the construction and/or reconstruction of the Project 
or portions of the Project with moneys ("Project Funds") provided by the State of California, 
acting by and through the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board); and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Water Board may fund the Project Funds with proceeds from the sale of 
obligations the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes (the "Obligations"), and 

 
WHEREAS, prior to either the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State Water 
Board of the Project Funds the Agency desires to incur certain capital expenditures (the 
"Expenditures") with respect to the Project from available moneys of the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that those moneys to be advanced on and after the date 
hereof to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period and it is necessary to 
reimburse the Agency for the Expenditures from the proceeds of the Obligations. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE AGENCY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Agency hereby states its intention and reasonably expects to reimburse 
Expenditures paid prior to the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State Water 
Board of the Project Funds. 

 
SECTION 2. The reasonably expected maximum principal amount of the Project Funds is 
$25,000,000.00. 

 
SECTION 3. This resolution is being adopted no later than 60 days after the date on which the 
Agency will expend moneys for the construction portion of the Project costs to be reimbursed 
with Project Funds. 

 
SECTION 4. Each Agency expenditure will be of a type properly chargeable to a capital account 
under general federal income tax principles. 

 
SECTION 5. To the best of our knowledge, this Agency is not aware of the previous adoption 
of official intents by the Agency that have been made as a matter of course for the purpose of 
reimbursing expenditures and for which tax-exempt obligations have not been issued. 

 

50 of 188



SECTION 6. This resolution is adopted as official intent of the Agency in order to comply with 
Treasury Regulation §1.150-2 and any other regulations of the Internal Revenue Service relating 
to the qualification for reimbursement of Project costs. 

 
SECTION 7. All the recitals in this Resolution are true and correct and this Agency so finds, 
determines and represents. 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District, in Alameda 
County, California, held on the 22nd day of October 2018. 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
        _______________________ 
        ANJALI LATHI 
        President, Board of Directors 
        Union Sanitary District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 
 
 

51 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Kevin Chun, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 

Consider Resolutions for the Application for Clean Water State Revolving Fund 
Financial Assistance for the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade 
Project 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board consider all the following resolutions: 

(1) Resolution to authorize the application for the Clean Water State Revolving Fund financial 
assistance for the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project and designate the 
Manager of Technical Services or his designee as the District’s representative to execute 
the financial assistance application for a financing agreement, 

(2) Resolution to dedicate and pledge the Wastewater Enterprise Fund and Net Revenues 
thereof for the repayment of any and all Clean Water State Revolving Fund financial 
assistance on the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project, and 

(3) Resolution to reimburse expenditures paid prior to the approval of the Standby Power 
Generation System Upgrade Project Clean Water State Revolving Fund (CWSRF) financial 
assistance by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 

  

52 of 188



Agenda Item No. 9 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
Background 
 
Staff is preparing an application package to the SWRCB for financial assistance of up to $28 million 
for the design and construction of the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project.  The 
SWRCB requires Union Sanitary District’s (District) governing body to adopt an “Authorizing 
Resolution/Ordinance” to authorize and direct a representative to sign and file the financial 
assistance application and execute the documents on behalf of the District.  The attached 
“Authorizing Resolution/Ordinance” meets this requirement and recommends that the Manager 
of Technical Services, or his designee, be designated to execute the financial assistance 
application documents.  This designation is consistent with previous designations for past CIP 
projects when CWSRF financial assistance was pursued. 
 
The SWRCB also requires the District’s governing body to adopt a “Pledged Revenues and Fund(s) 
Resolution” to dedicate and pledge the Wastewater Enterprise Fund and Net Revenues thereof 
for the repayment of CWSRF financial assistance.  The District has established the SRF 
Contingency Reserve fund for repayment of CWSRF financial assistance.  The fund shall remain 
in effect throughout the term of such financing unless modification or change of such dedication 
is approved in writing by the SWRCB.  The attached “Pledged Revenues and Fund(s) Resolution” 
meets this requirement. 
 
Furthermore, the SWRCB requires the District’s governing body to adopt a “Reimbursement 
Resolution” that would allow the District to incur expenditures on the Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project before the approval of the CWSRF financial assistance application.  Staff 
is requesting authorization to file the financial assistance application for up to $28 million.  The 
final amount of financial assistance the District requests from the SWRCB will be contingent upon 
the construction contract amount awarded by the Board.  The attached “Reimbursement 
Resolution” meets this requirement and states the District’s intention to get reimbursed by the 
SWRCB for expenditures incurred on the project before the approval of the CWSRF financial 
assistance application. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/KC;dl 

 
Attachments: Authorizing Resolution/Ordinance 
 Pledged Revenues and Fund(s) Resolution 
 Reimbursement Resolution 

53 of 188



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

AUTHORIZING RESOLUTION/ORDINANCE 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District (the “Entity”), in Alameda 
County, California, as follows: 
 
The Manager of Technical Services (the “Authorized Representative”) or designee is hereby 
authorized and directed to sign and file, for and on behalf of the Entity, a Financial Assistance 
Application for a financing agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board for the 
planning, design, and construction of the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project 
(the “Project”). 

 
The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to provide assurances, 
certifications, and commitments required for the financial assistance application, including 
executing a financial assistance agreement from the State Water Resources Control Board and 
any amendments or changes thereto. 

 
The Authorized Representative, or his/her designee, is designated to represent the Entity in 
carrying out the Entity’s responsibilities under the financing agreement, including certifying 
disbursement requests on behalf of the Entity and compliance with applicable state and federal 
laws. 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District, in Alameda 
County, California, held on the 22nd day of October 2018. 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

        _______________________ 
        ANJALI LATHI 
        President, Board of Directors 
Attest:         Union Sanitary District 
     
_________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District  

54 of 188



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

PLEDGED REVENUES AND FUND(s) RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS the Union Sanitary District (the “Entity”) has established the SRF Contingency Reserve 
fund for the repayment of the Clean Water State Revolving Fund financial assistance per the 
Entity’s policy; and 
 
WHEREAS the Board of Directors of the Entity approved the Capital Improvement Program that 
identified the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Entity hereby dedicates and pledges the Wastewater Enterprise 
Fund and Net Revenues thereof for the repayment of any and all Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund and/or Water Recycling Funding Program financing for the Standby Power Generation 
System Upgrade Project (the “Project”).  The Entity commits to collecting such revenues and 
maintaining such fund(s) throughout the term of such financing and until the Entity has satisfied 
its repayment obligation thereunder unless modification or change is approved in writing by the 
State Water Resources Control Board.  So long as the financing agreement(s) are outstanding, 
the Entity’s pledge hereunder shall constitute a lien in favor of the State Water Resources Control 
Board on the foregoing fund(s) and revenue(s) without any further action necessary.  So long as 
the financing agreement(s) are outstanding, the Entity commits to maintaining the fund(s) and 
revenue(s) at levels sufficient to meet its obligations under the financing agreement(s). 

CERTIFICATION 

I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District, in Alameda 
County, California, held on the 22nd day of October 2018. 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

        _______________________ 
        ANJALI LATHI 
        President, Board of Directors 
        Union Sanitary District 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District  

55 of 188



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

REIMBURSEMENT RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, the Union Sanitary District (the "Agency") desires to finance the costs of constructing 
the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project (the "Project"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency intends to finance the construction and/or reconstruction of the Project 
or portions of the Project with moneys ("Project Funds") provided by the State of California, 
acting by and through the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board); and 

 
WHEREAS, the State Water Board may fund the Project Funds with proceeds from the sale of 
obligations the interest upon which is excluded from gross income for federal income tax 
purposes (the "Obligations"), and 

 
WHEREAS, prior to either the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State Water 
Board of the Project Funds the Agency desires to incur certain capital expenditures (the 
"Expenditures") with respect to the Project from available moneys of the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency has determined that those moneys to be advanced on and after the date 
hereof to pay the Expenditures are available only for a temporary period and it is necessary to 
reimburse the Agency for the Expenditures from the proceeds of the Obligations. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE AGENCY DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, ORDER AND DETERMINE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1. The Agency hereby states its intention and reasonably expects to reimburse 
Expenditures paid prior to the issuance of the Obligations or the approval by the State Water 
Board of the Project Funds. 

 
SECTION 2. The reasonably expected maximum principal amount of the Project Funds is 
$28,000,000.00. 

 
SECTION 3. This resolution is being adopted no later than 60 days after the date on which the 
Agency will expend moneys for the construction portion of the Project costs to be reimbursed 
with Project Funds. 

 
SECTION 4. Each Agency expenditure will be of a type properly chargeable to a capital account 
under general federal income tax principles. 

 
SECTION 5. To the best of our knowledge, this Agency is not aware of the previous adoption 
of official intents by the Agency that have been made as a matter of course for the purpose of 
reimbursing expenditures and for which tax-exempt obligations have not been issued. 

 

56 of 188



SECTION 6. This resolution is adopted as official intent of the Agency in order to comply with 
Treasury Regulation §1.150-2 and any other regulations of the Internal Revenue Service relating 
to the qualification for reimbursement of Project costs. 

 
SECTION 7. All the recitals in this Resolution are true and correct and this Agency so finds, 
determines and represents. 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a resolution duly and 
regularly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Union Sanitary District, in Alameda 
County, California, held on the 22nd day of October 2018. 
 

AYES:  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 
 
ABSENT: 

 
        _______________________ 
        ANJALI LATHI 
        President, Board of Directors 
        Union Sanitary District 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________ 
JENNIFER TOY 
Secretary, Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 
 
 

57 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 
 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 9 with 

Monterey Mechanical Company for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation 
Project 

  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Contract Change Order 
No. 9 with Monterey Mechanical Company (MMC) in the amount of $457,371 for the Primary 
Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (Project). 
 
Background 
 
The District has six primary and two secondary digesters at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment 
Plant that require periodic cleaning to remove accumulated debris and to maintain treatment 
capacity.  Primary Digester No. 3 was originally constructed in 1962 and was last taken out of 
service for cleaning and assessment in 2010.  The purpose of this project was to remove Primary 
Digester No. 3 again from service for the purposes of cleaning it, assessing its condition, and 
rehabilitating it before placing the digester back in service. 
 
Staff removed the digester from service and had it cleaned and inspected in spring of 2017.  On 
November 13, 2017, the Board awarded the construction contract in the amount of $1,956,000 
to MMC to repair and rehabilitate the digester.  Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to MMC on 
December 1, 2017.  The Project was scheduled to be completed on August 1, 2018.  The Project 

58 of 188



Agenda Item No. 10 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
included an inspection of the interior of the two sludge mixing pipelines that were originally 
constructed under the digester’s concrete slab.  Upon removal of the struvite build-up inside the 
two pipelines and subsequent CCTV inspection, staff discovered several holes in the steel 
pipelines and active groundwater infiltration.  The pipelines would need to be repaired or 
replaced before the digester is placed back in service. 
 
To minimize repair costs, staff explored cured-in-place pipeline (CIPP) and sprayed-on epoxy 
lining methods for in-situ repairs of the sludge mixing pipelines.  However, the specialty 
contractors for both repair methods required the stoppage of groundwater infiltration to ensure 
the CIPP and epoxy lining to install and cure properly.  The stoppage of groundwater filtration 
would require an extensive groundwater dewatering system that would consist of several deep 
wells and pumps around the digester.  The groundwater dewatering system would have been 
expensive with no guarantee of its effectiveness. 
 
Staff decided to pursue replacement of the pipelines and evaluated two options.  One option 
involves demolition of a portion of the digester’s slab to expose and remove the existing pipelines 
underneath the digester.  The demolition of the digester’s slab would also require the 
groundwater dewatering system as described previously to prevent infiltration into the digester.  
Staff found this option infeasible.  The second option includes installation of two new 
replacement pipelines inside the digester, supported on the digester’s slab and walls to above-
grade connections to the existing sludge mixing pump and piping system.  Staff decided on the 
second option since it is most feasible of the repair and replacement options. 
 
On July 16, 2018, staff executed Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 with Carollo in the amount 
of $33,221 to design and prepare the technical plans and technical specifications for the 
replacement sludge mixing pipelines.  Carollo completed the design in September 2018 and staff 
issued a request for quotation to MMC. 
 
Scope of Work 
 
The major elements to replace the sludge mixing pipelines include: 
 

• Demolition and abandonment of the existing 8- and 14-inch diameter sludge mixing 
pipelines under the digester’s concrete slab.  

• Chipping out and pouring back the concrete wall to the digester for the new mixing 
pipeline penetrations. 

• Installing two new 18-inch diameter mixing pipelines inside the digester along with 
associated pipe supports. 

• Modifying the digester’s interior center column and installing new concrete column 
anchorage support. 

59 of 188



Agenda Item No. 10 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

• Reconfiguring piping, valves, and fittings and adding new 14-inch diameter stainless steel 
knife gate valves on the mixing pipelines between Heating and Mixing Building No. 2 and 
the digester. 

• Rerouting the 6-inch diameter digester sludge recirculation line around the mixing piping 
between Heating and Mixing Building No. 2 and the digester. 

 
Contract Change Order No. 9 
 
Staff received MMC’s quote in the amount of $457,371 and a time extension request to extend 
substantial completion of the project from August 1, 2018 to March 28, 2019.  Staff reviewed 
MMC’s quote and found it to be reasonable.  The Engineer’s estimate from Carollo was $432,000. 
 
To date, the District and MMC have executed eight contract change orders in the total amount 
of ($7,700).  Table 1 includes a list of these contract change orders. 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Contract Change Order 
No. 9 with Monterey Mechanical Company in the amount of $457,371 for the Primary Digester 
No. 3 Rehabilitation Project. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC;dl 
 
Attachment: Contract Change Order No. 9 
 Table 1 – Contract Change Order Summary 

60 of 188



 
CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER No. 09   

Union Sanitary District 
Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

Project No. 800-493 
 
 
Item: Sludge Mixing Pipelines Replacement  
 
Contractor is hereby directed to make the herein described changes from the plans and specifications or do 
the following work not included in the plans and specifications of this contract.  All new work herein described 
shall be done in accordance with the applicable provisions of the plans and specifications, except as 
specifically modified by this Contract Change Order. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:   
 
In accordance with Request for Quote (RFQ) No. 8, replace the existing sub-tank sludge 
mixing pipelines with in-tank pipelines. To accomplish this work, the Contractor shall 
complete the work items indicated in RFQ No. 8, including but not limited to the following: 
 

• Demo/abandon the existing 8- and 14-inch diameter sludge mixing pipelines.  
• Chip out and pour back the concrete wall to Primary Digester No. 3 (Digester 3) for 

the new mixing piping penetrations. 
• Install new 18-inch diameter sludge mixing pipelines within Digester 3 and 

associated pipe supports. 
• Modify the center column pipe and install new concrete column anchorage support 

within Digester 3. 
• Reconfigure piping, valves, and fittings and install new 14-inch diameter SST knife 

gate valves on the 14-inch diameter sludge mixing pipelines between Heating and 
Mixing Building No. 2 (HMB No. 2) and Digester 3. 

• Reroute the 6-inch diameter recirculation pipeline around the sludge mixing piping 
between HMB No. 2 and Digester 3. 

 
This change order is also issued to provide both compensable and non-compensable time 
extensions to the Project Substantial Completion date due to delays and impacts to the 
Work through October 22, 2018.  A 239 calendar day (CD) time extension is granted for 
the Project Substantial Completion, as defined in Specification Section 00800-1.1: 
 

Original Project Substantial Completion Date: August 1, 2018 
Revised Project Substantial Completion Date: March 28, 2019 

 
REFERENCES:  RFQ No. 008 and RFQ No. 008 Drawings T01, D01, SM01, 

SM02, and SM03 
 
COST OF CHANGE: $457,371.00 
  
CONTRACT TIME ADJUSTMENT:  239 Calendar days.   
  
We, the undersigned Contractor, have given careful consideration to all aspects of the change proposed and 
hereby agree.  This Contract Change Order constitutes full and complete compensation for all labor, 
equipment, materials, overhead, profit, any and all indirect costs and time adjustment, including and delay 

61 of 188



Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project – 800-493 
Change Order No. 09 
 

     

and rescheduling, required to perform the above described change and will accept this Contract Change 
Order as full and final payment. 
 
This document supplements the Contract Documents and all provisions of the Contract Documents will apply 
thereto.  It is understood that the Contract Change Order shall be effective when fully executed by the 
District. 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACCEPTED:      RECOMMENDED FOR ACCEPTANCE: 
 
Monterey Mechanical Company    Union Sanitary District  
Project Manager:     Project Manager: 
 
By:          By:         
 Dillon Goodfellow      Derek Chiu 
 
Date:          Date:       
 
AUTHORIZED STAFF APPROVAL: 
 
The Contractor shall not commence with the above-described work of this change order prior to the approval 
by the District’s Authorized Staff. 
 
Union Sanitary District 
Authorized Staff: 
 
 
By:          Date:___________________ 
 Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.      

62 of 188



 
Table 1 

Contract Change Order Summary 
 

No. Title Amount 
1 Piping Material and Lining Change on Digester Sludge Piping    ($3,161) 
2 Digester Appurtenances    $8,542 
3 Interim Milestone No. 2 Time Extension           $0 
4 Scum Pit Bypass Piping Modifications       $630 
5 Additional Ductile Iron Fittings at Heating and Mixing Building 

No. 2 
   $2,151 

6 Delete the Replacement of the Primary Digester No. 3 South 
Overflow Box Piping 

 ($19,906) 

7 Relocate Seal Water Panel within Heating and Mixing Building 
No. 2 

   $1,653 

8 Pump Room No. 3 – Pump Base Modification Material Change    $2,391 
 Total    ($7,700) 

 

63 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 
 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order 

No. 2 with Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation 
Project 

  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $32,398 to provide additional design 
services during construction of the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (Project). 
 
Background 
 
The District has six primary and two secondary digesters at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment 
Plant that require periodic cleaning to remove accumulated debris and to maintain treatment 
capacity.  Primary Digester No. 3 was originally constructed in 1962 and was last taken out of 
service for cleaning and assessment in 2010.  The purpose of this project was to remove Primary 
Digester No. 3 again from service for the purposes of cleaning it, assessing its condition, and 
rehabilitating it before placing the digester back in service. 
 
On January 23, 2017, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute an Agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $158,813 to provide design services for 
the Project.  Carollo Engineers completed the design in August 2017, and on November 13, 2017, 

64 of 188



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
the Board awarded the construction contract in the amount of $1,956,000 to Monterey 
Mechanical Company (MMC). 
 
The Project included an inspection of the interior of the two sludge mixing pipelines that were 
originally constructed under the digester’s concrete slab.  Upon removal of the struvite build-up 
inside the two pipelines and subsequent CCTV inspection, staff discovered several holes in the 
steel pipelines and active groundwater infiltration.  The pipelines would need to be repaired or 
replaced before the digester is placed back in service. 
 
To minimize repair costs, staff explored cured-in-place pipeline (CIPP) and sprayed-on epoxy 
lining methods for in-situ repairs of the sludge mixing pipelines.  However, the specialty 
contractors for both repair methods required the stoppage of groundwater infiltration to ensure 
the CIPP and epoxy lining to install and cure properly.  The stoppage of groundwater filtration 
would require an extensive groundwater dewatering system that would consist of several deep 
wells and pumps around the digester.  The groundwater dewatering system would have been 
expensive with no guarantee of its effectiveness. 
 
Staff decided to pursue replacement of the pipelines and evaluated two options.  One option 
involves demolition of a portion of the digester’s slab to expose and remove the existing pipelines 
underneath the digester.  The demolition of the digester’s slab would also require the 
groundwater dewatering system as described previously to prevent infiltration into the digester.  
Staff found this option infeasible.  The second option includes installation of two new 
replacement pipelines inside the digester, supported on the digester’s slab and walls to above-
grade connections to the existing sludge mixing pump and piping system.  Staff decided on the 
second option since it is most feasible of the repair and replacement options. 
 
On July 16, 2018, staff executed Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 with Carollo in the amount 
of $33,221 to design and prepare the technical plans and technical specifications for the sludge 
mixing pipelines replacement.  Carollo completed the design in September 2018 and staff issued 
a request for quotation to MMC. 
 
Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 
 
The purpose of Amendment No. 2 is for additional engineering services during construction, 
mainly due to the upcoming sludge mixing pipelines replacement work.  The additional scope of 
services and fees of Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 are summarized below: 
 

Task Task Description Amount 
1 Submittal Review $12,341 
2 Request for information $11,247 
3 Clarification Memoranda           $0 

65 of 188



Agenda Item No. 11 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

Task Task Description Amount 
4 Informal Requests for Information    $6,151 
5 Meetings            $0 
6 Periodic Site Visits    $1,692 
7 Additional Design Tasks            $0 
8 Re-bidding Assistance            $0 
9 Project Management       $967 

Task Order Not to Exceed Amount $32,398 
 
The scope of services in Amendment No. 2 includes additional project management, submittal 
review, requests for information, and site visits associated with the sludge mixing pipelines 
replacement and tasks that exceeded the original assumptions during construction.  Of the 
amendment total of $32,398, $19,890 is attributed to the pipelines replacement and $12,508 is 
attributed to the tasks that exceeded the original assumptions. 
 
The total amounts for the Project’s agreement with Carollo are summarized in the table below: 
 

Description Amount 
Task Order No. 1 – Design  $158,813 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1 – Thickener Control 
Building Additional Design Work    $22,707 

Task Order No. 2 – Engineering Services During Construction    $94,517 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 – Design Services for 
the Digester Mixing Line Replacement    $33,221 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 – Additional Design 
During Construction    $32,398 

Total for this Agreement $341,656 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 2 to 
Task Order No. 2 with Carollo Engineers in the amount of $32,398 to provide additional design 
services during construction of the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/DC;dl 
 
Attachment: Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

66 of 188



PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 3 REHABILITATION PROJECT 

PROJECT NO. 800-493 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 

TO 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 

TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

 UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

AND 

CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC. 

FOR 

ENGINEERING SERVICES DURING CONSTRUCTION 

 

Dated January 26, 2017 

 

1.   PURPOSE 

 
The purpose of this Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 (Amendment) is to modify the original 
scope of services and to increase the Not-to-Exceed fee for Professional Services necessary to 
complete the additional work that was not included in Task Order No. 2. All other terms of the 
original Agreement and Task Order remain unchanged. Additional work to be completed under this 
Amendment, as further described in the Engineer's Scope of Services, consists of additional 
submittal review, RFI responses, informal requests for information, and project management for the 
Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project, Project Number 800-493 (Project). 

 

2.   SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 
The task numbers in this Scope of Services are associated with the cost data presented in Exhibit A. 
The Engineer shall provide the following engineering support services during the construction of the 
project: 

67 of 188



Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

Page 2 

 
TASK 1.0 – SUBMITTAL REVIEW 

 

The original Engineer’s budget allowance was based on the Engineer reviewing forty (40) submittals 
at an average review time of three (3) hours per submittal.  

As of June 29, 2018, the Engineer had reviewed seventy-six (76) submittals when the total ESDC task 
order contract limit was exceeded. Three (3) submittals were reviewed since the budget 
exceedance. Unused budget from other tasks, such as clarification memoranda and meetings, was 
used for the additional submittals through the end of June. This task order assumes no additional 
clarification memoranda or meetings than what has already been provided as of June 29, 2018 will 
be required. 

 

Budget for the three (3) submittals reviewed since June is included in this task order. In addition, 
three (3) additional submittals for the remaining work are anticipated to be reviewed by the 
Engineer to complete the project. This count assumes no testing reports or O&M manuals will be 
routed to the Engineer for review. 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 did not add any budget for the review of submittals 
associated with the replacement of the mixing lines for Primary Digester No. 3. Fifteen (15) 
submittals are anticipated to be reviewed by the Engineer for the piping replacement. This count 
assumes the current project Contractor, Monterrey Mechanical, performs the piping replacement 
work. If another Contractor performs the work, then additional submittals to cover items already 
approved for Monterrey Mechanical, such as ductile iron piping product data, will be required.  

 

This amendment increases the Engineer’s budget allowance by twenty-one (21) additional 
submittals at an average review time of three (3) hours per submittal.   

 

TASK 2.0 – REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

 

The original Engineer’s budget allowance was based on reviewing eighteen (18) RFIs at an average 
review time of four (4) hours per RFI.  

As of June 29, 2018, when the total ESDC task order contract limit was exceeded, the Engineer had 
reviewed nineteen (19) RFIs. Two (2) additional RFIs were reviewed since the end of June. Six (6) 

68 of 188



Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

Page 3 

 
additional RFIs (which includes the two already reviewed in July) are anticipated to be reviewed by 
the Engineer.  

 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 did not add any budget for the review of RFIs associated with 
the replacement of the mixing lines for Primary Digester No. 3. Eight (8) RFIs are anticipated to be 
reviewed by the Engineer for the piping replacement. 

 

This amendment increases the Engineer’s budget allowance by fourteen (14) additional RFIs at an 
average review time of four (4) hours per RFI.   

 

TASK 4.0 – INFORMAL REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 
 

The original Engineer’s budget allowance was based on twenty-four (24) hours of informal 
correspondence.  

The Engineer’s budget allowance was exceeded by April 30, 2018. Unused budget from other tasks, 
such as clarification memoranda and meetings, was used for the additional informal communication 
through the end of June. An additional twelve (12) hours of informal correspondence, at a budget 
rate of 6 hours per month for July and August, is anticipated to complete the project. 

 

Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 did not add any budget for the review of informal 
correspondence associated with the replacement of the mixing lines for Primary Digester No. 3. It is 
anticipated that eighteen (18) hours will be required for informal correspondence associated with 
the piping replacement. 

 

This amendment increases the Engineer’s budget allowance by thirty (30) additional hours.  

 
TASK 6.0 – PERIODIC SITE VISITS 
 

The original Engineer’s budget allowance did not include a site visit for the Electrical Engineer, 
Beecher Engineering, to inspect and verify the electrical work completed in this project. This 
amendment increases the Engineer’s budget allowance by eight (8) hours for this additional site 
visit.  

69 of 188



Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

Page 4 

 
TASK 9.0 – PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

 
The original Engineer's budget allowance was based on eight (8) hours of project management. 
Additional hours for project management are required for the mixing line replacement design and 
the additional submittals and RFIs. This amendment increases the Engineer's budget allowance by 
four (4) additional hours.  

 

3.   DELIVERABLES 

 

All deliverables shall be provided electronically in Word document or PDF format. 

 

Deliverables shall include: 

•Responses to submittals and RFIs as required  

•Upload information to the District’s online project management system, Projectmates 

 

4.   PROJECT COORDINATION 

 

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the District’s Project Manager, Derek 
Chiu. 

 

5.   PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 

 

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement. The billing rate 
schedule is equivalent to an overall labor multiplier of 3.21, including profit. Subconsultants and 
outside services shall be billed at actual cost plus 5%; other direct costs will be billed at actual cost; 
and mileage will be billed at prevailing IRS standard rate. 

Total charges to the DISTRICT not-to-exceed amount shall be $32,398. A summary of the anticipated 
distribution of cost and manpower between tasks is shown in Exhibit A. 

70 of 188



Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

Page 5 

 
The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed task orders and amendments 
under the Agreement: 

 

Task Order / Amendment 
Not to Exceed 

Amount 
Board Authorization 

Required? 
District Staff Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – Design 
Services 

$158,813 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Amendment No. 1 to Task 
Order No. 1 – Thickener 
Control Building Additional 
Work 

 $22,707 No Sami Ghossain 

Task Order No. 2 – 
Engineering Services 
During Construction 

 $94,517 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Amendment No. 1 to Task 
Order No. 2 –Mixing Line 
Replacement 

 $33,221 No Sami Ghossain 

Amendment No. 2 to Task 
Order No. 2 – Additional 
ESDC Services 

 $32,398 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Total $341,656   

 

6.   TIME OF COMPLETION 

 

The time of completion shall be March 31, 2019, the anticipated completion date of the digester 
mixing pipeline installation.  

 

7.  KEY PERSONNEL 

   

Engineering personnel assigned to this Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 are as follows: 

71 of 188



Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project 

Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 

Page 6 

 
Role Key Person to be Assigned 

Principal-In-Charge Scott Parker 

Project Manager   Mike Dadik  

Project Engineer Becky Gherini 

 

Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of the Agreement. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEROF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Amendment No. 2 Task 
Order No. 2 as of October ____, 2018 and therewith incorporate it as part of the Agreement. 

 

DISTRICT                                                                       ENGINEER 

 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT  CAROLLO ENGINEERS, INC 

 

By: _______________________________ By: _______________________________ 

               Paul R. Eldredge, P.E. Scott Parker, P.E. 

                   General Manager      Senior Vice President 

 

       _______________________________                  _______________________________ 

          Date Date 

 

 By: _______________________________ 

                Mike Dadik, P.E. 

             Associate Vice President 

 

                                                                                             _______________________________ 

           Date 

72 of 188



 

 PD LPP PE AP CAD Support Total Labor PECE Beecher Eng. Subconsultant ODC Total
Task No. Task Description $300 $230 $180 $144 $130 $110 Hours Cost $11.70  ($195/hr) Mark up (5%) Trips Amount Cost Cost

1.0 Submittal Review
2 14 32 11 0 4 63 $11,604 $737 $0 $0 0 $0 $737 $12,341

Task 1.0 Subtotal = 2 14 32 11 0 4 63 $11,604 $737 $0 $0 0 $0 $737 $12,341

2.0 Request For Information
4 12 28 8 0 4 56 $10,592 $655 $0 $0 0 $0 $655 $11,247

Task 2.0 Subtotal = 4 12 28 8 0 4 56 $10,592 $655 $0 $0 0 $0 $655 $11,247

3.0 Clarification Memorandums
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

Task 3.0 Subtotal = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

4.0 Informal Requests for Information
0 8 22 0 0 0 30 $5,800 $351 $0 $0 0 $0 $351 $6,151

Task 4.0 Subtotal = 0 8 22 0 0 0 30 $5,800 $351 $0 $0 0 $0 $351 $6,151

5.0 Meetings
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

Task 5.0 Subtotal = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

6.0 Periodic Site Visits
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $1,560 $78 1 $54 $1,692 $1,692

Task 6.0 Subtotal = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $1,560 $78 1 $54 $1,692 $1,692

7.0 Additional Design Tasks
HMB2 drainage and curb modifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Sludge Pump Room Modifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Center column removal, cleaning and CCTV inspection 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Lifting eyes in HMB2 roof 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Digester 3 south overflow box grating 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Valve on TPS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

Task 7.0 Subtotal = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

8.0 Rebidding Assistance
Rewrite and reissue specifications with bid alternates 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Revise cost estimate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0
Reissue drawings, including original Addendum 1 changes 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

Task 8.0 Subtotal = 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $0 $0 $0

9.0 Project Management
0 4 0 0 0 0 4 $920 $47 $0 $0 0 $0 $47 $967

Task 9.0 Subtotal = 0 4 0 0 0 0 4 $920 $47 $0 $0 0 $0 $47 $967

Totals 6 38 82 19 0 8 153 28,916$      1,790$         1,560$         78$              1 $54 $3,482 $32,398

Legend:      

PD Project Director    

LPP Lead Project Professional

PE Project Engineer 

AP Assistant Project Engineer

CAD CAD Technician

Support Support Staff

PECE: Project Equipment and Communication Expense

Notes:

1. Mileage based on 100 miles per trip @ $0.535/mile

2. Multiplier = 3.21

Mileage

Exhibit A

Union Sanitary District and Carollo Engineers

Engineering Services During Construction

Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project

Amendment 2 to Task Order No. 2

Other Direct Costs (ODC)

73 of 188



 
 

 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Andrew Baile, Assistant Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 
 Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 6 with West Yost 

Associates for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project, Phase 3 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 6 with 
West Yost Associates in the amount of $59,533 to provide design services for the Force Main 
Corrosion Repairs Project, Phase 3 (Project).  Funds for the project have been budgeted in the 
Renewal and Replacement Fund. 
 
Background 
 
The District operates and maintains the transport system that consists of three pump stations 
and three lift stations and approximately 12½ miles of twin force main pipelines.  The transport 
system conveys wastewater from the Irvington and Newark drainage basins to the Alvarado 
Wastewater Treatment Plant (Plant). 
 
Force main facilities include 78 manholes along the pipeline alignment; please see attached 
Figures 1 and 2.  Of the 78 manholes, 46 of them provide access into the force main pipelines via 
a manway inside the manholes, and each manway is sealed with a blind flange.  At the other 32 
manholes, appurtenances such as air release valves or blow off valves are connected to the blind 
flanges. 

74 of 188



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
The air release valves are located at the higher elevations of the force main pipelines to allow air 
from the pipelines to vent in order to maintain the full hydraulic capacity of the pipelines.  The 
blow off valves are located at the lower elevations of the force main pipelines to allow staff to 
drain the wastewater from the pipelines when there is a need to remove as much wastewater as 
possible, typically for a long-term outage for maintenance or construction activities.  This doesn’t 
happen very often but if there is a need to do so, staff will need to set up pumps and hoses to 
connect the blow off valves to the closest sanitary sewer manhole. 
 
These facilities were installed almost 40 years ago, as part of the original force main construction.  
Over time, the presence of groundwater, moisture, and the buildup of hydrogen sulfide gas in 
these force main manholes have caused many of the manways, blind flanges, and appurtenances 
to become corroded.  This corrosion is of primary concern, as failure of any single element could 
precipitate a leak from the force main pipeline. 
 
Force Main Inspections 
 
In 2011, the District conducted a condition assessment of the force main equipment located in 
the Irvington Valve Box, Newark Influent and Effluent Valve Boxes, and Alvarado Influent Valve 
Box.  These valve boxes are part of the transport system that delivers wastewater to the Plant 
and primarily house large diameter cement mortar coated steel piping, knife gate valves, and 
flanged coupling adaptors (FCAs).  The assessment found the existing FCAs were experiencing 
corrosion and recommended them for replacement.  The assessment also recommened 
refurbishment or replacement of the valves.  In 2012, the District completed two phases of the 
Force Main Improvements Project to replace corroded FCAs and rehabilitated and replaced knife 
gate valves on the force main pipelines located within the valves boxes. 
 
In 2004, the District’s Force Main Study included a condition assessment of the interior and 
exterior of the buried force main piping that was constructed of reinforced concrete pipelines.  
The study found the piping to be in good condition and recommended an internal inspection 
every 10 years and an external inspection every 20 years.  In 2016, the District hired Woodard & 
Curran (formerly RMC Water and Environment) to conduct the internal inspection of the force 
main piping as the force main piping is taken out of service for the District’s Force Main Corrosion 
Repairs Project and the developer’s Force Main Relocation Project this year and next. 
 
During the summer of 2015, staff performed visual inspection inside all 78 force main manholes, 
and conducted non-destructive testing on elements with the worst corrosion conditions.  In the 
fall of 2015 through the spring of 2016, staff hired Carollo Engineers to review the data collected 
during the inspections and testing; as a result they recommended that any and all corroded 
elements within the 78 manholes be rehabilitated or replaced.  Please see Figures 3 through 7. 
 
 

75 of 188



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 
Phases 1 and 2 Projects 
 
West Yost Associates completed preliminary design in the fall of 2016 and recommended the 
corrosion repairs be implemented in several phases.  In the winter of 2016-2017, West Yost 
completed the final design of the Phase 1 Project, which addressed corrosion repairs for 
manholes on the eastern force main between Newark Pump Station (PS) and the Plant.  The 
District awarded the Phase 1 construction contract to Cratus Inc. who completed the Project in 
October 2017. 
 
West Yost Associates completed final design of the Phase 2 Project in the fall of 2017.  The Phase 
2 Project addressed corrosion repairs for manholes on the western force main between Newark 
PS and the Plant.  The District awarded the Phase 2 construction contract to Cratus Inc. who 
completed the project in August 2018. 
 
Of the 78 manholes along the force main pipelines, the Phases 1 and 2 Projects completed the 
corrosion repairs of all 34 manholes between Newark PS and the Plant.  The remaining 44 
manholes are located between Irvington PS and Newark PS.  However, 5 of the 44 manholes will 
not be included in the upcoming Phases 3 and 4 projects and will instead be removed as part of 
the force main relocation project, after the new force main pipelines and manholes are put into 
service. 
 
Task Order No. 6 
 
The Phase 3 Project will address corrosion repairs for manholes on the eastern force main 
between Newark Pump Station and Irvington Pump Station.  The scope of services for Task Order 
No. 6 includes project management; detailed final design including plans and specifications, 
agency coordination and permitting; and bid period services. 
 
Based on the Phases 1 and 2 construction contracts, the preliminary construction cost estimate 
for Phase 3 is between $900,000 and $1 million.  The negotiated cost proposal is $59,533.  The 
total not-to-exceed fee for design services represents approximately 6 to 6.6 percent of the Phase 
3 construction cost estimate.  Staff believes the fee is reasonable since much of the design effort 
for Phases 1 and 2 is applicable to Phase 3 and is already accomplished. 
 
The scope of services and their respective fees are summarized as follows: 
 

Task Description Amount 
1 Project Management $  8,585 
2 Design $40,372 
3 Bid Period Services $10,576 
 TOTAL $59,533 

  

76 of 188



Agenda Item No. 12 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 4 
 
Below is a summary of the task orders with West Yost Associates under the Project agreement: 
 

Task Order Not-to-Exceed 
Fee 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 

District Staff 
Approval 

Task Order No. 1 - Predesign $  25,855 No Sami E. Ghossain 
Task Order No. 2 - Phase 1 
Design $113,464 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 3 - Phase 1 
Engineering Services During 
Construction 

$  33,085 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 4 - Phase 2 
Design $  62,248 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 5 - Phase 2 
Engineering Services During 
Construction 

$  35,148 No Sami E. Ghossain 

Task Order No. 6 - Phase 3 
Design $  59,533 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Total $329,333  
 
The Project’s design is scheduled for completion in winter 2018-2019.  The bid advertisement 
and construction of Phase 3 will depend on the schedule of the force main relocation project. 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 6 with 
West Yost Associates in the amount of $59,533 to provide design services for the Force Main 
Corrosion Repairs Project, Phase 3. 
 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/AB;dl 
 
Attachments: Figures 1-2 - Location Maps 

Figures 3-7 - Photos 
Task Order No. 6 

 

77 of 188



0 2,2001,100

Scale in Feet

Figure 1

Irvington Pump Station to
Newark Pump Station

Manhole Condition Ratings

Union Sanitary District
Force Main Manhole Corrosion Repairs

La
st

 S
av

ed
: 

12
/6

/2
01

6 
3

:0
6

:2
1

 P
M

  
N

:\C
lie

n
ts

\2
5

6
 U

S
D

\1
4-

1
6

-4
8

 F
M

 C
or

ro
si

on
 R

e
pa

irs
\G

IS
\M

X
D

\F
ig

u
re

1_
C

o
nd

iti
on

R
a

tin
gs

_S
o

u
th

E
a

st
.m

xd
 :

 m
ot

t

Notes:
1.  Rating 1 requires immediate attention.
2.  Rating 2 requires repair in 2-3 years.
3.  Rating 3 requires repair after 3 years or place on PM schedule.

Legend

Access Manhole

Access/Blow Off Combination

ARV

Blow Off

Rating 1

Rating 2

Rating 3

Not Inspected

Lift Station

Pump Station

Twin 33" Force Mains

Twin 39" Force Mains

229921

229901239901

249937
259937

249910

259910

249914

259914
249911

259911
249909

259909

249912

249913
249938259938 249923

249936

259936

249922
249935

259935

249933

259933

249908
259908

249921 249907

259907 249906

259906 249934

259934

249905

259905
249904

259904

249903

259903 249902

259902
249901

259901

259912

259913
249924

R
O

B
E

R
T

S
A

V

CHERRY ST

BOSCELL

R
D

ST
EV

EN
S

O
N

 B
L

BLACOW
RD

CAROL AV

CENTRAL AV

M
O

W
R

Y
 A

V

O
S

G
O

O
D

 R
D

THORNTON AV

SUNDALE DR

ENTERPRISE DR

AUTO MALL PW
CHRISTY ST

S
GRIMMER

BL

CUSHING
PW

W
A

R
R

E
N

A
V

E

BOYCE RD

F
R

E
M

O
N

T
 B

L

FARWELL DR

E
V

E
R

G
LA

D
E

S
PARK

DR
ALBRAE ST

N
EW

PA
R

K MALL

CEDAR
BL

G
R

IM
M

E
R

 B
L

Newark

Irvington

Boyce

Cherry

680

880

84

78 of 188



0 2,0001,000

Scale in Feet

Figure 2

Newark Pump Station to
Alvarado Treatment Plant

Manhole Condition Ratings

Union Sanitary District
Force Main Manhole Corrosion Repairs

Last Saved: 12/6/2016 3:06:40 PM  N:\Clients\256 USD\14-16-48 FM Corrosion Repairs\GIS\MXD\Figure2_ConditionRatings_NorthWest.mxd : mott

Legend

Access Manhole

Access/Blow Off
Combination

ARV

Blow Off

Rating 1

Rating 2

Rating 3

Not Inspected

Lift Station

Pump Station

Alvarado Treatment
Plant

Twin 33" Force Mains

Twin 39" Force Mains

239909 229909

229938239938

229926

229908239908

229937
239937

229925239925

229906239906

229936239936

229924

229905
239905

229935239935

229904239904

229903239903

229934239934

229902239902

229922

239933
229933

229921

229901239901

249937

259937

249914

259914
249911

259911
249912

249913

249938259938

259912

259913

249924

REGENTS BL

THORNTON AV

RUSCHIN

D
R

D
YE

R
 S

T

S
IW

A
R

D
D

R

SPRUCE ST

ALVARADO BL

SYCAMORE ST

JEAN
DR

RIDGEWOOD DR

BETTENCOURT ST

C
AB

EL
LO

 S
T

HALEY ST

D
EC

O
TO

 R
D

MAYHEW
S

LANDIN
G

RD

NEWARK BL

C
ED

AR
BL

A
R

D
E

N
W

O
O

D
BL

LAFAYETTE
AV

ENTERPRISE DR

JA
R

V
IS

 A
V

CENTRAL AV

GATEW
AY

B
L

MARSHLANDS RD

LO
W

R
Y 

R
D

D
EE

P 
C

R
EE

K 
R

D

PASEO PADRE PW

CHERRY ST

PA
LM

DR

D
AR

W
IN

DR

EDGEWATER
DR

DUMBARTON
CI

Paseo Padre

Newark

Alvarado Treatment Plant

84

84

880

Notes:
1.  Rating 1 requires immediate attention.
2.  Rating 2 requires repair in 2-3 years.
3.  Rating 3 requires repair after 3 years or place on PM schedule.

79 of 188



FIGURES 3-7 (PHOTOS) 

Figures 3-7 (Photos) - Page 1 
 

Figure 3:  Manway 

 
 

Figure 4:  Blind Flange 

 
 

80 of 188



FIGURES 3-7 (PHOTOS) 

Figures 3-7 (Photos) - Page 2 
 

Figure 5:  Valve 

 

Figure 6:  ARV Piping 

 

 

81 of 188



FIGURES 3-7 (PHOTOS) 

Figures 3-7 (Photos) - Page 3 
 

Figure 7:  Blowoff Tube 

 

82 of 188



FORCE MAIN CORROSION REPAIRS PROJECT 

(USD Project No. 800-491) 

TASK ORDER NO. 6 

to 

AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

AND 

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES, INC. 

FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Dated October 26, 2016 

 

1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of Task Order No. 6 is to authorize the final design and bid period services for 
Phase 3 of the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project (Project).  The purpose of the Project 
is to rehabilitate force main manholes as identified and prioritized during Task Order No. 
1, Pre-design.  Due to force main shutdown constraints and concurrent projects, the 
repairs will be split into multiple phases, spanning several construction seasons.  
Construction for Phases 1 and 2 has been completed.  Phase 3 is anticipated to consist 
of repairs to 13 access manholes, 5 ARV manholes, and 3 blowoff manholes located on 
the east side of the twin force mains between the Irvington Pump Station and the Newark 
Pump Station. 

2. PROJECT COORDINATION 

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the Union Sanitary District’s 
(District’s) Project Manager, Andrew Baile. 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The task numbers in this Scope of Services relate directly to the costs presented in Item 7, 
Payment to the Engineer, and the schedule presented in Item 8, Time of Completion. 
Deliverables to be received by the District are described in Item 4, Deliverables. 

 

 

83 of 188



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project  
Task Order No. 6 
Page 2 
 
Task 1.  Project Management 

This task includes project management activities, including day-to-day administration, 
progress meetings and technical reviews. 

Subtask 1.01—Project Administration.  Monitor progress of individual tasks, budgets, 
and schedule; and coordinate completion of work products.   

Subtask 1.02—Progress Meetings.  Attend up to one progress meeting to discuss and 
review progress and significant action items.  Engineer shall prepare and submit meeting 
agendas and minutes. 

Subtask 1.03—Technical Reviews.  Technical reviews shall be conducted by the 
Principal-in-Charge, Project Manager, and a senior staff member not directly involved in 
the project. 

Task 2.  Design 

This task includes services for permitting, field investigations, and preparation of bid 
documents and cost estimates for the Project.  Six sets of plans and specifications shall 
be submitted to the District for review at the 90 percent completion level, and one set shall 
be submitted at the 100 percent completion level.  Engineer shall address all comments 
in writing and submit one set of the final bid documents to the District for printing, bid 
advertisement, and distribution.  

At the beginning of the design work, Engineer shall hold a meeting or conference call to 
review RFIs, change orders, omissions, unforeseen conditions, and other issues from the 
Phases 1 and 2 construction.  Engineer shall incorporate these lessons learned from 
Phases 1 and 2 into the Phase 3 design. 

Subtask 2.01—Agency Coordination & Permitting.  Engineer shall update 
coordination and permitting as necessary for the Phase 3 scope of work. Stakeholders 
may include the City of Fremont and the City of Newark (Cities), Alameda County Flood 
Control & Water Conservation District (ACFC&WCD), Union Pacific Railroad (UPRR), 
East Bay Regional Parks District (EBRPD), U.S. Department of Fish and Wildlife 
(USDFW), and private property owners.  Engineer shall identify the necessary 
requirements for obtaining encroachment permits, right of entry agreements, and 
construction access.  The District will pay for permitting fees and prepare right of entry 
agreements with private property owners.  It is anticipated that no temporary construction 
easements will have to be obtained since the force main alignment is entirely within 
existing permanent easements. 

Subtask 2.02—Design Drawings.  Drawings shall be prepared using AutoCAD 
conforming to the District’s digital submittal guidelines.  The design shall include 
appropriately scaled plans and details.  It is assumed that approximately 12 drawing 
sheets will be prepared. 

84 of 188



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project  
Task Order No. 6 
Page 3 
 
The Engineer shall create a drawing sheet(s) with a schedule or matrix that lists the 
manholes to be repaired, gives their descriptive or colloquial name for ease of future 
discussions, indicates which repair detail in the plans is applicable, includes any other 
pertinent information regarding the scope of work, and is organized to correspond with an 
adjacent overview map. 

Subtask 2.03—Specifications.  Specifications shall be prepared in Microsoft Word 
format.  Engineer shall prepare bidding and contract requirements (Division 00), general 
requirements (Division 01), technical specifications (Division 02), and appendices in CSI 
format and based on District Standards.  Engineer’s subconsultant shall prepare the 
technical specifications for Concrete Chemical Injection Grouts and High Performance 
Coatings.  District will provide boilerplate front end specifications in Microsoft Word 
Format.  

Subtask 2.04—Construction Cost Estimates.  Engineer shall develop a construction 
cost estimate at the 90 and 100 percent design completion levels. 

Task 3.  Bid Period Services 

The purpose of this task is to assist the District during the bidding phase of the Project.  
The District will advertise and distribute bid documents. 

Subtask 3.01—Pre-bid Meeting, Bidder Inquiries, and Bid Evaluation.  Engineer shall 
attend one pre-bid meeting, attend one site walk, and prepare meeting minutes for 
distribution.  Engineer shall answer bidders’ technical questions during the bid period.  
Engineer shall assist the District in bid evaluation. 

Subtask 3.02—Addenda.  Engineer shall prepare up to two addenda to be distributed 
by the District during the bid period. 

Subtask 3.03—Conformed Documents.  Engineer shall prepare conformed plans and 
specifications incorporating all addenda items. 

4. DELIVERABLES 

Project deliverables and their respective digital file formats are listed below: 

• Meeting agendas (Microsoft Word) and minutes (Adobe PDF). 
• ACFC&WCD encroachment permit application, UPRR right of entry permit 

application, and other permitting documents as necessary. 
• Six sets of draft plans and specifications at the 90 percent completion level 

(Adobe PDF). 
• One set of plans and specifications at the 100 percent completion level (Adobe 

PDF). 
• One set of final bid documents (Adobe PDF). 
• Cost estimates at the 90 and 100 percent completion levels (Adobe PDF). 
• Drawing files in AutoCAD 2016 format submitted on a DVD or via file transfer or 

file sharing site. 

85 of 188



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project  
Task Order No. 6 
Page 4 
 

• Addenda (Microsoft Word and Adobe PDF), pre-bid meeting minutes (Adobe 
PDF), and email documentation of phone conversations with bidders. 

• One set of conformed plans and specifications (Adobe PDF and AutoCAD) 

5. NOT USED 

6. NOT USED 

7. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement, shall be on 
a time and materials cost basis for services provided, and shall be in accordance with the 
Billing Rate Schedule contained in Exhibit A (updated annually) except that 
subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%, outside services will be billed at actual 
cost, and mileage will be billed at the prevailing IRS standard mileage rate.  The billing 
rate schedule is comparable to a multiplier of 3.22 and a profit of 12.4 percent; the not-
to-exceed amount shall be $59,533.  A summary of the anticipated distribution of cost 
and manpower between tasks is shown in Exhibit B. 

The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed task orders and 
amendments under the Agreement: 
 

Task Order / Amendment Not to Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required?  
District Staff 

Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – Predesign $25,855 No Sami E. Ghossain 

Task Order No. 2 – Phase 1 
Design $113,464 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 3 – Phase 1 
Engineering Services During 
Construction 

$33,085 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 4 – Phase 2 
Design $62,248 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Task Order No. 5 – Phase 2 
Engineering Services During 
Construction 

$35,148 No Sami E. Ghossain 

Task Order No. 6 – Phase 3 
Design $59,533 Yes Paul R. Eldredge 

Total $329,333  

86 of 188



Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project  
Task Order No. 6 
Page 5 
 
 
8. TIME OF COMPLETION 

All work defined in this Task Order shall be completed in accordance with the following 
schedule and subject to the conditions of Article 3 of the Agreement: 

 

Design Schedule 
Milestone Date 

Notice to Proceed October 24, 2018  
90% Design Submittal November 28, 2018 
100% Design Submittal January 11, 2019 
Final Bid Documents February 19, 2019 

 

9. KEY PERSONNEL 

Key engineering personnel or subconsultants assigned to Task Order No. 6 are as follows: 

Role Personnel/Subconsultant 

Principal-in-Charge John Goodwin 
Project Manager Thea Durbin 
Project Engineer Scott Greenwood 

 

Key personnel shall not change except in accordance with Article 8 of the Agreement.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order 
No. 6 as of October _____, 2018 and therewith incorporated it as part of the Agreement. 
 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 

Union Sanitary District West Yost Associates 

 

By:             By:     

 

Name:         Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.             Name:        John D. Goodwin  

Title:   General Manager/District Engineer   Title:             Vice President                 

87 of 188



* This schedule is updated annually 

Rates-1

USD 2018 Billing Rate Schedule
(Effective January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018) *

 Hourly rates include Technology and Communication charges such as general and CAD computer, 
software, telephone, routine in-house copies/prints, postage, miscellaneous supplies, and other 
incidental project expenses.

 Outside Services such as vendor reproductions, prints, shipping, and major West Yost reproduction 
efforts, as well as Engineering Supplies, etc. will be billed at actual cost.

 Mileage will be billed at the current Federal Rate and Travel will be billed at cost.
 Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%.
 Expert witness, research, technical review, analysis, preparation and meetings billed at 150% of 

standard hourly rates. Expert witness testimony and depositions billed at 200% of standard hourly 
rates.

 A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month (an Annual Rate of 18%) on the unpaid balance will be added to 
invoice amounts if not paid within 45 days from the date of the invoice.

POSITIONS LABOR CHARGES 
(DOLLARS PER HR) 

ENGINEERING

Principal/Vice President $285
Engineering/Scientist/Geologist Manager I / II $263 / $274
Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $240 / $254
Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $214 / $225
Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $190 / $203
Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I / II $154 / $178
Engineering Aide $87
Administrative I / II / III / IV $78 / $99 / $119 / $131
ENGINEERING TECHNOLOGY

Engineering Tech Manager I / II $271 / $281
Principal Tech Specialist I / II $250 / $260
Senior Tech Specialist I / II $229 / $239
Senior GIS Analyst $209
GIS Analyst $197
Technical Specialist I / II / III / IV $145 / $166 / $187 / $208
CAD Manager $166
CAD Designer I / II $129 / $144
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Senior Construction Manager $273
Construction Manager I / II / III / IV $166 / $178 / $190 / $237
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage Groups 4 / 3 / 2 / 1) $144 / $160 / $178 / $185
Apprentice Inspector $131
CM Administrative I / II $71 / $95

Exhibit A

88 of 188



* This schedule is updated annually 

Rates-2

USD 2018 Billing Rate Schedule (continued)
(Effective January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018) *

Equipment Charges 
 

EQUIPMENT BILLING RATES 

Gas Detector $80/day
Hydrant Pressure Gage $10/day
Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Standard $40/day
Hydrant Pressure Recorder, Impulse (Transient) $55/day
Trimble GPS – Geo 7x $220/day
Vehicle $10/hour
Water Flow Probe Meter $20/day
Water Quality Multimeter $185/day
Well Sounder $30/day

89 of 188



Task Order No. 6 - FMCR Phase 3 - Design EXHIBIT B DATE: 08/06/2018

Costs
West Yost Associates P/VP PE/PS/PG I AE/AS/AG I CAD II ADM IV Hours Fee Sub. Other Total

$285 $240 $190 $144 $131 w/ markup Direct Costs
PROJECT: FMCR Phase 3 Design Goodwin Durbin 10%

Task 1 Project Management

1.01 Project Administration 2 8 10 2,490$                     2,490$         
1.02 Progress Meetings 5 5 10 2,625$                     50$               2,675$         
1.03 Technical Reviews 12 12 3,420$                     3,420$         

Subtotal, Task 1 (hours) 19 13 0 0 0 32
Subtotal, Task 1 ($) 5,415$         3,120$                                             8,535$                     50$               8,585$         

Task 2 Design

2.01 Agency Coordination & Permitting 40 40 8 88 18,248$                   18,248$       
2.02 Design Drawings 4 16 24 24 68 12,996$                   50$               13,046$       
2.03 Specifications 4 16 4 8 32 6,788$                     6,788$         
2.04 Construction Cost Estimates 2 4 4 10 2,290$                     2,290$         

Subtotal, Task 2 (hours) 10 76 72 24 16 198
Subtotal, Task 2 ($) 2,850$         18,240$       13,680$       3,456$         2,096$         40,322$                   50$               40,372$       

Task 3 Bid Period Services

3.01 Prebid Meeting, Bidder Inquiries, and Bid Evaluation 2 8 8 18 4,010$                     50$               4,060$         
3.02 Addenda 2 8 8 2 20 4,272$                     4,272$         
3.03 Conformed Documents 4 4 4 12 2,244$                     2,244$         

Subtotal, Task 3 (hours) 4 20 20 0 6 50
Subtotal, Task 3 ($) 1,140$         4,800$         3,800$                     786$            10,526$                   50$               10,576$       

TOTAL (hours) 33 109 92 24 22 280

TOTAL ($) 9,405$         26,160$       17,480$       3,456$         2,882$         59,383$                   150$             59,533$       

Labor

90 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 15, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Thomas Lam, Associate Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 

Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order 
No. 2 with Woodard & Curran, Inc. for the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 2 with Woodard & Curran, Inc. (W&C) in the amount of $56,490 to provide 
additional design services for the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project (Project). 
 
Background 
 
On October 31, 2017, staff executed an agreement and Task Order No. 1 with W&C in the 
amount of $49,961 to provide predesign services for the Project.  During the predesign phase, 
W&C evaluated the mechanical screen alternatives to the manual bar rack of Screen No. 3, the 
hydraulic effects to the Parshall flumes’ operations, and the maintenance requirements of new 
mechanical screen equipment.  The results of these evaluations served as the design basis 
during the final design phase. 
 
On June 4, 2018, the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Task Order No. 2 with 
W&C in the amount of $108,552 to provide design services for the Project.  The scope of 
services for Task Order No. 2 included project management, detailed design of the new 
Mechanical Screen No. 3 including preparation of contract documents and bid period services 
for the Project. 

91 of 188



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 2 
 
 
The Project includes replacing the manual bar rack of Screen No. 3 with a mechanical multi-rake 
bar screen with 1/4-inch bar rack spacing.  The 1/4-inch bar rack spacing will allow for superior 
debris removal and the multiple rakes will facilitate the removal of debris more frequently to 
minimize backing up the wastewater flows in the upstream Parshall flumes.  The new screen 
will be evaluated over a period of a few years.  If the new screen proved to be successful, the 
intent was to replace the other two existing mechanical bar screens in the next 6 to 8 years.  
Please refer to Figures 1 through 3 for the location of the Headworks Building and photos of the 
Headworks Building equipment. 
 
The two existing Headworks mechanical bar screens were constructed during the 1993 Plant 
Upgrade Project.  In 2016, the District replaced the original 3/4-inch spacing bar rack for 
Mechanical Screen No. 1 with a bar rack with 3/8-inch spacing during the Plant Facilities 
Improvements Project.  The narrower spacing allowed for more debris to be captured.  In mid-
August 2018, Mechanical Screen No. 1 failed.  The mechanical components of both the screens 
are reaching the end of their useful life, which was further reinforced by the failure.  Currently, 
staff is in the process of repairing Mechanical Screen No. 1 which is expected to be placed back 
in operation before this year’s wet weather season begins. In the interim, Mechanical Screen 
No. 2 is the only screen in operation and is handling all debris removal until Mechanical Screen 
No. 1 is returned to service. 
 
The Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 CIP budget includes a replacement project for Mechanical Screens No. 
1 and 2 starting in FY 2021.  However, due to the critical nature of the bar screens to the Plant’s 
treatment processes and to avoid the similar costly repair of Mechanical Screen No. 2, staff has 
decided to move up the replacement timeline for both Mechanical Screens No. 1 and 2 to be 
included in this Project.  
 
Staff believes that this decision to install new mechanical screens at the Headworks Building will 
not only significantly improve debris removal and process reliability but will also result in the 
best value for the District.  Procuring the services of a single contractor will both reduce 
overhead costs and improve labor efficiency. 
 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
 
The Project’s amended scope will include the following elements: 
 

1. New Mechanical Screen No. 1 with 3/8-inch bar rack spacing. 
2. New Mechanical Screen No. 2 with 1/4-inch bar rack spacing. 
3. New Mechanical Screen No. 3 with 1/4-inch bar rack spacing. 
4. One spare 1/4-inch bar rack and rake assembly. 
5. One spare 3/8-inch bar rack and rake assembly. 

92 of 188



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 3 
 
 

6. Evaluate the impact of additional screenings load to the washer/compactor system 
and recommend options to mitigate odors. 

7. Provide foul air ducting from connections at the proposed new screens to the 
existing ventilation system. 

8. Add a new probe to measure wastewater temperature in the screen effluent 
channel. 

9. Add new float switches to provide alarms when the wastewater in the influent 
channels has reached a high level. 

10. Provide fall protection guardrails for six existing roof skylights at the Headworks 
Building. 

11. Evaluate the condition of the channel PVC liners and recommend repairs if required. 
 
The Project will be renamed the Headworks Screens Replacement Project in the final construction 
documents to reflect the amended project scope. 
 
W&C’s Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 fee to provide additional design services for the 
Project is summarized below: 
 

Task 
No. Task Description Fee 

1 Project Management $3,936 

2 Preparation of Design Documents $41,360 

3 Bid Period Services $1,465 

4 Screenings Odor Evaluation $9,729 

 Total Not-to-Exceed Fee $56,490 

 
The preliminary construction estimate for the revised Project is $3.5 million.  The total design 
fee for the Project is $165,042, which is approximately 5 percent of the construction estimate.  
For a project of this scope and size, design fees are typically between 8 and 11 percent of the 
construction estimate.  Staff believes W&C’s design amendment fee is reasonable given the 
level of effort to design the mechanical, electrical, and structural elements of the Project. 
 
Below is a summary of the task orders and the proposed amendment with W&C under the 
Project agreement: 
 

93 of 188



Agenda Item No. 13 
Meeting of October 22, 2018 
Page 4 
 
 

Task Order/Amendment Not to Exceed Amount 

Task Order No. 1 – Predesign $49,961 

Task Order No. 2 – Final Design $108,552 
Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 2 – Additional Design 
Services 

$56,490 

Total $215,003 
 
Staff anticipates W&C will complete the design of the Project by February 2019 and 
construction to begin by spring 2019. 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 2 with Woodard & Curran, Inc. in the amount of $56,490 to provide additional 
design services for the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project. 
 
PRE/SEG/RC/TL;dl 
 
Attachments: Figure 1 – Site Plan 
 Figure 2 – Headworks Building Equipment 
 Figure 3 – Existing Headworks Screens No. 1 and 2 
  Amendment 1 to Task Order No. 2 

94 of 188



 

Figure 1 – Partial Site Plan – Headworks Building 

95 of 188



 

Figure 2 – Headworks Building Equipment 

Parshall Flume No. 1 
(Below Deck) 

Parshall Flume No. 
2 (Below Deck) 

Mechanical 
Screen No. 1 

Mechanical 
Screen No. 2 Manual 

Screen No. 3 
(Below Deck) 

96 of 188



 

Figure 3 – Existing Headworks Screens No. 1 and 2 

Mechanical 
Screen No. 1 

Mechanical 
Screen No. 2 

97 of 188



HEADWORKS SCREEN NO. 3 PROJECT 
 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1  
 

to 
 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 
 

to 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

AND 
 

WOODARD & CURRAN, INC. 
 

FOR 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

Dated October 31, 2017 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

The purpose of Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 is to authorize Woodard & 
Curran, Inc. (Engineer) to complete services requested by Union Sanitary District 
(District) that were not included in the original task order.  This includes design 
services to add the following elements to the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project: 
 
• Demolish Screen Nos. 1 and 2, including electrical systems, instrumentation, 

controls, and related appurtenances. 

• Replace Screen Nos. 1 (3/8” opening) and 2 (1/4” opening) with multi-rake 
screens, including required structural, electrical, instrumentation, and controls 
modifications and related appurtenances.  The requirement for a spare 1/4” and 
3/8” bar racks and rakes (one set for each spacing) shall be included in the 
screen specification as either base bid items or alternate bid items. 

• Work associated with demolition and replacement of Screen No. 3 (1/4” 
opening) shall be specified as a bid alternate. Provisions, including limiting 
construction to occur during dry weather seasons, shall be provided in the 
Contract Documents if the District does not proceed with this work. 

98 of 188



Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 2 of 6 
 

• Provide foul air ducting from connections at proposed screens to existing 
ventilation system.  Foul air flow rates to the new ducts shall be developed and 
shall be based on the existing air flow capacity of the existing foul air system.  
A new specification for the testing and balancing of the foul air system shall 
also be developed. 

• Add a new temperature probe to measure wastewater in the screen effluent 
channel, including control schematic and technical specification. 

• Add new high-level float switches, including control schematic and conduit 
routing and mounting details. 

• Incorporate additional SCADA control features.  

• Provide safety guardrails for six (6) existing skylights at the Headworks 
Building. 

• Modification and repair of existing PVC liner necessary to fill in existing wall 
pockets. 

• Evaluate the impact of additional screenings load to the washer/compactor 
system and recommend options to mitigate odors.  Attend one (1) meeting at 
USD to discuss odor mitigation options and select a recommended project for 
odor control. 

 
The name of the project will be updated to Headworks Screens Replacement Project in 
the final construction documents to reflect the amended project scopes. 
 
 
2. PROJECT COORDINATION 
 
 All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the District’s Project 

Manager, Thomas Lam. 
 
 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The Scope of Services for Task Order No. 2 is amended as follows: 
 

Task 1 – Project Management 
 
Engineer shall perform incremental additional project management tasks 
associated with this Amendment No. 1. The scope of services described under 
Task Order 2 applies to this task. 

  

99 of 188



Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

Task 2 – Final Design 
 
Engineer shall design the project based on the recommended project agreed to as 
part of the preliminary design, and the additional items described in Article 1 of this 
Amendment.  
 
The major activities of this task shall be the preparation of 90% and final design 
drawings and specifications for the construction of new Headworks mechanical 
screens for channel Nos. 1, 2, and 3. 
 
Drawings, specifications, and Engineer’s Estimate from the 50% Design submittal 
will be updated to include the additional design elements described in Article 1 of 
this Amendment. Five additional drawings and three additional technical 
specification sections are anticipated. Engineer shall engage the services of 
subconsultant, V&A Engineering, to provide details of PVC liner repairs in the 
channels.  
 
One (1) site visit to address the demolition and replacement of Screen Nos. 1 and 
2 will be conducted. One (1) field meeting with the District staff to discuss conduit 
routing and additional control features will be conducted. 
 
Assumptions: 
 

• Engineer shall develop two Engineer’s Estimates, one for constructing the 
base bid and one for constructing the base bid and the alternate bid. The 
base bid is to replace Screen Nos. 1 and 2. The alternate bid is to replace 
Screen Nos. 1, 2 and 3.  

• District shall provide air flow data of the existing foul air system in the 
Headworks Building. Foul air flow rates to the new ducts shall be developed 
and shall be based on the existing air flow capacity of the existing foul air 
system. 

Task 3 – Bid Services 
 
Engineer shall perform incremental additional services during bidding associated 
with this Amendment No. 1. The scope of services described under Task Order 
No. 2 applies to this task. 
 
Task 4 – Screenings Odor Evaluation 
 
The new multi-rake screens have narrower bar spacing, and will remove more 
screenings and organics from the raw influent. Engineer shall coordinate with 
manufacturer of the existing washer/compactor system (Huber) to evaluate the 
impact of the increased screenings and organics load. Based on the input from the 

100 of 188



Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 4 of 6 
 

manufacturer, the organics removal efficiency will  be used to qualitatvely estimate 
the potential for increased odors in the screenings dumpster. If odors are deemed 
likely to increase, odor mitigation options will be identified. Findings of this 
evaluation will be summarized via a brief technical memorandum, and next steps 
will be determined in conjunction with the District. One (1) meeting with the District 
to discuss odor mitigation options and select a recommended project for odor 
control will be conducted. 
 
Assumptions: 
 

• Evaluation findings and recommendations will be summarized via a brief 
technical memornadum. 

• Incorporation of recommended screenings odor mitigation option into the 
Contract Documents is not included. If Engineer is to include design 
services for the recommended screenings odor mitigation option, a 
separate authorization would be required.  

 
 

4. DELIVERABLES 
 
 Project deliverables not included in the original task order are listed below: 

 
Task 2 – Final Design 
• 90% and Final Design deliverables as described in Task Order No. 2 and 

including the additional design elements described above 
• One (1) site visit for demolition of Screen Nos. 1 and 2 
• One (1) field meeting with the District to discuss conduit routing and additional 

control features 
 

Task 4 – Screenings Odor Evaluation 
• Brief technical memorandum summarizing evaluation findings 
• One (1) meeting at the District to discuss odor mitigation options and select a 

recommended project for odor control 
 
 
5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 
 
 Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement.  The 

billing rate schedule is equivalent to an overall labor multiplier of 3.22, including 
profit.  Subconsultants and outside services will be billed at actual cost plus 5%; 
other direct costs will be billed at actual cost; and mileage will be billed at prevailing 
IRS standard rate. 

 

101 of 188



Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 5 of 6 
 
 Total charges to the DISTRICT for the additional Project elements and amendment 

scope of services shall not exceed $56,490.  A summary of the anticipated 
distribution of cost between tasks is shown in Exhibit A. 

 
The following table summarizes the previously-executed task orders and the 
proposed amendment under the Agreement: 

 

Task Order / 
Amendment 

Not to 
Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
District Staff 

Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – 
Headworks Screen 
No. 3 Project 
Predesign 

$49,961 No Sami Ghossain 

Task Order No. 2 – 
Headworks Screen 
No. 3 Project Design 

$108,552 Yes Paul Eldredge 

Amendment No. 1 to 
Task Order No. 2 – 
Add Headworks 
Screen Nos. 1 and 2, 
Add Foul Air Ducting 
from Screens, 
Screenings Loading, 
and Screenings Odor 
Control Evaluation 

$56,490 Yes Paul Eldredge 

Total $215,003  
 
 
6. TIME OF COMPLETION 
 
 All new work defined in this Task Order amendment shall be completed within 129 

calendar days after the execution of this Task Order amendment and subject to 
the conditions of Article 3 of this Agreement. An updated project schedule is shown 
in Exhibit B.  The key milestone dates are as follows: 

 
• Submit 90% Design to the District – November 29, 2018 
• Submit Final Design to the District – January 18, 2019 
• End of Bid Period Services – March 1, 2019 

  

102 of 188



Headworks Screen No. 3 Project 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 
Page 6 of 6 
 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Amendment 
No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 as of October ____, 2018 and therewith incorporate it as part 
of the Agreement. 
 
DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 
Union Sanitary District Woodard & Curran, Inc. 
 
 
By: ________________________  By:     
 Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.  David L. Richardson, P.E. 
 General Manager/District Engineer Vice President 
 
 
Date:  Date:   

103 of 188



Fee Estimate
Union Sanitary District 10/8/2018

Headworks Screen No. 3 Project - Design, Task Order No. 2, Amendment No. 1

Tasks Total

Dave 

Richardson

Mark 

Takemoto
Susan Hsu Eng 1 Tom Hazlett Chu To Admin Degenkolb Degenkolb Degenkolb

Todd 

Beecher

V&A  

Consulting 

Engineers

V&A  

Consulting 

Engineers

V&A  

Consulting 

Engineers

V&A  

Consulting 

Engineers

PIC
Project 

Manager

Project 

Engineer
Staff Eng. QA/QC

Sr. CAD 

Designer

Structural 

Principal

Structural 

Designer

Structural 

CAD

Electrical 

/I&C
PIC PM CADD Admin

$315 $274 $215 $157 $315 $165 $108 $240 $150 $140 $195 $297 $232 $141 $86

Task 1:  Project Management

1.1  Project Progress, Budget, and Schedule Tracking (Amendment No. 1) 4 3 2 9 $1,957 4 1 2 4 11 $1,885 $1,979 $0 $3,936

Task 2:  Final Design

2.2  90% Design (Amendment No. 1) 16 40 4 26 86 $17,902 1 3 2 40 2 6 12 3 69 $12,706 $13,341 $0 $31,243

2.3  Final Design (Amendment No. 1) 6 8 2 10 26 $5,328 10 1 2 4 1 18 $3,361 $3,529 $0 $8,857

2.4  QA/QC (Amendment No. 1) 4 4 $1,260 0 $0 $0 $0 $1,260

Subtotal Task 2 (Amendment No. 1): 0 22 48 6 4 36 0 116 $24,490 1 3 2 50 3 8 16 4 87 $16,067 $16,870 $0 $0 $41,360

Task 3: Bid Services

3.1  Bid Services (Amendment No. 1) 2 2 4 $978 2 2 $464 $487 $0 $1,465

Task 4: Screenings Odor Evaluation

4.1  Odor Control Evaluation (Amendment No. 1) 1 6 24 2 12 45 $9,729 0 $0 $0 $0 $9,729

Amendment 1 Subtotal: 1 34 77 6 6 48 2 174 $37,154 1 3 2 54 4 12 16 8 100 $18,416 $19,337 $0 $0 $56,490

2.  Sub Consultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%.   

3.  Other direct costs (ODCs) such as  reproduction, delivery, mileage (rates will be those allowed by current IRS guidelines), and travel expenses, will be billed at actual cost.

4.  Woodard & Curran reserves the right to adjust its hourly rate structure and ODC markup at the beginning of the calendar year for all ongoing contracts.

Sub Consultant 

Total Cost (2)
ODCs

Total ODCs 

(3)

Total 

Fee

Admin

1.  The individual hourly rates include salary, overhead and profit.

Total Hours
Total Labor 

Costs (1)

Subconsultant 

Total Hours

Subsonultant 

Subtotal

Exhibit A

Labor Outside Services ODCs 

104 of 188



ID Task

Mode

Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 USD Headworks Screens Project 179 days Tue 6/12/18 Fri 3/1/19

2 District Input and Review 179 days Tue 6/12/18 Fri 3/1/19

3 Notice to Proceed 0 days Tue 6/12/18 Tue 6/12/18

4 District Review of 50% Design/ Incorporate scope 

changes

59 days Tue 7/31/18 Mon 10/22/18

5 Workshop #1: 50% Design Review 1 day Tue 8/21/18 Tue 8/21/18

6 District Review of 90% Design 15 days Fri 11/30/18 Thu 12/20/18

7 Workshop #2: 90% Design Review 1 day Fri 12/7/18 Fri 12/7/18

8 Bid Advertisement 0 days Fri 1/25/19 Fri 1/25/19

9 Bid Opening 0 days Fri 3/1/19 Fri 3/1/19

10 1. Project Management 174 days Tue 6/19/18 Fri 3/1/19

11 1.1 Project Progress, Budget, Schedule Tracking 174 days Tue 6/19/18 Fri 3/1/19

12 1.2 Project Communications 174 days Tue 6/19/18 Fri 3/1/19

13 2. Final Design 149 days Tue 6/12/18 Fri 1/18/19

14 2.1 50% Design 35 days Tue 6/12/18 Mon 7/30/18

15 Prepare 50% Design 35 days Tue 6/12/18 Mon 7/30/18

16 Submit 50% Design 0 days Mon 7/30/18 Mon 7/30/18

17 2.2 90% Design 25 days Tue 10/23/18 Thu 11/29/18

18 Prepare 90% Design 25 days Tue 10/23/18 Thu 11/29/18

19 Submit 90% Design 0 days Thu 11/29/18 Thu 11/29/18

20 2.3 Final Design Submittal 15 days Fri 12/21/18 Fri 1/18/19

21 Prepare Final Design 15 days Fri 12/21/18 Fri 1/18/19

22 Submit Final Design 0 days Fri 1/18/19 Fri 1/18/19

23 2.4 QA/QC 120 days Tue 7/17/18 Mon 1/14/19

24 50% Design QA/QC 2 days Tue 7/17/18 Wed 7/18/18

25 90% Design QA/QC 2 days Tue 11/20/18 Mon 11/26/18

26 100% Design QA/QC 1 day Mon 1/14/19 Mon 1/14/19

27 3. Bid Services 25 days Mon 1/28/19 Fri 3/1/19

28 4. Screenings Odor Evaluation 15 days Tue 10/23/18 Mon 11/12/18

6/12

8/21

12/7

1/25

3/1

7/30

11/29

1/18

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Qtr 3, 2018 Qtr 4, 2018 Qtr 1, 2019

2019

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

EXHIBIT B

Project: Headworks Screen No. 3 Project

Date: Mon 10/8/18

105 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 22, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Laurie Brenner, Finance & Acquisition Services Coach 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 14 - Meeting of October 22, 2018 
 Consider Approval of Portfolio Management Services Contract 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Board consider authorizing the General Manager to sign the 
Portfolio Management Services Contract with PFM Asset Management LLC. 
 
Background 
 
Staff issued an RFP for portfolio management services, including service options, costs, and 
estimated rates of return from professional investment firms specializing in the public sector. 
This strategy behind the RFP was to maximize investment returns to the extent practicable, 
while maintaining compliance with all policy, legal and regulatory requirements for 
government agency investments.   
 
All qualified respondents demonstrated the capability and experience necessary to provide 
investment portfolio management services to the District and could do so in a cost-effective 
manner. 
 
Staff conducted interviews with the top scoring investment management firms and 
unanimously selected PFM Asset Management LLC (PFM). 
 
PFM offers the District a tenured and dedicated team with both investment and associated 
financial advisory capabilities.  PFM has over 38 years of public sector experience and has been 
managing assets in California since 1989.  Currently, PFM manages $128.7 billion in total assets, 

106 of 188



with $18 billion of that in California. California Special Districts account for $4.3 billion of that 
total.  
 
Based on their qualifications and fee schedule, staff recommends that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to sign a contract with PFM that will be reviewed for continued suitability on 
an annual basis, including monitoring of key portfolio performance measures.   
 
High level summary information from the review of the RFP respondents is captured in the 
table below (rounded):  
 
 Estimated Return 

Rate 
Total Annual 
Costs/Fees 

Annualized $ based 
on ROR  

USD 2.78% $0 $1,300,000 
RFP Respondent 

Ranges 
2.13-2.80% $52,000- $85,000* $1,002,000-1,320,000 

PFM 2.80% $60,000- rounded up 
slightly 

$1,270,000 

* Table value updated for inclusive actuals after interviewing final respondents 
 

Staff feels that the benefits of engaging an external investment management firm far outweigh 
the costs, as indicated in the table above.  
 
 As previously shared with the Board, benefits associated with engaging a professional 
investment management services firm include the following: 
 

• Focused knowledge and expertise in investment strategies and instruments 
• Improved budgeting capabilities; more predictable and sustainable revenue stream 

(returns) 
• Enables staff to develop knowledge without putting District assets at risk 
• Greater awareness of economic, market, and banking trends impacting District assets 
• More rapid response to and communication of pending or potential legal or regulatory 

changes on the horizon 
• Improved reporting capabilities for the Board (customization) 
• District does not relinquish ultimate authority over investments 

 
Attachment: 
PFM Investment Management/Advisory Services Presentation (dated 10/4/18) 
 
 
 

107 of 188



© PFM 1

Union Sanitary District
Investment Management/Advisory Services

October 4, 2018

PFM Asset Management LLC
pfm.com 

50 California Street
Suite 2300
San Francisco, CA 94111108 of 188



© PFM 2

Introduction to USD’s Team

109 of 188



© PFM 3

Managing Director - PFM Asset Management LLC

Engagement Oversight
15 years in the industry
15 years at PFM

Credit Rating Strategy & Debt Financing
15 years in the industry
2 years at PFM

Engagement Support
13 years in the industry
13 years at PFM

Key Professionals

Monique Spyke Tyler Old
Director – PFM Financial Advisory LLC

Sarah Meacham
Managing Director - PFM Asset Management LLC

110 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Talking points for Monique and Sarah: Our experience with public sector investing began here at PFM, where we both started as investment analysts in our Harrisburg headquarters where our trading desk is located. As PFM developed the next generation of investment talent, we transitioned to relationship management where we’re now able to provide more strategic portfolio direction on behalf of our clients. 



What We Do
F I N A N C I A L
A D V I S O R Y

A S S E T
M A N A G E M E N T
cash & liquidity 
management | short & 
intermediate term fixed 
income | multi-asset 
class | structured 
products

transaction 
management & bond 
pricing | credit 
strategies | capital 
planning

C O N S U LT I N G
fiscal planning & budgeting | 
organizational efficiency & 
effectiveness | policy & program 
analysis | workforce strategy & 
negotiation support

F I N A N C I A L
M O D E L I N G

A LT E R N AT I V E
F I N A N C E
public private partnerships & 
economic development | 
developer selection & 
negotiation | environmental 
finance

powered by Whitebirch

S P E C I A L I Z E D
S E R V I C E S
derivatives advisory | treasury 
management consulting | payment 
solutions | arbitrage rebate 
consulting | retirement finance

111 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Responsive and dedicated service team to complement District staff Portfolio optimized to meet cash flow needs and increase retainable earningsCompetitive trade executionConservative risk management and compliance frameworkReporting to provide transparency to the District and its stakeholdersMarket analysis and educationFull range of financial advisory services including financial analysis, debt management, financial planning and credit strategyDeep quantitative resources to analyze the cost benefit of various financing tools required to implement the District’s CIP



© PFM 5

PFM is a Market Leader

ASSET MANAGEMENT

• 38 years of public sector experience

• Managing assets in California since 1989

• $128.7 billion in total assets 

• $88.3 billion in discretionary 

managed assets 

• $40.4 billion in non-discretionary 

advised assets

• 233 professionals 

• Strong track record of success

FINANCIAL ADVISORY

• #1 financial advisor for 19 years

• Market leader

• Served as FA on 83 transactions for 

$6.9 billion of par in 2017

• Independent 

• Dedicated water/wastewater practice

• Nationwide experience with large 

and complex issuers

All data as of June 30, 2018, unless otherwise noted.
112 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
CA AUM 17.98 billionCA AUM & AUA  36.61 billionCA Special district AUM 4.33 billionWaste & Wastewater AUM: $4.0 billion



© PFM

Asset Management Services

113 of 188



© PFM 7

Scope of Asset 
Management 
Services

 Investment Policy Review

 Cash Flow Analysis

 Investment Strategy Development

 Performance Benchmark Selection

 Continual Portfolio Monitoring

 Continual Credit Review

 Competitive Purchasing and Economies of Scale

 Due Diligence Review on Investments

 Robust Accounting and Reporting

 In-Person Quarterly Meetings

 Client Education and Communication

114 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Time Allotment: 



DYNAMIC ASSET ALLOCATION

INTEGRATED MARKET/CREDIT ANALYSIS

DAILY REVIEW OF PORTFOLIO & CASH FLOWS

PFM’s Vision for Investment Program Success 

CASH FLOW  
ANALYSIS

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D AT I O N

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

S T A K E H O L D E R

T R A N S PA R E N C Y

INVESTMENT POLICY 

DEVELOPMENT

RISK

PREFERENCES

REPORTING

COMMUNICATIONS

EDUCATION

D I S T R I C T  O B J E C T I V E S  &  L I Q U I D I T Y  N E E D S  
115 of 188



9

Depth of Resources Supporting PFM Clients 

P O R T F O L I O
M A N A G E M E N T

meticulous market analysis and custom 
strategies allow us to help you seek safety, 
liquidity and yield proactively

25

C L I E N T
S E R V I C E

attentive relationship managers are aware 
of your evolving needs, meet with you 
regularly and act as an extension of staff

147

A C C O U N T I N G
&  R E P O R T I N G

you have online access to detailed recordkeeping and 
reconciliation, and receive comprehensive reports 
that explain performance in a transparent manner

25

C O M P L I A N C E
&  L E G A L

disciplined procedures, dedicated staff and 
integrated systems help manage risk and 
ensure adherence to your objectives and policy

8

C O M M U N I C AT I O N S
&  R E S E A R C H

regular commentaries, webinars and educational 
pieces keep you informed of market conditions and 
help you articulate decisions to stakeholders

10
215

Staff numbers as of March 31, 2018.

TOTAL PFM STAFF

8
116 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Focused knowledge and expertise in investment strategies and instrumentsExperience with budgeting and providing a predictable revenue streamStaff education on investment sector and topicsSafety of principalAwareness of economic, market, and banking trends impacting District AssetsRapid response to legal and regulatory changesCustomizable reports for the BoardClient retains authority for funds



© PFM 10

Team of Specialists in California Government Code Sectors

Corporates

Joseph Creason, CFA
Sr. Portfolio Manager

Mortgage-Backed 
Securities

Michael Downs, CFA
Portfolio Manager

Asset-Backed 
Securities

James Sims, CFA
Sr. Portfolio Manager

Money Market Funds 
& LGIPs

Michael Varano
Co-Head Portfolio Manager

Chief Investment Officer
Marty Margolis 

Chief Credit Officer 
Robert Cheddar, CFA 

Head Portfolio Manager

Treasury, Agency 
& Supranationals

Meredith LaBuda Sullivan
Portfolio Manager

Corporates-Financials
Leah Savageau, CFA

Credit Research

Short-Term Treasury, 
Agency & Supranationals

Ryan Petrasic
Trader

Proprietary Models
Bloomberg AIM

TradeWeb
MarketAxess

S&P Global Market 
Intelligence
CreditSights

Commercial Paper
& FDIC-Insured CDs

Kerri Staub
Sr. Portfolio Manager

Repurchase Agreements
Greta Foust

Trader

Money Market Funds & 
LGIPs

Jeff Rowe, CFA
Co-Head Portfolio Manager

Asset-Backed 
Securities

Giancarlo Morales-Belletti
Portfolio Manager

Municipals
Brian Raubenstine
Portfolio Manager

PFM’s Investment Services Group

Team that reviews portfolio rules, performs trade settlement, and data management

PFM’s Portfolio Strategies Group

Head of Portfolio 
Strategies Group

Kenneth Schiebel, CFA 

Sr. Portfolio 
Strategist

Jack Wilhelm

Sr. Quantitative 
Analyst

Gray Lepley

Director of Portfolio 
Strategies

Kyle Jones

Commercial Paper & 
Short-Term Agencies

Laura Creason
Trader

Sr. Quantitative 
Analyst

Ahsan Niaz

Analyst
Raphael Mettle

Corporates-Industrials
John Zhang

Credit Research

117 of 188



© PFM 11
Source: Bloomberg, Portfolio structure as of 2/28/2018. Current yields and maturities calculated as of 9/24/2018 based on the notes 
from the District’s September 10, 2018 board packet which indicate that no new securities have been purchased for the portfolio 
since June of 2017. Matured instruments are assumed to be converted to cash.  

Estimated Par Amount 
Number of Holdings 
Duration
Average Maturity
Average Maturity to Call 
Average Quality

$ 42,116,278
52

1.66 years
1.85 years
0.87 years

Aa1

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D A T I O N

Portfolio Assumptions
Security Portfolio Statistics
Excluding Cash & Pool Balances

Aaa
28%

Aa
6%

A
5%Baa

1%

Cash/LGIP
58%

NR
2%

Credit Quality (Moody's)

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

Overnight 1 Day-1 yr 1-2 yrs 2-3 yrs 3-4 yrs >5 yrs

Maturity Distribution
To Maturity To Call

Certificates of Deposit
4%

U.S. 
Treasury

3%

Callable 
Agency

24%

Non-
Callable 
Agency

1%

Corporate
7%

Municipals
3% LGIP

45%

Cash
13%

Sector Allocation

118 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Unrated Instruments, all CD’s from the following issuers Ally Bank Belmont Savings Bank Comenity Capital Bank (not a spelling error)Landside BankLandmark BankPonce De Leon Federal BankState Bank of IndiaSummit Community BankDevelop short-term portfolio for excess cashReallocate current portfolio holdingsIncrease earnings and return potential Further diversifyImprove credit quality 



© PFM 12

Identifying Investable Assets With The District’s Cash Flow Analysis

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D A T I O N

Based on cash flow analysis provided by USD through February 2018

Liquidity Core
• Manage liquidity needs
• Lower-risk investment strategy
• Lower expected earnings
• Cash and equivalents (0-1 year)

• Funds not expected to be spent for the foreseeable future
• More volatile
• High quality fixed income (1-5 years)

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

Ju
l-1

6

Au
g-

16

Se
p-

16

O
ct

-1
6

N
ov

-1
6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n-

17

Fe
b-

17

M
ar

-1
7

Ap
r-1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Ju
n-

17

Ju
l-1

7

Au
g-

17

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

M
illi

on
s

Cumulative Revenues vs. Expenses 
FY 2016/2017 - FY 2017/2018

Expenses Revenues

$33 million
excess over two years

Liquid

Flows
to Core

119 of 188



© PFM 13

$0

$20

$40

$60

$80

$100

$120

$140

May-15 Nov-15 May-16 Nov-16 May-17 Nov-17 May-18

M
ill

io
ns

 Given the predictable nature of cash flows, the District has a substantial core portfolio of approximately $69 million

Core Portfolio

Total Combined Balances
May 2015 – May 2018

Liquidity Balance 
• Highly liquid
• Stable returns
• Low market risk
• Flexible

Core Balance 
• Longer 

investments 
• Higher returns 

over time

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D A T I O N

Based on Data provided by USD from 5/31/2015-5/31/2018.
120 of 188



© PFM 14

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

U
S 

Tr
ea

su
ry

Ag
en

cy

M
un

ic
ip

al
 B

on
ds

Su
pr

an
at

io
na

ls

C
or

po
ra

te
s

N
eg

ot
ia

bl
e 

C
D

s

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 P
ap

er

AB
S/

M
BS

Ba
nk

 D
ep

os
it

LA
IF

M
on

ey
 M

ar
ke

t F
un

d

R
ep

ur
ch

as
e 

Ag
re

em
en

ts

C
AM

P

Policy Limit Code Limit Current Allocation

Investment Policy Overview

Source: Government Code Section 53601 and the’ District’s Investment Policy Current allocations based on the District’s February 2018 holdings. 

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D A T I O N

121 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes




© PFM 15

Supranationals

 Multilateral organization of 
governments for which the United 
States is a participant, shareholder, 
and/or voting member

 International financial institutions 
generally established by agreements 
among nations with member nations 
contributing capital and participating 
in management

 Tend to have excellent credit quality 
due to multi-national ownership and 
commitment, long and successful 
operating histories, and significant 
capital from a diverse capital base

Source: World Bank.

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D A T I O N

122 of 188



© PFM 16

Mortgage Backed Securities

 Collateral Analysis

− Property type – residential vs. commercial
− Loan-level details – loan size and rate; average Loan-to-

Value ratio and Fair Isaac Corporation score
− Origination details – loan originator, purpose
− Exposure and concentration risks – geographic 

dispersion

 Structure Analysis

− Pass-through vs. securitization
− Weighted average loan age, weighted average maturity, 

option-adjusted duration, convexity
− Historic prepay analysis and seasoning
− Paydown windows using different PSA assumptions

 Pricing Analysis

− I-spread
− Option-adjusted spread
− Relative value

B U I L D I N G  T H E

F O U N D A T I O N

123 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
SUPRANATIONAL% U.S.�SHAREHOLDINGInternational Bank for Reconstruction and Development �(World Bank)16%International Finance Corporation (IFC)24%Inter-American Development Bank (IDB)30%Asian Development Bank (ADB)16%



© PFM 17

Maturity Treasury Federal
Agency

Commercial 
Paper A Corporate

3-Month 2.20% 2.18% 2.33%

6-Month 2.36% 2.30% 2.54%

9-Month 2.40% 2.37% 2.68%

1-Year 2.56% 2.57% 2.85%

2-Year 2.82% 2.82% 3.16%

3-Year 2.88% 2.89% 3.34%

5-Year 2.95% 3.05% 3.54%

Evaluating Permitted Sectors

Commercial Paper and Corporate Notes

Source: Bloomberg, PFM Trading Desk. Commercial Paper, Corporates, and Supranational yield information as of 9/30/18. BVAL yield
curves used for Treasury and Corporates. TradeWeb for Federal Agency yields. ICE BAML Fixed Rate ABS Master Index data as of 
9/30/2018. Yields for indicative purposes only; actual yields may vary by issue.

Asset-Backed Securities: Fixed Rate ABS Yields

1.00%
1.50%
2.00%
2.50%
3.00%
3.50%

Sep-17 Mar-18 Sep-18

ICE BofAML Fixed Rate ABS Index 2-Year U.S. Treasury

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

0.30%

1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0
Years to Maturity

Supra Avg. 10/01/18 Supra 12 Mos Max

Supranational Government Spread

124 of 188



© PFM 18

Evaluation of Sector Spreads

Source: ICE BofAML Indices, as of 9/30/18.

1-5 Year Indices

5

52

27
35

12

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Agency Corporate
(A-AAA)

MBS ABS (AAA) Supranationals
(AAA)

Ba
si

s 
Po

in
ts

 S
pr

ea
d

5 year range 90th Percentile

10th Percentile

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

125 of 188



© PFM 19

Improving Return to Positively Impact Budgeting Process and Outcome

Example portfolio yields are based on the ICE BofAML 1-5 Year indices for all sectors except for the mortgage-backed and asset-
backed securities which use the ICE of BofAML 0-5 Indices as of September 24, 2018. LAIF yield as of October 31 2018 . Current 
Portfolio Yield and Annual earnings sourced from August 27th board packet for USD
Source: Bloomberg.

Yield
Annual Earnings

Based on $47 
million

2.78% $1,306,600 

2.88% $1,354,540 

3.01% $1,415,640 

3.06% $1,437,730 

3.07% $1,444,780 

100%

15%

15%

25%

40%

30%

40%

40%

50%

10%

10%

10%

10%

25%

25%

25%

10%

10%

10%

Sample 1-5 Year Portfolio Allocation

USD's Current Security Portfolio Treasury

Agency Supranational

Corp (A-AAA) Mortgage-Backed Securities

Asset Backed Securities

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

126 of 188



© PFM 20

How Does the District Maintain Control with Discretionary Management?

PFM prides itself on communication and transparency.

• Same day 
trade ticket 
delivery to 
District

• Independent 
confirmation 
directly from 
broker 

• Assets are 
held at an 
independent 
third-party 
custodian

• Detailed 
monthly 
statements 
and quarterly 
performance 
reports

Investment 
Policy Strategy Execution Custodian Reporting

• Sector and 
issuer limits 
and credit 
quality 
established 
by the District

• Determined 
collaboratively 
through 
frequent 
discussions 
with the 
District 

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

127 of 188



© PFM 21

PFM’s Enhanced Approach to Credit

P H I L O S O P H Y

• Use credit to safely seek enhanced returns
• Approach credit with a focus on prudent risk management
• Conduct research “on the desk” by portfolio managers, traders, and analysts
• Utilize proprietary models to maintain independence

C R E D I T  S C R E E N I N G P R O C E S S

• Determine universe of issuers
• Narrow list based on ratings criteria, supply, and value
• Industry screen – growth outlook and prospects; regulatory environment
• Issuer screen – quantitative analysis; in-depth review of financials

I M P L E M E N TAT I O N AN D  M O N I T O R I N G

• Maintain approved issuer universe with exposure and maturity horizon limits
• Formal credit meetings with Chief Credit Officer, CIO, credit analysts, and traders
• Proprietary assessment and mapping to PFM credit tiers
• Ongoing evaluation with an emphasis on qualitative assessment

2%

1.75%

1%

0.75%

long term

5%

5%

3%

2%

short term

Maximum allocation

BBB*
minimum 

investment 
grade

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

*BBB-rated securities are not permitted per California Government Code. For illustrative purposes only.

128 of 188



© PFM 22

Portfolio Decisions Informed by Research and Analysis

Investment 
Committee Credit Process Market 

Intelligence

Curve Placement Bloomberg

External 
Research

Real-time Trading 
Platforms

Approved Lists

Issuer Outlook

Issuer Monitoring

Sector Allocation

Duration Targets

Risk Management

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

129 of 188



© PFM 23

Investment strategy
Trade execution
Competitive bidding
Trade coordination

PFM-
approved 
Broker/
Dealers

Tr
ad

e 
Ex

ec
ut

io
n

Investment Advice

Cash Transactions
Cash only moves between the 

District and trustee/custodian bank

Trade Settlement
Via Federal Reserve “Delivery 

versus Payment” system
or Depository Trust Company

Cash/Securities Information

Investment Approval

PFM’s Role in the Flow of Funds

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

130 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes




© PFM 24

Portfolio Compliance and Trade Execution Efficiency

 Compliance software is integrated into our trading platform to ensure compliance with the District’s Investment Policy 
in a real-time environment

 Helps ensure compliance with investment policy in a real-time environment, improves the efficiency of trade 

execution, and expands portfolio modeling capabilities both pre- and post-trade

 Automates communication of trades with the custodian of choice

•Investment Policy
•Trust Indenture 

Portfolio 
Structure

•Issuer Concentrations
•Sector Concentrations
•Maturity Restrictions
•Prohibited Investments

Bloomberg 
AIM

Custody Bank
Trade Settlement

Warns
Prohibits
Approves

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

131 of 188



© PFM 25

Daily Compliance Monitoring

For illustrative purposes only. 

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

 Pre-trade compliance checks verify if proposed trade complies with all compliance rules

 If trade violates rules, “alert status” is triggered and notifies compliance department via Violation Manager Tool in AIM 

 Any alert violations must be reviewed and approved or rejected by a member of the compliance team

132 of 188



© PFM 26

PFM’s Scale Provides Greater Access in a Competitive Market 

 PFM works with nearly 60 brokers or dealers

 We integrate multiple trading systems 
(Bloomberg, Tradeweb, Market Axess) to 
efficiently solicit trades

 We are able to identify those brokers or dealers 
with the largest amount of inventory for each 
specific security type

 We strategically select which brokers to include 
in the competitive bidding process with the goal 
of achieving best prices for our clients

 Bloomberg AIM helps ensure trade compliance 
with clients’ investment policies 

Disclosure: This graphic is for illustrative purposes only. It may not reflect the actual inventory levels or bidding activity 
of broker/dealers. The estimated inventory levels are derived from internal sources at PFM Asset Management LLC. 

High Medium Low None
Scale for Quality and Inventory

Broker Treasuries Agencies CP/CDs Corporates MBS ABS Municipals
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59

PR
IM

A
R

Y D
EA

LER
S

PFM Broker Quality Assessment

Security Type

R
EG

IO
N

A
L B

R
O

K
ER

/D
EA

LER
S

M
/W

B
E B

R
O

K
ER

S

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

133 of 188



© PFM 27

Issuer: FHLB 
Coupon:    3.50% 
Maturity: 12/09/17
Par Amount: $2,671,000

Actual Trade

PFM’s Competitive Bidding Process Creates Real Savings

For illustrative purposes only. 

P R O A C T I V E

M A N A G E M E N T

$2,817,664 

2,798,241

$2,785,000

$2,790,000

$2,795,000

$2,800,000

$2,805,000

$2,810,000

$2,815,000

$2,820,000

RBC WFS CS MS JPM CS DB BAML JEFF HSBC UBS GS
2.50%

2.52%

2.54%

2.56%

2.58%

2.60%

2.62%

2.64%

2.66%

2.68%

2.70%

Principal Yield

Price Difference:
$19,422

134 of 188



© PFM 28

Flow of Information Supporting the District’s Needs 

M O N T H L Y  &  Q U A R T E R L Y  R E P O R T S

O N L I N E  A C C O U N T  A C C E S S

S T A K E H O L D E R

T R A N S P A R E N C Y

C O M P R E H E N S I V E  
R E P O R T I N G  

P A C K A G E  

• In-person reviews with your 
relationship manager

• Full-time, in-house accounting 
department that can help answer 
questions

• 24-hour online account access
• Complete GASB 31 and GASB 40 

information

C U S T O M I Z E D  
R E P O R T I N G

• Projected earnings analysis
• Transaction and strategy review
• Sector allocation and credit quality

135 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Full reporting and customized and ad-hoc reports per request.



© PFM 29

PFM Communicates Educational Opportunities and Content Regularly  
EMAIL INVITATIONS & 

ONLINE REGISTRATION COMMUNICATIONS DISTINCT TO PFM

S T A K E H O L D E R

T R A N S P A R E N C Y

136 of 188



© PFM 30

Financial Advisory Services

137 of 188



© PFM 31

Scope of 
Financial 
Advisory 
Services

 Financial Policy Development

• Long Term Strategic Planning

• SB1029 Compliance

 Rating Strategy Development

 Debt Financing Analysis 

• Developing a Plan of Finance

• Transaction Structuring

• Determining Method of Sale

• Scheduling and Coordinating

• Procurement of Requisite Services

• Developing Financing Documents

• Responding to Requests

138 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Time Allotment: 



© PFM 32

PFM’s Specialized Experience with California Wastewater Finance Issues

Financial Feasibility 
Analysis

Multi-Participant 
Conjunctive Use 
Project Modeling

Creation of a 
Mezzanine Lien

Launch of an 
Inaugural Credit

Bank Direct 
Purchase

Credit Rating 
Upgrades

Communities 
Facilities District 
(CFD) Financing

Variable Rate 
Financing Program

Revolving Credit 
Facility for Interim 

Financing

Commercial Paper 
Program

SRF Experience
Springing Indenture 

for Elimination of 
DSRF Requirement

We provide both financial and investment advisory services to these clients.
139 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Financial advisor to more than 30 California water and wastewater agencies, enterprise funds and special districtsIn-depth understanding of state water supply and conveyanceSuccessful track record of favorable rating outcomes for California retail and wholesale agenciesExperience beyond traditional municipal finance productsTechnical and quantitative resources supporting bespoke modeling and project-specific engagements Regular sponsor, speaker and participant in California water/wastewater industry organizationsClient AUMContra Costa $122.7 millionNorthern Water $32.8 millionSanta Margarita $86.7 millionInland Empire $21 million (CAMP tied)West Basin $35.5 millionCoachella Valley 459.9 milion



© PFM 33

Financing the District’s Capital Improvement Program

 The District prudently maintains a 20-year CIP, with total infrastructure needs in excess of $750MM over the next 20-
years

 Funding needs over the next five years of approximately $245MM, including $185MM of Priority 1 and Priority 2 
projects

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

Priority 1 Projects Priority 2 Projects Priority 3 Projects

Annual CIP Spend by Project Priority

Priority 1 
Projects

12%

Priority 2 
Projects

46%

Priority 3 
Projects

42%

Total CIP Spend by Project Priority

140 of 188



© PFM 34

Current Market Themes

 Stable Credit Trends for CA Water/Wastewater

• Both Moody’s and S&P have implemented “scorecard” approaches; Fitch is expected to follow suit following 
adoption of a similar framework for its public power criteria

• The District is well positioned to secure “AA” category ratings based on its service area and exceptional liquidity 
profile, offset by capacity fee variability and large projected capital program

 A Debt Policy is Now Required…Even for SRF Loans

• SB1029 requires all issuers have a board-approved debt policy in place

 Tax-Exempt Bond Markets Remain Strong

• While tax-exempt interest rates have been drifting higher, credit spreads have compressed significantly for CA 
essential utility credits

 Bank Capacity for Interim Financing

• Ample bank credit capacity to support interim financing programs (e.g. Commercial Paper, Lines and Letters of 
Credit)

 Clean Water SRF Program is Oversubscribed

141 of 188



© PFM 35

Developments with the CA Clean Water State Revolving Fund

 The CWSRF Policy was last amended in 2015. Since then, demand 
on the CWSRF Program has greatly increased, and changes are 
being proposed to better manage the increased demand. 

 Introduction of a “Fundable List” to identify eligible projects the 
SWRCB intends to finance during the state fiscal year

• Projects will be scored based on (a) primary, (b) secondary and (c) 
readiness score

• SWRCB will set a cutoff score for inclusion on the Fundable List

• Projects that are not financed by year end will carry over

 SWRCB will implement amendments possibly as soon as November 6

 Amendments should provide some degree of certainty with respect to 
the District’s probability of receiving additional CWSRF funding; 
planning for alternative funding sources

142 of 188



Our clients have individual needs, and our tailored advice reflects 

this. We have the flexibility to support the largest endeavors any 

client could contemplate with teams that maintain the camaraderie, 

the collaboration and the creativity that define working with PFM. 

We combine superior financial advice, disciplined management and 

ingenuity to build, power, move and educate.

At PFM, asset 
managers, financial 
advisors and 
consultants partner 
with clients to 
transform their world.

143 of 188



© PFM

Appendix

144 of 188



© PFM 38

Fee Schedule

145 of 188



© PFM 39

Total Proposed Fees

146 of 188



© PFM 40

Fee Calculation Basis

 Our fee estimates for investment-related tasks are based on assets under management (per the tiered fee schedule 
below) or advisement (flat fee). 

 First $25 million = 10 basis points (0.10%) 

 Next $25 million = 8 basis points (0.08%) 

 Next $50 million = 7 basis points (0.07%) 

 Assets over $100 million = 6 basis points (0.06%) 

 For these services, we propose to bill the District monthly in arrears based on the average amortized cost value of 
assets under management for the month. No fee will be charged for assets invested in the Local Agency Investment 
Fund (“LAIF”). Our annual minimum fee is $25,000. 

147 of 188



© PFM 41

Financial Advisory Fees

 Review the overall financial status of the District’s funds and provide appropriate financial policies for short- and long-
term investment strategies. 

 Assist the District with forming and implementing a rating strategy to optimize the District’s credit ratings. 

 Assist District with options and cost benefit analysis of using Bank loans, SRF loans, grants and/or debt financing as it 
affects funds available for portfolio investing. 

Hourly Rates
Employee Title Rate

Managing Director $375

Director $350

Senior Managing Consultant $325

Senior Analyst / Analyst $300

Average Hourly Rate 

= $338

Average Estimated Hours per Month* 
= 2.5 hours

$845/month or $10,140/year

148 of 188



© PFM 42

INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES

S A F E T Y
What do you consider 

safe?

L I Q U I D I T Y
How much liquidity is 

needed?

Y I E L D
What are the 

performance objectives?

• Sector types

• Credit quality

• Maximum maturity

• Liquidity

• Diversification 
requirements

• Political sensitivities

• Overnight 
investment vehicles 
(e.g., LAIF, MMF)

• Sizing liquidity needs

• Short-term 
investments

• Maturities matched 
to expenditures

• Easily sellable

• Yield

• Return

• Investment earnings

• Portfolio growth

• Meeting budget

Helping the District Define What Safety, Liquidity and Return Means to You

RELAT IVE CONCEPTS 

THAT W ILL DRIVE 

YOUR INVESTMENT 

STRATEGY 

DEVELOPMENT AND 

RISK/RETURN 

PREFERENCES

149 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes




© PFM 43

Mortgage Backed Securities

 An amortizing debt instrument backed by a pool of mortgages which serve as collateral and source of cash flows to 
service debt

150 of 188



© PFM 44

Fixed Income Sector Returns (1-5 Year Indices)

Source: ICE BofAML Indices. MBS and ABS indices are 0-5 year, based on weighted average life. As of 9/30/2018.

0.65%

0.86%

2.24%

1.62%

1.40%

0.0%

0.5%

1.0%

1.5%

2.0%

2.5%

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y

Ag
en

cy

C
or

po
ra

te
 (I

G
)

M
BS

AB
S 

(A
AA

)
-0.19%

0.29%
0.17%

-0.71%

0.87%

-0.8%

-0.4%

0.0%

0.4%

0.8%

1.2%

U
.S

. T
re

as
ur

y

Ag
en

cy

C
or

po
ra

te
 (I

G
)

M
BS

AB
S 

(A
AA

)

2017 Return 2018 YTD Through 9/30/18

151 of 188



© PFM 45

Short-Term Credit Spreads Have Tightened
 With commercial paper and bank certificate of deposit (CP/CD) yield spreads grinding to 12-month lows, short-term 

credit instruments have begun to look somewhat more expensive relative to Treasuries and Agencies 

Source: Bloomberg, PFMAM Trading Desk, as of 9/28/18. Not a specific recommendation. 6-mo CP yield spread based on 
A1/P1 rated CP index.

1.60%

1.80%

2.00%

2.20%

2.40%

2.60%

2.80%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Maturity in Months

Money Market Yield Curves

CD/CP Average

Agencies

Treasuries

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

0.30%

0.40%

0.50%

0.60%

Se
p-

17

O
ct

-1
7

N
ov

-1
7

D
ec

-1
7

Ja
n-

18

Fe
b-

18

M
ar

-1
8

Ap
r-1

8

M
ay

-1
8

Ju
n-

18

Ju
l-1

8

Au
g-

18

Se
p-

18

Yield Spread on 6-month Commercial 
Paper over T-Bill

12-Month Low: +10 bps

Current: +17 bps

152 of 188

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Prime MMF Assets: WMMFAMNA IndexGovt MMF Assets: WMMFAMAC Index



© PFM 46

0.00%

0.10%

0.20%

0.30%

1.0 1.5 2.0 2.5 3.0 3.5 4.0 4.5 5.0
Years to Maturity

Supra Avg. 10/01/18 Supra 12 Mos Max

Potential Yield Benefit from Supranationals

 Carry more yield spread and offer an attractive alternative in the high-quality government agency space

 Seasonal issuers – tend to issue heavily in Q4 and Q1, which may create trading opportunities

Source: Bloomberg, MarketAxess, BofA Merrill Lynch 1-3 Year Indices, PFMAM Trading Desk. As of September 30, 2018 unless otherwise noted. G Spread is the 
difference in yield compared to a Treasury note of comparable maturity. Please refer to the accompanying Important Disclosures.

S U P R A  G  S P R E A D

Period Ended 09/30/2018

September 30, 2018 Effective 
Duration Yield YTD 1 Month 3 Month 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

U.S. Treasury 1.80 2.80% 0.29% (0.12%) 0.20% 0.04% 0.39% 0.56% 

Agency 1.68 2.80% 0.53% (0.04%) 0.32% 0.34% 0.59% 0.74% 

Supranationals 1.87 2.90% 0.45% (0.08%) 0.30% 0.25% 0.61% 0.76% 

153 of 188



© PFM 47

Fixed Income Investment Strategy Committee

 Formal meetings every month, and as necessary 
based on market events

Develops overall view of the economy and the 
fixed income markets

– Assesses relative value of sectors

– Identifies value on the yield curve

– Determines sector allocations

– Considers overall yield curve positioning

 Supported by the firm’s Portfolio Strategies Group

M E M B E R R O L E  AT  P F M

Marty Margolis*
Committee Chair Chief Investment Officer

Robert Cheddar, CFA* Chief Credit Officer /
Head Portfolio Manager

Joseph Creason, CFA Sr. Portfolio Manager 

Michael Downs, CFA Portfolio Manager

Matt Eisel, CFA* Head of Structured 
Investments

Kyle Jones Director of Portfolio 
Strategies Group

Biagio Manieri, Ph.D., CFA* Director of Research

Jeffrey Rowe, CFA* Sr. Portfolio Manager

Ken Schiebel, CFA* Head of Portfolio 
Strategies Group

Michael Varano* Head Portfolio Manager, 
LGIPs

Leo Karwejna (ex-officio)* Chief Compliance
Officer

*Denotes Managing Director
154 of 188



© PFM 48

Non-Discretionary Trade Communication and Approval Process
Our Team Generates

Investment Ideas

• Identifies investments that support USD’s strategy

• Shops for securities with best relative value

• Provides security-specific recommendations to USD staff

USD Retains Control

• Partner in strategy development

• USD approves all transactions

We Complete Trade

• Pre-trade, post-trade compliance procedures 

• Competitively shops all trades

• Executes trade with brokers

• Coordinate trade settlement with USD’s custodian

• Provides comprehensive reporting

For illustrative purposes only.155 of 188



© PFM 49

Portfolio Reconciliation

• Electronic interface with U.S. Bank to help ensure seamless communication of District portfolio to our 

systems, efficient trade settlement and regular automated reconciliation.

• An accountant will be assigned to the relationship whose responsibility will be to reconcile with your 

custodian.

• The first business day of the month

• The last business day of the month

• Weekly throughout the month

• A second accountant performs an independent reconciliation on a monthly basis.

• Both security positions and month to date transactions are reconciled.

• Holdings reconciliation: CUSIP, par value, coupon rate and maturity date

• Transaction reconciliation: compares par value, settle data, settlement amount, CUSIP, coupon and 

maturity date 

• Discrepancies will be communicated to the custody bank and we will work with your custodian to resolve.

156 of 188



© PFM 50

Data entered into 
yellow cells from 
the monthly 
statement

G/L entries are 
automatically 
calculated

Accounting Tool to Simplify General Ledger Entries

157 of 188



© PFM 51

Key Features of PFM’s Client Reporting Website

 24-hour access to your account information over the internet using standard browsers—no 
additional components or software installations required

 View all accounts in one login

 Consolidated electronic statements

 View and download daily holdings

 Query and download transactions

 Unique login and password for each user

158 of 188



© PFM 52

 Monthly & Quarterly Market Updates

 Investment Seminars (CPE Credit)

• Regional Training Sessions 

• Week-long Client Training Sessions

 Customized Training and Education

 PFM “InvestEd” & Thought Leadership Pieces

• Rolling Down the Yield Curve

• Supras: World of Opportunity

• Money Market Fund Reform

 Research White Papers

 Online Webinars

• Economic and Financial Markets Update: Our Outlook for 2018

Client Communication and Education

159 of 188



© PFM 53

Composite Characteristics

Composite AUM: $8,483 million

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

U.S.
Treasury

Federal
Agency

Corporate CP, CD,
BA

Agency
MBS

ABS Other

Sector Allocation

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

0-1 Years 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years

Maturity Distribution
1-5 Year Fixed Income Composite ICE BofAML 1-5 Yr UST Index

Credit Quality (Standard & Poor’s)

1-5 Year 
Composite

ICE BofAML
1-5 Year

US Treasury
AAA / A-1+ 9.4% -

AA / A-1 71.8% 100.0%

A 15.9% -

BBB 1.5% -

Not Rated 1.4% -

Portfolio Statistics

1-5 Year
Composite

ICE BofAML
1-5 Year

US Treasury
Yield (%) 2.69% 2.58%

WAM (years) 2.70 2.70

Average Credit AA AA

Duration (years) 2.37 2.58

As of June 30, 2018

Source: ICE BofAML Indexes.
160 of 188



© PFM

Any investment advice in this document is provided solely by PFM Asset Management LLC. PFM Asset 
Management LLC (“PFM”) is an investment advisor registered under the Investment Advisers Act of 
1940. PFM Advisors is a division of PFM Asset Management LLC. Public Financial Management Inc. is 
not providing and is not responsible for any investment advice herein.

This material is based on information obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable and 
available to the public; however, PFM Asset Management LLC cannot guarantee its accuracy, 
completeness, or suitability. This material is for general information purposes only and is not intended to 
provide specific advice or a specific recommendation. All statements as to what will or may happen 
under certain circumstances are based on assumptions, some but not all of which are noted in the 
presentation. Assumptions may or may not be proven correct as actual events occur, and results may 
depend on events outside of your or our control. Changes in assumptions may have a material effect on 
results. Past performance does not necessarily reflect and is not a guarantee of future results. The 
information contained in this presentation is not an offer to purchase or sell any securities.

Disclosures

161 of 188



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 
DATE: October 11, 2018 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 

Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach 
Skip Calvo, Purchasing Agent 
Nina Narvaez, Administrative Specialist  
 

  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 15    - Meeting of October 22, 2018 
 Information Item:   CAL-Card Quarterly Merchant Activity Report 
  
Background 
 
The attached CAL-Card Merchant Spend Analysis details the CAL-Card activity for the first 
quarter of FY 2019. This covers transactions from the CAL-Card billing period July 23, 2018 
through September 22, 2018. During this quarter, we had 285 transactions totaling $81,574.73. 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: Merchant Spend Analysis Report 
   

162 of 188



State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 BUSINESS 9399 CITY OF FREMONT FREMONT CA $ 8,640.00 6 $ 1,440.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 8,640.00 10.59% 6 $ 0.00

EXPENS DEV SVCS

47963 BUSINESS 8699 WEF REG 703-684-2400 VA 4,673.00 5 934.60 0.00 0 4,673.00 5.73% 5 0.00

EXPENS

47970 OFFICE 7399 SMRP MTGS ATLANTA GA 4,640.00 3 1,546.67 0.00 0 4,640.00 5.69% 3 0.00

SERVICES

47963 BUSINESS 8699 CALIFORNIA 510-3827800 CA 3,398.00 17 199.88 0.00 0 3,398.00 4.17% 17 0.00

EXPENS WATER ENVIRONM

47963 BUSINESS 8699 CASA 916-4460388 CA 2,300.00 2 1,150.00 0.00 0 2,300.00 2.82% 2 0.00

EXPENS

47970 OFFICE 7399 TFS*THERMOELEC 800-532-4752 FL 2,300.00 1 2,300.00 0.00 0 2,300.00 2.82% 1 0.00

SERVICES TRONNA

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 BUCKLES- SMITH 408-280-7777 CA 2,090.00 1 2,090.00 0.00 0 2,090.00 2.56% 1 0.00

TRADE ELECTRIC

289779 COMPUTER 4816 DRI*FLIR SYSTEMS ORDERFIND.COM MN 2,030.00 2 1,015.00 0.00 0 2,030.00 2.49% 2 70.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5200 THE HOME DEPOT UNION CITY CA 1,897.30 4 474.33 0.00 0 1,897.30 2.33% 4 168.55

TRADE #0635

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 ALLIED 800-433-5700 TX 1,723.48 3 574.49 0.00 0 1,723.48 2.11% 3 147.15

E ELECTRONICS INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5039 IN *THE 925-9697508 CA 1,701.21 1 1,701.21 0.00 0 1,701.21 2.09% 1 0.00

TRADE CONSTRUCTION 

ZONE

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMZN MKTP US AMZN.COM/BILL WA 1,677.06 9 186.34 0.00 0 1,677.06 2.06% 9 75.41

SUPPLIES

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 HACH COMPANY 9706631377 CO 1,660.50 2 830.25 0.00 0 1,660.50 2.04% 2 137.68

TRADE

47963 BUSINESS 8699 WEF MAIN 703-684-2400 VA 1,304.00 4 326.00 0.00 0 1,304.00 1.60% 4 0.00

EXPENS

47978 VEHICLE 7538 BAYCOUNTIESDIES FREMONT CA 1,270.48 4 317.62 0.00 0 1,270.48 1.56% 4 0.82

EXPENSE ELSERVINC

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 ERIN ROPE 708-377-1084 IL 1,250.46 1 1,250.46 0.00 0 1,250.46 1.53% 1 0.00

TRADE CORPORATION

47978 VEHICLE 5533 FREMONT FORD NEWARK CA 1,161.59 1 1,161.59 0.00 0 1,161.59 1.42% 1 0.00

EXPENSE

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     1

163 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137553455&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137553455&MCC=9399&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=CITY%20OF%20FREMONT%20DEV%20SVCS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163193326&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2400&MNM=WEF%20REG
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160391107&MCC=7399&MST=GA&MCITY=ATLANTA&MNM=SMRP%20MTGS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126086712&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3827800&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20WATER%20ENVIRONM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126086712&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=510-3827800&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20WATER%20ENVIRONM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154391946&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=916-4460388&MNM=CASA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=247871011&MCC=7399&MST=FL&MCITY=800-532-4752&MNM=TFS*THERMOELECTRONNA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=247871011&MCC=7399&MST=FL&MCITY=800-532-4752&MNM=TFS*THERMOELECTRONNA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255301098&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=408-280-7777&MNM=BUCKLES-%20SMITH%20ELECTRIC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255301098&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=408-280-7777&MNM=BUCKLES-%20SMITH%20ELECTRIC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=236350061&MCC=4816&MST=MN&MCITY=ORDERFIND.COM&MNM=DRI*FLIR%20SYSTEMS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%230635
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165965521&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%230635
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208801998&MCC=5964&MST=TX&MCITY=800-433-5700&MNM=ALLIED%20ELECTRONICS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208801998&MCC=5964&MST=TX&MCITY=800-433-5700&MNM=ALLIED%20ELECTRONICS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=925-9697508&MNM=IN%20*THE%20CONSTRUCTION%20ZONE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=925-9697508&MNM=IN%20*THE%20CONSTRUCTION%20ZONE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5039&MST=CA&MCITY=925-9697508&MNM=IN%20*THE%20CONSTRUCTION%20ZONE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219628640&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=125855713&MCC=5085&MST=CO&MCITY=9706631377&MNM=HACH%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=163193326&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2400&MNM=WEF%20MAIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140621988&MCC=7538&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=BAYCOUNTIESDIESELSERVINC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140621988&MCC=7538&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=BAYCOUNTIESDIESELSERVINC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140095501&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=708-377-1084&MNM=ERIN%20ROPE%20CORPORATION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140095501&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=708-377-1084&MNM=ERIN%20ROPE%20CORPORATION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=239860167&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=FREMONT%20FORD


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 OFFICE 4812 JACK DOHENY 248-349-0904 MI $ 975.00 1 $ 975.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 975.00 1.20% 1 $ 0.00

SUPPLIES COMPANIES

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5965 OFFICE DEPOT  800-463-3768 CA 962.48 2 481.24 0.00 0 962.48 1.18% 2 85.50

E 1135

47965 HOTELS 3509 MARRIOTT MONTEREY CA 945.20 2 472.60 0.00 0 945.20 1.16% 2 0.00

MONTEREY BAY

47963 BUSINESS 8641 APHA STANDARD 202-777-2742 DC 900.00 1 900.00 0.00 0 900.00 1.10% 1 0.00

EXPENS METHOD

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 TRAMONT 414-9678800 WI 831.00 1 831.00 0.00 0 831.00 1.02% 1 41.55

TRADE MANUFACTURING

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 SOL*SNAP-ON 877-740-1900 WI 822.01 4 205.50 0.00 0 822.01 1.01% 4 70.60

TRADE INDUSTRIAL

47963 BUSINESS 8398 PAYPAL *CWEA 402-935-7733 CA 800.00 1 800.00 0.00 0 800.00 0.98% 1 0.00

EXPENS

47970 OFFICE 7372 TRUGRIT TRACTION TRUGRITTRACTI FL 798.92 1 798.92 0.00 0 798.92 0.98% 1 0.00

SERVICES

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 MANCO 707-258-6140 CA 790.77 1 790.77 0.00 0 790.77 0.97% 1 39.54

TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 FRANK A OLSEN 925-961-8888 CA 765.68 1 765.68 0.00 0 765.68 0.94% 1 38.28

TRADE COMPANY

47970 OFFICE 7394 PETERSON SAN 510-357-6200 CA 735.80 2 367.90 0.00 0 735.80 0.90% 2 0.00

SERVICES LEANDRO

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMZN MKTP US AMZN.COM/BILL WA 725.47 4 181.37 0.00 0 725.47 0.89% 4 52.38

SUPPLIES AMZN.COM/BIL

47963 BUSINESS 8299 WWW.LORMAN.CO WWW.LORMAN.C WI 719.95 2 359.98 0.00 0 719.95 0.88% 2 0.00

EXPENS M O

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON AMZN.COM/BILL WA 674.18 3 224.73 0.00 0 674.18 0.83% 3 8.82

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS

47963 BUSINESS 8999 IN *KEN GRADY 415-8835924 CA 639.86 1 639.86 0.00 0 639.86 0.78% 1 54.99

EXPENS COMPANY, IN

235401 REGISTRATION 8111 LIEBERTCASS 310-981-2000 CA 620.00 3 206.67 0.00 0 620.00 0.76% 3 0.00

47971 OFFICE 5734 SHAREPOINT 703-964-2002 VA 602.00 1 602.00 0.00 0 602.00 0.74% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES XPERTS LLC - E

47963 BUSINESS 8244 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 590.00 1 590.00 0.00 0 590.00 0.72% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     2

164 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160376577&MCC=4812&MST=MI&MCITY=248-349-0904&MNM=JACK%20DOHENY%20COMPANIES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160376577&MCC=4812&MST=MI&MCITY=248-349-0904&MNM=JACK%20DOHENY%20COMPANIES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120168084&MCC=5965&MST=CA&MCITY=800-463-3768&MNM=OFFICE%20DEPOT%20%201135
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120168084&MCC=5965&MST=CA&MCITY=800-463-3768&MNM=OFFICE%20DEPOT%20%201135
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219686002&MCC=3509&MST=CA&MCITY=MONTEREY&MNM=MARRIOTT%20MONTEREY%20BAY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219686002&MCC=3509&MST=CA&MCITY=MONTEREY&MNM=MARRIOTT%20MONTEREY%20BAY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=122867672&MCC=8641&MST=DC&MCITY=202-777-2742&MNM=APHA%20STANDARD%20METHOD
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=122867672&MCC=8641&MST=DC&MCITY=202-777-2742&MNM=APHA%20STANDARD%20METHOD
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=142940265&MCC=5046&MST=WI&MCITY=414-9678800&MNM=TRAMONT%20MANUFACTURING
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=142940265&MCC=5046&MST=WI&MCITY=414-9678800&MNM=TRAMONT%20MANUFACTURING
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206594567&MCC=5251&MST=WI&MCITY=877-740-1900&MNM=SOL*SNAP-ON%20INDUSTRIAL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206594567&MCC=5251&MST=WI&MCITY=877-740-1900&MNM=SOL*SNAP-ON%20INDUSTRIAL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=804927217&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*CWEA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=261192244&MCC=7372&MST=FL&MCITY=TRUGRITTRACTI&MNM=TRUGRIT%20TRACTION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123016651&MCC=5065&MST=CA&MCITY=707-258-6140&MNM=MANCO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128631354&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=925-961-8888&MNM=FRANK%20A%20OLSEN%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128631354&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=925-961-8888&MNM=FRANK%20A%20OLSEN%20COMPANY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148951557&MCC=7394&MST=CA&MCITY=510-357-6200&MNM=PETERSON%20SAN%20LEANDRO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148951557&MCC=7394&MST=CA&MCITY=510-357-6200&MNM=PETERSON%20SAN%20LEANDRO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219628640&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US%20AMZN.COM/BIL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219628640&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US%20AMZN.COM/BIL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213251525&MCC=8299&MST=WI&MCITY=WWW.LORMAN.CO&MNM=WWW.LORMAN.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213251525&MCC=8299&MST=WI&MCITY=WWW.LORMAN.CO&MNM=WWW.LORMAN.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=8999&MST=CA&MCITY=415-8835924&MNM=IN%20*KEN%20GRADY%20COMPANY,%20IN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=8999&MST=CA&MCITY=415-8835924&MNM=IN%20*KEN%20GRADY%20COMPANY,%20IN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231426840&MCC=8111&MST=CA&MCITY=310-981-2000&MNM=LIEBERTCASS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=210277323&MCC=5734&MST=VA&MCITY=703-964-2002&MNM=SHAREPOINT%20XPERTS%20LLC%20-%20E
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=210277323&MCC=5734&MST=VA&MCITY=703-964-2002&MNM=SHAREPOINT%20XPERTS%20LLC%20-%20E
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=803918035&MCC=8244&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PUBLICSECTO


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47963 EXPENS *PUBLICSECTO

47970 OFFICE 7361 ZIPRECRUITER, 855-747-5493 CA 539.50 3 179.83 0.00 0 539.50 0.66% 3 0.00

SERVICES INC.

47979 WHOLESALE 5047 TFS*THERMOELEC 800-532-4752 FL 740.81 1 740.81 230.00 1 510.81 0.63% 2 65.81

TRADE TRONNORT

47963 BUSINESS 8299 PAYPAL *CCTC 402-935-7733 CA 500.00 1 500.00 0.00 0 500.00 0.61% 1 0.00

EXPENS

47971 OFFICE 5943 OFFICEMAX/DEPOT UNION CITY CA 486.41 2 243.21 0.00 0 486.41 0.60% 2 25.44

SUPPLIES 6177

47963 BUSINESS 8398 CALIFORNIA 916-3202124 CA 479.00 1 479.00 0.00 0 479.00 0.59% 1 0.00

EXPENS PAYROLL C

47963 BUSINESS 8641 MAINTENANCE 909-987-8004 CA 475.00 1 475.00 0.00 0 475.00 0.58% 1 0.00

EXPENS

8699 AMERICAN 210-226-4600 TX 475.00 1 475.00 0.00 0 475.00 0.58% 1 0.00

PAYROLL ASSOC

284298 VTA Catering 5814 MR PICKLES 325 - UNION CITY CA 461.51 6 76.92 0.00 0 461.51 0.57% 6 0.00

UNION

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 JANUS 770-562-2850 GA 458.98 1 458.98 0.00 0 458.98 0.56% 1 40.76

TRADE INTERNATIONAL 

GROU

47979 WHOLESALE 5300 COSTCO WHSE HAYWARD CA 469.19 9 52.13 17.47 1 451.72 0.55% 10 0.00

TRADE #1061

284298 VTA Catering 5814 TOGOS - UNION UNION CITY CA 447.32 4 111.83 0.00 0 447.32 0.55% 4 0.00

CITY

47979 WHOLESALE 5331 IBUY STORES INC 845-610-5093 NY 433.82 1 433.82 0.00 0 433.82 0.53% 1 0.00

TRADE

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 383.96 1 383.96 0.00 0 383.96 0.47% 1 0.00

5261468693199

47979 WHOLESALE 5045 DMI* DELL 800-274-1550 TX 380.47 1 380.47 0.00 0 380.47 0.47% 1 33.80

TRADE HLTHCR/PTR

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 SENTRY AIR 832-255-7139 TX 368.68 1 368.68 0.00 0 368.68 0.45% 1 0.00

TRADE SYSTEMS

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 HOWARD E. PENRYN CA 367.63 1 367.63 0.00 0 367.63 0.45% 1 0.00

TRADE HUTCHING CO INC

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     3

165 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=803918035&MCC=8244&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PUBLICSECTO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137378788&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137378788&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=247871011&MCC=5047&MST=FL&MCITY=800-532-4752&MNM=TFS*THERMOELECTRONNORT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=247871011&MCC=5047&MST=FL&MCITY=800-532-4752&MNM=TFS*THERMOELECTRONNORT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=248533607&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*CCTC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177099191&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=OFFICEMAX/DEPOT%206177
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=177099191&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=OFFICEMAX/DEPOT%206177
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140612440&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-3202124&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20PAYROLL%20C
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140612440&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-3202124&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20PAYROLL%20C
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=8641&MST=CA&MCITY=909-987-8004&MNM=MAINTENANCE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137162010&MCC=8699&MST=TX&MCITY=210-226-4600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137162010&MCC=8699&MST=TX&MCITY=210-226-4600&MNM=AMERICAN%20PAYROLL%20ASSOC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123472685&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20325%20-%20UNION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123472685&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20325%20-%20UNION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235081147&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=770-562-2850&MNM=JANUS%20INTERNATIONAL%20GROU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235081147&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=770-562-2850&MNM=JANUS%20INTERNATIONAL%20GROU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235081147&MCC=5046&MST=GA&MCITY=770-562-2850&MNM=JANUS%20INTERNATIONAL%20GROU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126138663&MCC=5300&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=COSTCO%20WHSE%20%231061
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=126138663&MCC=5300&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=COSTCO%20WHSE%20%231061
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=244258347&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=244258347&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOGOS%20-%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220149933&MCC=5331&MST=NY&MCITY=845-610-5093&MNM=IBUY%20STORES%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468693199
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468693199
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206098354&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-274-1550&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20HLTHCR/PTR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206098354&MCC=5045&MST=TX&MCITY=800-274-1550&MNM=DMI*%20DELL%20HLTHCR/PTR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220305423&MCC=5046&MST=TX&MCITY=832-255-7139&MNM=SENTRY%20AIR%20SYSTEMS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=220305423&MCC=5046&MST=TX&MCITY=832-255-7139&MNM=SENTRY%20AIR%20SYSTEMS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151457509&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=PENRYN&MNM=HOWARD%20E.%20HUTCHING%20CO%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151457509&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=PENRYN&MNM=HOWARD%20E.%20HUTCHING%20CO%20INC


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX $ 351.60 1 $ 351.60 $ 0.00 0 $ 351.60 0.43% 1 $ 0.00

5261468833621

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 349.79 1 349.79 0.00 0 349.79 0.43% 1 0.00

5261468864894

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 339.28 1 339.28 0.00 0 339.28 0.42% 1 0.00

5261467998283

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 339.28 1 339.28 0.00 0 339.28 0.42% 1 0.00

5261467998284

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 339.28 1 339.28 0.00 0 339.28 0.42% 1 0.00

5261467998285

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON WWW.AMAZON.C WA 332.92 3 110.97 0.00 0 332.92 0.41% 3 0.00

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS O

WWW.

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 328.78 1 328.78 0.00 0 328.78 0.40% 1 0.00

5261472055774

47970 OFFICE 2741 LOGOWEAR 209-367-0596 CA 322.23 1 322.23 0.00 0 322.23 0.40% 1 22.32

SERVICES

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 321.78 1 321.78 0.00 0 321.78 0.39% 1 0.00

5261468737244

3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 321.78 1 321.78 0.00 0 321.78 0.39% 1 0.00

5261468737245

47963 BUSINESS 8299 OWPSACSTATE 916-278-6142 CA 315.16 1 315.16 0.00 0 315.16 0.39% 1 0.00

EXPENS

47963 BUSINESS 8699 CALIFORNIA 530-822-5009 CA 310.00 1 310.00 0.00 0 310.00 0.38% 1 0.00

EXPENS ASSOCIATION OF

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 GRAINGER 877-2022594 IL 305.53 1 305.53 0.00 0 305.53 0.37% 1 25.65

TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5261 DOMYOWN.COM 770-840-8831 GA 302.80 1 302.80 0.00 0 302.80 0.37% 1 0.00

TRADE

47972 OTHER 5941 ID WWW.IDENHANCE SC 296.10 1 296.10 0.00 0 296.10 0.36% 1 0.00

ENHANCEMENTS, 

INC.

47963 BUSINESS 8699 AMER SOC CIVIL 800-548-2723 VA 295.00 1 295.00 0.00 0 295.00 0.36% 1 0.00

EXPENS ENGINEERS

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     4

166 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468833621
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468833621
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468864894
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468864894
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261467998283
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261467998283
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261467998284
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261467998284
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261467998285
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261467998285
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209837821&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=WWW.AMAZON.CO&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS%20WWW.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209837821&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=WWW.AMAZON.CO&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS%20WWW.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=209837821&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=WWW.AMAZON.CO&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS%20WWW.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261472055774
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261472055774
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154589426&MCC=2741&MST=CA&MCITY=209-367-0596&MNM=LOGOWEAR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468737244
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468737244
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468737245
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468737245
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=149521781&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=916-278-6142&MNM=OWPSACSTATE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146134120&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-822-5009&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146134120&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-822-5009&MNM=CALIFORNIA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165820315&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=877-2022594&MNM=GRAINGER
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=189879638&MCC=5261&MST=GA&MCITY=770-840-8831&MNM=DOMYOWN.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160024900&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=WWW.IDENHANCE&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160024900&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=WWW.IDENHANCE&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160024900&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=WWW.IDENHANCE&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157070954&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=800-548-2723&MNM=AMER%20SOC%20CIVIL%20ENGINEERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157070954&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=800-548-2723&MNM=AMER%20SOC%20CIVIL%20ENGINEERS


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47971 OFFICE 5734 BOXWOOD HTTPSNAYLOR.C MD $ 295.00 1 $ 295.00 $ 0.00 0 $ 295.00 0.36% 1 $ 0.00

SUPPLIES TECHNOLOGY INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 HUFFMAN 714-879-9800 CA 283.73 1 283.73 0.00 0 283.73 0.35% 1 0.00

TRADE ENGINEERING INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 JM EQUIPMENT 209-522-3271 CA 282.90 2 141.45 0.00 0 282.90 0.35% 2 0.00

TRADE MANTECA

47970 OFFICE 7311 CAREERS IN 818-991-9653 CA 275.00 1 275.00 0.00 0 275.00 0.34% 1 0.00

SERVICES GOVERNMENT

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 STEVEN 650-588-9200 CA 267.59 3 89.20 0.00 0 267.59 0.33% 3 0.00

TRADE ENGINEERING

47963 BUSINESS 8699 CAPIO - CA 530-9245444 CA 260.00 2 130.00 0.00 0 260.00 0.32% 2 0.00

EXPENS ASSOCIATION OF

47960 AIRLINE 3000 UNITED      800-932-2732 TX 258.40 1 258.40 0.00 0 258.40 0.32% 1 0.00

0162409994357

47970 OFFICE 7361 ZIPRECRUITER, 855-747-5493 CA 249.00 1 249.00 0.00 0 249.00 0.31% 1 0.00

SERVICES INC.

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 EPASALES 423-645-7581 TN 241.09 1 241.09 0.00 0 241.09 0.30% 1 0.00

TRADE

47972 OTHER 5732 METRO MOBILE 650-3671992 CA 236.27 1 236.27 0.00 0 236.27 0.29% 1 20.28

COMMUNICATIO

47978 VEHICLE 5533 HOISTS DIRECT INC 704-985-1110 NC 232.67 1 232.67 0.00 0 232.67 0.29% 1 0.00

EXPENSE

47965 HOTELS 3504 HILTON HOTEL 512-4828000 TX 228.85 1 228.85 0.00 0 228.85 0.28% 1 0.00

AUSTIN

47970 OFFICE 7392 WPY*DKF 855-4693729 CA 225.00 1 225.00 0.00 0 225.00 0.28% 1 0.00

SERVICES SOLUTIONS GROUP

47971 OFFICE 5734 FS *TECHSMITH 877-3278914 CA 223.97 1 223.97 0.00 0 223.97 0.27% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES

284298 VTA Catering 5812 TOMATINA UNION UNION CITY CA 223.76 2 111.88 0.00 0 223.76 0.27% 2 0.00

CITY

284298 VTA Catering 5814 CHIPOTLE ONLINE 303-595-4000 CO 222.24 3 74.08 0.00 0 222.24 0.27% 3 0.00

47964 EATING/DRINKIN 5811 SQ *THE HUNGRY SAN LORENZO CA 218.31 1 218.31 0.00 0 218.31 0.27% 1 17.06

G MEAT

47962 BUILDING 1711 SPOT COOLER 800-367-8675 FL 216.64 2 108.32 0.00 0 216.64 0.27% 2 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     5

167 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5734&MST=MD&MCITY=HTTPSNAYLOR.C&MNM=BOXWOOD%20TECHNOLOGY%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5734&MST=MD&MCITY=HTTPSNAYLOR.C&MNM=BOXWOOD%20TECHNOLOGY%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151431071&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=714-879-9800&MNM=HUFFMAN%20ENGINEERING%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151431071&MCC=5085&MST=CA&MCITY=714-879-9800&MNM=HUFFMAN%20ENGINEERING%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230907291&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=209-522-3271&MNM=JM%20EQUIPMENT%20MANTECA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=230907291&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=209-522-3271&MNM=JM%20EQUIPMENT%20MANTECA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165963873&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=818-991-9653&MNM=CAREERS%20IN%20GOVERNMENT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165963873&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=818-991-9653&MNM=CAREERS%20IN%20GOVERNMENT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206559798&MCC=5065&MST=CA&MCITY=650-588-9200&MNM=STEVEN%20ENGINEERING
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206559798&MCC=5065&MST=CA&MCITY=650-588-9200&MNM=STEVEN%20ENGINEERING
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146372040&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-9245444&MNM=CAPIO%20-%20CA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=146372040&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=530-9245444&MNM=CAPIO%20-%20CA%20ASSOCIATION%20OF
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=243814123&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162409994357
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=243814123&MCC=3000&MST=TX&MCITY=800-932-2732&MNM=UNITED%20%20%20%20%20%200162409994357
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255320538&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255320538&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=855-747-5493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=121014885&MCC=5085&MST=TN&MCITY=423-645-7581&MNM=EPASALES
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231318344&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=650-3671992&MNM=METRO%20MOBILE%20COMMUNICATIO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231318344&MCC=5732&MST=CA&MCITY=650-3671992&MNM=METRO%20MOBILE%20COMMUNICATIO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=122971143&MCC=5533&MST=NC&MCITY=704-985-1110&MNM=HOISTS%20DIRECT%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175218892&MCC=3504&MST=TX&MCITY=512-4828000&MNM=HILTON%20HOTEL%20AUSTIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175218892&MCC=3504&MST=TX&MCITY=512-4828000&MNM=HILTON%20HOTEL%20AUSTIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219701110&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=855-4693729&MNM=WPY*DKF%20SOLUTIONS%20GROUP
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219701110&MCC=7392&MST=CA&MCITY=855-4693729&MNM=WPY*DKF%20SOLUTIONS%20GROUP
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=234472282&MCC=5734&MST=CA&MCITY=877-3278914&MNM=FS%20*TECHSMITH
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=82512776&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOMATINA%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=82512776&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=TOMATINA%20UNION%20CITY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160346387&MCC=5814&MST=CO&MCITY=303-595-4000&MNM=CHIPOTLE%20ONLINE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=823822562&MCC=5811&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LORENZO&MNM=SQ%20*THE%20HUNGRY%20MEAT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=823822562&MCC=5811&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LORENZO&MNM=SQ%20*THE%20HUNGRY%20MEAT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162880516&MCC=1711&MST=FL&MCITY=800-367-8675&MNM=SPOT%20COOLER


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47962 SERVIC

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 BOBCAT OF 510-8974123 CA 213.21 2 106.61 0.00 0 213.21 0.26% 2 16.77

TRADE FREMONT

47979 WHOLESALE 5013 4 STATE TRUCKS 417-6243054 MO 210.00 1 210.00 0.00 0 210.00 0.26% 1 0.00

TRADE WEB

47979 WHOLESALE 5072 HEAVYDUTYDEPOT. 718-885-7274 NY 205.59 1 205.59 0.00 0 205.59 0.25% 1 0.00

TRADE COM

47963 BUSINESS 8299 PESTICIDE 831-442-3536 CA 200.00 2 100.00 0.00 0 200.00 0.25% 2 0.00

EXPENS APPLICATORS PRO

47970 OFFICE 8911 BROWN AND 925-2102277 CO 200.00 1 200.00 0.00 0 200.00 0.25% 1 0.00

SERVICES CALDWELL

47964 EATING/DRINKIN 5811 SQ *THE HUNGRY SAN LORENZO CA 214.00 1 214.00 14.40 1 199.60 0.24% 2 30.00

G MEAT

47963 BUSINESS 8299 TRI-STATE 602-332-3174 CA 198.00 2 99.00 0.00 0 198.00 0.24% 2 0.00

EXPENS SEMINAR

47966 MAIL/TELEPHON 5964 2CO.COM*NCCIPMA 614-921-2449 OH 198.00 2 99.00 0.00 0 198.00 0.24% 2 0.00

E

47963 BUSINESS 8699 NATL INST CERT 703-684-2800 VA 195.00 1 195.00 0.00 0 195.00 0.24% 1 0.00

EXPENS ENGR TE

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 193.96 1 193.96 0.00 0 193.96 0.24% 1 0.00

5261473974579

47970 OFFICE 5968 WEB*NETWORKSO 888-6429675 FL 189.95 1 189.95 0.00 0 189.95 0.23% 1 0.00

SERVICES LUTIONS

47970 OFFICE 7311 WATER/WASTEWA WATERANDWAST FL 185.00 1 185.00 0.00 0 185.00 0.23% 1 0.00

SERVICES TER JOBS E

47979 WHOLESALE 5200 THE HOME DEPOT FREMONT CA 167.82 2 83.91 0.00 0 167.82 0.21% 2 14.20

TRADE #6636

47963 BUSINESS 8699 EAST BAY 925-698-4910 CA 165.00 3 55.00 0.00 0 165.00 0.20% 3 0.00

EXPENS CHAPTER A

47979 WHOLESALE 5074 FAUCET SHARK INC 970-8465120 IL 161.76 1 161.76 0.00 0 161.76 0.20% 1 0.00

TRADE

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM*MT6 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 161.58 1 161.58 0.00 0 161.58 0.20% 1 0.00

SUPPLIES 9S2NA1

47979 WHOLESALE 5046 MUNICIPAL 916-9221101 CA 158.49 1 158.49 0.00 0 158.49 0.19% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     6

168 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179700693&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=510-8974123&MNM=BOBCAT%20OF%20FREMONT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=179700693&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=510-8974123&MNM=BOBCAT%20OF%20FREMONT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206651099&MCC=5013&MST=MO&MCITY=417-6243054&MNM=4%20STATE%20TRUCKS%20WEB
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=206651099&MCC=5013&MST=MO&MCITY=417-6243054&MNM=4%20STATE%20TRUCKS%20WEB
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=133961451&MCC=5072&MST=NY&MCITY=718-885-7274&MNM=HEAVYDUTYDEPOT.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=133961451&MCC=5072&MST=NY&MCITY=718-885-7274&MNM=HEAVYDUTYDEPOT.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219547044&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=831-442-3536&MNM=PESTICIDE%20APPLICATORS%20PRO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219547044&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=831-442-3536&MNM=PESTICIDE%20APPLICATORS%20PRO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231954757&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231954757&MCC=8911&MST=CO&MCITY=925-2102277&MNM=BROWN%20AND%20CALDWELL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5811&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LORENZO&MNM=SQ%20*THE%20HUNGRY%20MEAT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5811&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LORENZO&MNM=SQ%20*THE%20HUNGRY%20MEAT
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231326437&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=602-332-3174&MNM=TRI-STATE%20SEMINAR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=231326437&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=602-332-3174&MNM=TRI-STATE%20SEMINAR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235316990&MCC=5964&MST=OH&MCITY=614-921-2449&MNM=2CO.COM*NCCIPMA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162841926&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2800&MNM=NATL%20INST%20CERT%20ENGR%20TE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162841926&MCC=8699&MST=VA&MCITY=703-684-2800&MNM=NATL%20INST%20CERT%20ENGR%20TE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261473974579
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261473974579
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134617336&MCC=5968&MST=FL&MCITY=888-6429675&MNM=WEB*NETWORKSOLUTIONS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134617336&MCC=5968&MST=FL&MCITY=888-6429675&MNM=WEB*NETWORKSOLUTIONS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257684116&MCC=7311&MST=FL&MCITY=WATERANDWASTE&MNM=WATER/WASTEWATER%20JOBS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257684116&MCC=7311&MST=FL&MCITY=WATERANDWASTE&MNM=WATER/WASTEWATER%20JOBS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166097079&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236636
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166097079&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236636
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255232577&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=925-698-4910&MNM=EAST%20BAY%20CHAPTER%20A
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=255232577&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=925-698-4910&MNM=EAST%20BAY%20CHAPTER%20A
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=123458719&MCC=5074&MST=IL&MCITY=970-8465120&MNM=FAUCET%20SHARK%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MT69S2NA1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MT69S2NA1
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=246957589&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=916-9221101&MNM=MUNICIPAL%20MAINTENANCE%20EQU


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE MAINTENANCE EQU

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 NEWARK US 773-907-6000 IL 151.16 2 75.58 0.00 0 151.16 0.19% 2 5.03

TRADE 00000075

47963 BUSINESS 8699 CSMFO WWW.CSMFO.OR CA 150.00 1 150.00 0.00 0 150.00 0.18% 1 0.00

EXPENS G

8398 PUBLIC AGENCY 916-444-3568 CA 150.00 1 150.00 0.00 0 150.00 0.18% 1 0.00

RISK MANAG

8299 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 150.00 1 150.00 0.00 0 150.00 0.18% 1 0.00

*PIPEUSERSGR

284298 VTA Catering 5814 MR PICKLES - 365 - NEWARK CA 143.25 2 71.63 0.00 0 143.25 0.18% 2 0.00

NEWARK

47963 BUSINESS 8398 NACE 800-797-6223 TX 140.00 1 140.00 0.00 0 140.00 0.17% 1 0.00

EXPENS INTERNATIONAL

284298 VTA Catering 5812 BRONCO BILLY'S 510-4894601 CA 136.84 1 136.84 0.00 0 136.84 0.17% 1 0.00

PIZZA

47979 WHOLESALE 5072 PENN TOOL CO 973-761-4343 NJ 135.00 2 67.50 0.00 0 135.00 0.17% 2 0.00

TRADE

47963 BUSINESS 8699 MISAC 714-738-5309 CA 130.00 1 130.00 0.00 0 130.00 0.16% 1 0.00

EXPENS

47970 OFFICE 7399 CTS 855-295-9177 WA 128.75 1 128.75 0.00 0 128.75 0.16% 1 0.00

SERVICES LANGUAGELINK

284298 VTA Catering 5812 BRONCO BILLY'S UNION CITY CA 124.91 1 124.91 0.00 0 124.91 0.15% 1 0.00

PIZZA

47960 AIRLINE 3066 SOUTHWES    800-435-9792 TX 123.96 1 123.96 0.00 0 123.96 0.15% 1 0.00

5261468362758

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMZN MKTP US AMZN.COM/BILL WA 122.72 1 122.72 0.00 0 122.72 0.15% 1 8.82

SUPPLIES

47963 BUSINESS 8398 ISA 919-549-8411 NC 120.00 1 120.00 0.00 0 120.00 0.15% 1 0.00

EXPENS

47970 OFFICE 7372 SIM TECH USA 940-455-2671 CA 120.00 1 120.00 0.00 0 120.00 0.15% 1 0.00

SERVICES

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 NOR*NORTHERN 800-222-5381 MN 119.00 1 119.00 0.00 0 119.00 0.15% 1 0.00

TRADE TOOL

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 1000BULBS.COM 800-624-4488 TX 113.73 1 113.73 0.00 0 113.73 0.14% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     7

169 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=246957589&MCC=5046&MST=CA&MCITY=916-9221101&MNM=MUNICIPAL%20MAINTENANCE%20EQU
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235117779&MCC=5065&MST=IL&MCITY=773-907-6000&MNM=NEWARK%20US%2000000075
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235117779&MCC=5065&MST=IL&MCITY=773-907-6000&MNM=NEWARK%20US%2000000075
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=201331152&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=WWW.CSMFO.ORG&MNM=CSMFO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=232020573&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-444-3568&MNM=PUBLIC%20AGENCY%20RISK%20MANAG
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=232020573&MCC=8398&MST=CA&MCITY=916-444-3568&MNM=PUBLIC%20AGENCY%20RISK%20MANAG
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=809128075&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PIPEUSERSGR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=809128075&MCC=8299&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PIPEUSERSGR
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213992762&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20-%20365%20-%20NEWARK
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=213992762&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=MR%20PICKLES%20-%20365%20-%20NEWARK
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148746185&MCC=8398&MST=TX&MCITY=800-797-6223&MNM=NACE%20INTERNATIONAL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148746185&MCC=8398&MST=TX&MCITY=800-797-6223&MNM=NACE%20INTERNATIONAL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4894601&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=510-4894601&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=154406641&MCC=5072&MST=NJ&MCITY=973-761-4343&MNM=PENN%20TOOL%20CO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134793466&MCC=8699&MST=CA&MCITY=714-738-5309&MNM=MISAC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151523938&MCC=7399&MST=WA&MCITY=855-295-9177&MNM=CTS%20LANGUAGELINK
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151523938&MCC=7399&MST=WA&MCITY=855-295-9177&MNM=CTS%20LANGUAGELINK
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162830978&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=BRONCO%20BILLY%27%27S%20PIZZA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468362758
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=257752520&MCC=3066&MST=TX&MCITY=800-435-9792&MNM=SOUTHWES%20%20%20%205261468362758
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMZN%20MKTP%20US
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131523927&MCC=8398&MST=NC&MCITY=919-549-8411&MNM=ISA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140120453&MCC=7372&MST=CA&MCITY=940-455-2671&MNM=SIM%20TECH%20USA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226671422&MCC=5251&MST=MN&MCITY=800-222-5381&MNM=NOR*NORTHERN%20TOOL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226671422&MCC=5251&MST=MN&MCITY=800-222-5381&MNM=NOR*NORTHERN%20TOOL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=131641130&MCC=5251&MST=TX&MCITY=800-624-4488&MNM=1000BULBS.COM


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5200 LOWES #01132* UNION CITY CA 110.15 4 27.54 0.00 0 110.15 0.14% 4 9.78

TRADE

47965 HOTELS 7011 SO PT HOTEL AND LAS VEGAS NV 107.35 1 107.35 0.00 0 107.35 0.13% 1 0.00

CASINO

47970 OFFICE 7399 NSI SOLUTIONS INC RALEIGH NC 105.00 1 105.00 0.00 0 105.00 0.13% 1 0.00

SERVICES

47970 OFFICE 7399 EB CWEA 801-413-7200 CA 91.79 1 91.79 0.00 0 91.79 0.11% 1 0.00

SERVICES WATERWASTEWA

47979 WHOLESALE 5411 LUCKY #782 UNION UNION CITY CA 90.91 3 30.30 0.00 0 90.91 0.11% 3 0.00

TRADE CI

47963 BUSINESS 8699 ASQ ECOMMERCE 414-2728575 WI 89.00 1 89.00 0.00 0 89.00 0.11% 1 0.00

EXPENS

284298 VTA Catering 5812 THAI BBQ UNION CITY CA 88.55 1 88.55 0.00 0 88.55 0.11% 1 10.00

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 87.36 1 87.36 0.00 0 87.36 0.11% 1 7.76

SUPPLIES

47971 OFFICE 5943 STAPLES       FREMONT CA 86.30 1 86.30 0.00 0 86.30 0.11% 1 7.31

SUPPLIES 00112995

284298 VTA Catering 5814 MOUNTAIN MIKES 510-471-7171 CA 85.57 1 85.57 0.00 0 85.57 0.10% 1 0.00

PIZZA -

47963 BUSINESS 8699 INT'L CODE 888-422-7233 IL 85.00 1 85.00 0.00 0 85.00 0.10% 1 0.00

EXPENS COUNCIL INC

47979 WHOLESALE 5074 CAL-STEAM 2504 HAYWARD CA 80.55 1 80.55 0.00 0 80.55 0.10% 1 7.16

TRADE

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM AMZN.COM/BILL WA 87.89 3 29.30 14.29 1 73.60 0.09% 4 7.80

SUPPLIES

47970 OFFICE 7399 EB TRAINING 801-413-7200 CA 70.68 1 70.68 0.00 0 70.68 0.09% 1 0.00

SERVICES SERIES TO

47979 WHOLESALE 5065 BACKFLOW 602-788-5411 AZ 64.93 1 64.93 0.00 0 64.93 0.08% 1 0.00

TRADE PREVENTION DE

284298 VTA Catering 5462 NOTHING BUNDT NOTHINGBUNDTC CA 58.00 1 58.00 0.00 0 58.00 0.07% 1 0.00

CAKES 39

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON.COM*MT2 AMZN.COM/BILL WA 57.68 1 57.68 0.00 0 57.68 0.07% 1 5.13

SUPPLIES 6B64L2

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     8

170 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=207476732&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LOWES%20%2301132*
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165608503&MCC=7011&MST=NV&MCITY=LAS%20VEGAS&MNM=SO%20PT%20HOTEL%20AND%20CASINO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165608503&MCC=7011&MST=NV&MCITY=LAS%20VEGAS&MNM=SO%20PT%20HOTEL%20AND%20CASINO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165822895&MCC=7399&MST=NC&MCITY=RALEIGH&MNM=NSI%20SOLUTIONS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=254430064&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=801-413-7200&MNM=EB%20CWEA%20WATERWASTEWA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=254430064&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=801-413-7200&MNM=EB%20CWEA%20WATERWASTEWA
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166294979&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LUCKY%20%23782%20UNION%20CI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166294979&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=LUCKY%20%23782%20UNION%20CI
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=151400018&MCC=8699&MST=WI&MCITY=414-2728575&MNM=ASQ%20ECOMMERCE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=128630771&MCC=5812&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=THAI%20BBQ
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=197906441&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165614603&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=STAPLES%20%20%20%20%20%20%2000112995
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=165614603&MCC=5943&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=STAPLES%20%20%20%20%20%20%2000112995
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157508225&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-471-7171&MNM=MOUNTAIN%20MIKES%20PIZZA%20-
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=157508225&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=510-471-7171&MNM=MOUNTAIN%20MIKES%20PIZZA%20-
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=233226085&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=888-422-7233&MNM=INT%27%27L%20CODE%20COUNCIL%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=233226085&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=888-422-7233&MNM=INT%27%27L%20CODE%20COUNCIL%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140452361&MCC=5074&MST=CA&MCITY=HAYWARD&MNM=CAL-STEAM%202504
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=226345797&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=191634425&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=801-413-7200&MNM=EB%20TRAINING%20SERIES%20TO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=191634425&MCC=7399&MST=CA&MCITY=801-413-7200&MNM=EB%20TRAINING%20SERIES%20TO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120160937&MCC=5065&MST=AZ&MCITY=602-788-5411&MNM=BACKFLOW%20PREVENTION%20DE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=120160937&MCC=5065&MST=AZ&MCITY=602-788-5411&MNM=BACKFLOW%20PREVENTION%20DE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134506532&MCC=5462&MST=CA&MCITY=NOTHINGBUNDTC&MNM=NOTHING%20BUNDT%20CAKES%2039
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=134506532&MCC=5462&MST=CA&MCITY=NOTHINGBUNDTC&MNM=NOTHING%20BUNDT%20CAKES%2039
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MT26B64L2
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON.COM*MT26B64L2


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47979 WHOLESALE 5111 FREMONT RUBBER 510-6568891 CA $ 51.83 1 $ 51.83 $ 0.00 0 $ 51.83 0.06% 1 $ 3.61

TRADE STAMP

47979 WHOLESALE 5085 DGI SUPPLY 847-495-6800 IL 50.66 1 50.66 0.00 0 50.66 0.06% 1 0.00

TRADE

47978 VEHICLE 4784 FASTRAK CSC 415-486-8655 CA 50.00 2 25.00 0.00 0 50.00 0.06% 2 0.00

EXPENSE

47971 OFFICE 5942 AMAZON AMZN.COM/BILL WA 49.56 1 49.56 0.00 0 49.56 0.06% 1 2.18

SUPPLIES MKTPLACE PMTS

47970 OFFICE 7333 STK*SHUTTERSTO 866-663-3954 NY 49.00 1 49.00 0.00 0 49.00 0.06% 1 0.00

SERVICES CK, INC.

47972 OTHER 7699 NORTHERN 406-7618079 MT 45.49 1 45.49 0.00 0 45.49 0.06% 1 0.00

HYDRAULICS INC

47963 BUSINESS 8699 GOVERNMENT CHICAGO IL 45.00 1 45.00 0.00 0 45.00 0.06% 1 0.00

EXPENS FINANCE OFFIC

47979 WHOLESALE 5399 JACKS SMALL 999-9999999 MD 37.77 1 37.77 0.00 0 37.77 0.05% 1 0.00

TRADE ENGINES & GEN

284298 VTA Catering 5462 PETERS BAKERY SAN JOSE CA 35.75 1 35.75 0.00 0 35.75 0.04% 1 0.00

47978 VEHICLE 5533 FREMONT FORD 888-244-9105 CA 30.69 1 30.69 0.00 0 30.69 0.04% 1 0.00

EXPENSE

47978 VEHICLE 5599 PETERSON 510-357-6200 CA 30.14 1 30.14 0.00 0 30.14 0.04% 1 0.00

EXPENSE TRUCKS SL

47972 OTHER 7216 GREEN LEAF FREMONT CA 30.00 1 30.00 0.00 0 30.00 0.04% 1 0.00

CLEANERS

7216 GREEN LEAF FREMONT CA 30.00 1 30.00 0.00 0 30.00 0.04% 1 0.00

CLEANERS

284298 VTA Catering 5814 RED RIBBON UNION UNION CITY CA 29.99 1 29.99 0.00 0 29.99 0.04% 1 0.00

289779 COMPUTER 4816 DRI*POWERISO ORDERFIND.COM MN 29.95 1 29.95 0.00 0 29.95 0.04% 1 0.00

47970 OFFICE 7311 YAHOO SMALL 866-800-8092 CA 27.88 2 13.94 0.00 0 27.88 0.03% 2 0.00

SERVICES BUSINESS

47979 WHOLESALE 5411 SMARTNFINAL5231 UNION CITY CA 25.49 2 12.75 0.00 0 25.49 0.03% 2 0.00

TRADE 1005238

47979 WHOLESALE 5310 TARGET.COM  * 800-591-3869 MN 22.44 1 22.44 0.00 0 22.44 0.03% 1 0.00

TRADE

47972 OTHER 5735 APL* 866-712-7753 CA 19.96 1 19.96 0.00 0 19.96 0.02% 1 0.00

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page     9

171 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145728144&MCC=5111&MST=CA&MCITY=510-6568891&MNM=FREMONT%20RUBBER%20STAMP
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=145728144&MCC=5111&MST=CA&MCITY=510-6568891&MNM=FREMONT%20RUBBER%20STAMP
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=162898386&MCC=5085&MST=IL&MCITY=847-495-6800&MNM=DGI%20SUPPLY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208468198&MCC=4784&MST=CA&MCITY=415-486-8655&MNM=FASTRAK%20CSC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219767130&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=219767130&MCC=5942&MST=WA&MCITY=AMZN.COM/BILL&MNM=AMAZON%20MKTPLACE%20PMTS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227594173&MCC=7333&MST=NY&MCITY=866-663-3954&MNM=STK*SHUTTERSTOCK,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227594173&MCC=7333&MST=NY&MCITY=866-663-3954&MNM=STK*SHUTTERSTOCK,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166486835&MCC=7699&MST=MT&MCITY=406-7618079&MNM=NORTHERN%20HYDRAULICS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166486835&MCC=7699&MST=MT&MCITY=406-7618079&MNM=NORTHERN%20HYDRAULICS%20INC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148992923&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=CHICAGO&MNM=GOVERNMENT%20FINANCE%20OFFIC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=148992923&MCC=8699&MST=IL&MCITY=CHICAGO&MNM=GOVERNMENT%20FINANCE%20OFFIC
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166004945&MCC=5399&MST=MD&MCITY=999-9999999&MNM=JACKS%20SMALL%20ENGINES%20%26%20GEN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166004945&MCC=5399&MST=MD&MCITY=999-9999999&MNM=JACKS%20SMALL%20ENGINES%20%26%20GEN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208930430&MCC=5462&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20JOSE&MNM=PETERS%20BAKERY
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=239860167&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=888-244-9105&MNM=FREMONT%20FORD
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228790&MCC=5599&MST=CA&MCITY=510-357-6200&MNM=PETERSON%20TRUCKS%20SL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166228790&MCC=5599&MST=CA&MCITY=510-357-6200&MNM=PETERSON%20TRUCKS%20SL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=197977920&MCC=7216&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=GREEN%20LEAF%20CLEANERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=197977920&MCC=7216&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=GREEN%20LEAF%20CLEANERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=236876372&MCC=7216&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=GREEN%20LEAF%20CLEANERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=236876372&MCC=7216&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=GREEN%20LEAF%20CLEANERS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=208787262&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=RED%20RIBBON%20UNION
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=236350061&MCC=4816&MST=MN&MCITY=ORDERFIND.COM&MNM=DRI*POWERISO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=210268452&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=866-800-8092&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=210268452&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=866-800-8092&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227038431&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=SMARTNFINAL52311005238
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=227038431&MCC=5411&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=SMARTNFINAL52311005238
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=215166938&MCC=5310&MST=MN&MCITY=800-591-3869&MNM=TARGET.COM%20%20*
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235251088&MCC=5735&MST=CA&MCITY=866-712-7753&MNM=APL*%20ITUNES.COM/BILL


State of California

Report Date: 10/04/2018

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail  

Merchant

Category Merchant Nbr of Average Nbr of % of

Code Group Merchant State/ Debit Debit Spend per Credit Credit Total Total Nbr of Total

MCCG Description MCC Merchant Name City Province Amount Trans Debit Trans Amount Trans Spend Spend Trans Sales Tax

47972 OTHER ITUNES.COM/BILL

47979 WHOLESALE 5331 PAYPAL 402-935-7733 CA 19.50 1 19.50 0.00 0 19.50 0.02% 1 0.00

TRADE *LUCASRAFAEL

47978 VEHICLE 5533 OREILLY AUTO FREMONT CA 16.38 1 16.38 0.00 0 16.38 0.02% 1 0.00

EXPENSE #2728

47979 WHOLESALE 5200 THE HOME DEPOT NEWARK CA 15.64 1 15.64 0.00 0 15.64 0.02% 1 1.39

TRADE #6964

47970 OFFICE 7311 YAHOO SMALL 866-800-8092 CA 13.94 1 13.94 0.00 0 13.94 0.02% 1 0.00

SERVICES BUSINESS

284298 VTA Catering 5814 CHIPOTLE 1529 UNION CITY CA 12.07 1 12.07 0.00 0 12.07 0.01% 1 0.00

47979 WHOLESALE 5310 WAL-MART #2031 UNION CITY CA 6.98 1 6.98 0.00 0 6.98 0.01% 1 0.00

TRADE

47979 WHOLESALE 5251 IN *SEAL SAN LEANDRO CA 5.00 1 5.00 0.00 0 5.00 0.01% 1 0.00

TRADE CONNECTION CA. L

284298 VTA Catering 5814 CHIPOTLE ONLINE 3035954000 CO 0.00 0 0.00 9.66 1 (9.66) 0.00% 1 0.00

47970 OFFICE 7361 ZIPRECRUITER, 8557475493 CA 0.00 0 0.00 20.75 1 (20.75) 0.00% 1 0.00

SERVICES INC.

47972 OTHER 5941 ID 8433329720 SC 0.00 0 0.00 21.93 1 (21.93) 0.00% 1 0.00

ENHANCEMENTS, 

INC.

235401 REGISTRATION 8111 LIEBERTCASS 3109812000 CA 0.00 0 0.00 45.00 1 (45.00) 0.00% 1 0.00

47978 VEHICLE 5533 FREMONT FORD NEWARK CA 0.00 0 0.00 76.83 1 (76.83) 0.00% 1 0.00

EXPENSE

47963 BUSINESS 8244 PAYPAL 4029357733 CA 0.00 0 0.00 145.00 1 (145.00) 0.00% 1 0.00

EXPENS *PUBLICSECTO

47965 HOTELS 3504 HILTON HOTEL AUSTIN TX 0.00 0 0.00 228.85 1 (228.85) 0.00% 1 0.00

AUSTIN

Total $82,398.91 $ 824.18 $81,574.73 285 $ 1,379.33

Total Number of Records:         169

End of Report

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:12  Page    10

172 of 188

https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=235251088&MCC=5735&MST=CA&MCITY=866-712-7753&MNM=APL*%20ITUNES.COM/BILL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=248533607&MCC=5331&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*LUCASRAFAEL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=248533607&MCC=5331&MST=CA&MCITY=402-935-7733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*LUCASRAFAEL
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140400320&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=OREILLY%20AUTO%20%232728
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140400320&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=FREMONT&MNM=OREILLY%20AUTO%20%232728
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166229126&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236964
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=166229126&MCC=5200&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=THE%20HOME%20DEPOT%20%236964
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=210006562&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=866-800-8092&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=210006562&MCC=7311&MST=CA&MCITY=866-800-8092&MNM=YAHOO%20SMALL%20BUSINESS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=140434126&MCC=5814&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=CHIPOTLE%201529
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=189015403&MCC=5310&MST=CA&MCITY=UNION%20CITY&MNM=WAL-MART%20%232031
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LEANDRO&MNM=IN%20*SEAL%20CONNECTION%20CA.%20L
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=198058927&MCC=5251&MST=CA&MCITY=SAN%20LEANDRO&MNM=IN%20*SEAL%20CONNECTION%20CA.%20L
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160346387&MCC=5814&MST=CO&MCITY=3035954000&MNM=CHIPOTLE%20ONLINE
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137378788&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=8557475493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=137378788&MCC=7361&MST=CA&MCITY=8557475493&MNM=ZIPRECRUITER,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160024900&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=8433329720&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160024900&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=8433329720&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=160024900&MCC=5941&MST=SC&MCITY=8433329720&MNM=ID%20ENHANCEMENTS,%20INC.
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=0&MCC=8111&MST=CA&MCITY=3109812000&MNM=LIEBERTCASS
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=239860167&MCC=5533&MST=CA&MCITY=NEWARK&MNM=FREMONT%20FORD
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=803918035&MCC=8244&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PUBLICSECTO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=803918035&MCC=8244&MST=CA&MCITY=4029357733&MNM=PAYPAL%20*PUBLICSECTO
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175218892&MCC=3504&MST=TX&MCITY=AUSTIN&MNM=HILTON%20HOTEL%20AUSTIN
https://www.access.usbank.com/cpsApp1/AxolComReportServlet?REPORT_ID=MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851&IBIF_ex=CCRMSA3R&IBIC_server=EDUCCRP1&IBIWF_msgviewer=off&APP_PARM=BEACON&BK=NONE&MID=175218892&MCC=3504&MST=TX&MCITY=AUSTIN&MNM=HILTON%20HOTEL%20AUSTIN


State of California
Report Date: 10/04/2018            

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail Output Parameter Page

Cycle Close Date Range: 07/2018 to 09/2018
Report Type: Detail

Merchant Profile Source: Association
Merchant Names: All

Merchant Category Code Group: All
Merchant States: All

Sort Report By: (1) Total Spend, (2) No Sort, (3) No Sort, (4) No Sort
Break/Subtotal Level: No Break/Subtotal

 Processing Hierarchy Position: Bank Agent Company Division Department

1425 3135 51756 All All

Merchant Spend Analysis - Detail / Narvaez1 / 10/04/2018 11:14:13 / MerchantSpendAnalysisReport1538669648496_42660_952922777765851  Page    11

173 of 188



 

  
Summary of the EBDA Commission Meeting 
Thursday, September 20, 2018, at 9:30 a.m. 

Prepared by: P. Eldredge 
 
• Commissioners Johnson, Cutter, Handley, Becker, and Peixoto were present. 

 
• The Consent Calendar was approved unanimously and included the Commission Meeting 

Minutes, List of Disbursements, and Treasurer’s Report.  
 

• The Commission unanimously approved the reports from the Managers Advisory, Financial 
Management, Regulatory Affairs, Operations & Maintenance, Personnel, and Ad Hoc committees. 
The following items were discussed: 

 
• General Managers Report - The General Manager mentioned that she is back to full time as of 

September and thanked the Commission for their flexibility and support. 
 
• Manager’s Advisory Committee met with the General Manager on September 17, 2018. The 

General Manager stated that the MAC discussed the Advanced Quantitative Precipitation 
Information Project, which aims to predict precipitation in the Bay Area, EBDA interest in 
participating in an East Bay sub-project, and related costs. More information will be forthcoming. 
The MAC also continued discussions regarding the JPA and different ways of fairly allocating costs. 

 
• Ad Hoc Committee met with the General Manager on September 18, 2018, and discussed 

whether or not to bring in a third-party or other mode of facilitation for the cost allocation piece 
of the JPA. Commissioner Cutter suggested a “smoothing” period for Member Agencies to be able 
to incorporate the new amounts in their budgets. The General Manager will look into it further 
and bring recommendations back to the Commission. 

 
• Financial Management Committee met with the General Manager on September 14, 2018. The 

General Manager pointed out that the disbursement register is now in order of check amount 
and that BACWA annual dues and HEPS MCC were the largest payments in August. She next 
reported on the CERBT annual report, and the PERS pension annual actuarial valuation. Funding 
for any contributions in addition to the required contribution will be determined in the fourth 
quarter after reviewing the year-to-date expenditures. If it is a dry year, there should be a budget 
surplus, and additional funds may be allocated, as in FY 2018. The recommendation is to follow 
this practice rather than commit a fixed amount at the beginning of the fiscal year.  
 
The General Manager reviewed the investment policy and strategy and noted that we will review 
the policy annually. There will be thorough review of the policy to comply with the latest 
regulations, and also a review of the strategy for how we are investing funds, keeping in mind 
that some funds will need to be liquid to accommodate upcoming capital projects. The 

174 of 188



 

recommendation is to move CD maturities to LAIF in the near term, and explore options using a 
consultant and come back to the Commission with recommendations on the long-term 
investment strategy. 

 
• Regulatory Affairs Committee met with the General Manager on September 18, 2018. EBDA is in 

compliance with bacteria requirements and has been well below limits all summer. The General 
Manager extended thanks to the Member Agencies for being vigilant. The Regional Water Board 
is reviewing its wetlands policy and BACWA submitted comments on how to adjust the policy to 
facilitate wetlands projects. BACWA met with BAAQMD staff regarding air permits for wastewater 
facilities, as well as upcoming BAAQMD regulations including rules for methane emissions. 
BACWA intends to continue collaborating with BAAQMD to ensure new rules and permits are 
workable for wastewater agencies. 

 
• Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Committee - The Operations and Maintenance Manager 

met with the O&M Committee on September 17, 2018. The O&M Manager reported out on the 
status of the HEPS MCC project, noting a preference to have the contractors do as much as 
possible before wet weather, and then pause and return after wet weather. Project delays have 
been attributed to the electrical components supplied by Eaton. He explained details of the 
Cavitation Study and the Project and Construction Management Services. The Commission 
expressed appreciation for the explanation of cavitation. 

 
• Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Enter Into a Contract with Carollo Engineers, 

Inc. in the Amount of $17,800 to Perform a Cavitation Study and Pump Operation Evaluation at 
AEPS  
 
The Operations Manager presented information pertaining to the scope of the Cavitation Study.  
Commissioner Peixoto moved to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Johnson and carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Johnson, Cutter, Peixoto, Becker, and Chair Handley  
Noes:  None  
Absent:  None  
Abstain:  None 

 
• Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Enter Into a Contract with Currie Engineers in 

an Amount not to Exceed $60,000 for Project Management and Construction Management 
Services  

 
The O&M Manager explained the scope and RFP process for the Project/Construction 
Management Services Contract. He explained that the work will be done on a time and material 
basis. Commissioner Becker moved to approve the resolution. The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Cutter, and approved unanimously, 5-0. 
 
Ayes:  Commissioners Johnson, Cutter, Peixoto, Becker, and Chair Handley 
Noes:  None 
Absent:  None 
Abstain:  None 

175 of 188



 

• Personnel Committee met with the General Manager on September 18, 2018. The General 
Manager explained that the Committee performed the biennial review of the Authority’s Conflict 
of Interest Code, with no changes recommended. They also reviewed the General Manager’s 
travel report including upcoming conferences. The General Manager will be looking for 
professional development opportunities for the Operations and Maintenance Manager.  
 
The Personnel Policy was reviewed in detail and recommendations were made regarding cell 
phone stipends, as well as use of Authority resources such as mail and phone lines. The General 
Manager noted that separately-negotiated agreements take precedence over policy items, but 
that the goal is consistency where possible. Since staff is so close to completing the review, the 
Policy will be brought back to the Committee in October with final recommendations. It was 
clarified that step increases will be in line with the Member Agencies, having a 12-month waiting 
period for each step. There will also be a clearer delineation between Compensation Plan issues 
and Personnel Policy issues. The results of attorney review of the Authority’s cash-in-lieu of 
medical benefits were also discussed, and the Committee supported staff’s recommendation to 
engage a third-party vendor to formalize the Authority’s cafeteria plan. 
 

• Committee Alternate Assignments - The Commissioners submitted their Committee Alternate 
request forms and alternates have been selected for this year. If the alternate cannot attend, 
attendance will default to the Chair. The alternate schedule will begin with the October meetings. 
In future years, the alternate selection will be part of the normal Committee selection process. 
The Personnel Committee will meet at 10:00 a.m. for the rest of this fiscal year. 
 

• Items from the Commission and Staff 
 
None. 

176 of 188



DATE:

MEMO TO:

FROM:

SUBJECT:

UNION

SANITARY
DISTRICT

Directors

Manny Fernandez

Tom Handlev

Pat Kite

Anjali Lathi

Jennifer Toy

Officers

Paui R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Bngineer

Karen W. Murphy

Attorney

October 15, 2018

Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
Laurie Brenner, Business Services Coach

Agenda Item No. 17 - Meeting of October 22, 2018
Information Item: Board Expenses for the 1st Quarter of Fiscal Year 2019

Recommendation

Information only.

Background

Please see attached the Board of Directors Quarterly Travel and Training Expenditure Report
for the 1st quarter of Fiscal Year 2019.

177 of 188



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
QUARTERLY TRAVEL AND TRAINING EXPENDITURE REPORT

1ST QTR, FISCAL YEAR 2019

Board Members Description 1st Qtr 2nd Qtr 3rd Qtr 4th Qtr

Beginning

Balance

Y-T-D

Expense

Balance

Available

FERNANDEZ, MANNY

Lodging • Annual CASA Conference

Mileage - Annual CASA Conference

Meals - Annual CASA Conference

Reglstralon - Annual CASA Conference

;;646.:80;:

iSiiSidij:"

P,00 ■.vm isqqiqiqft::

HANDLEY.TOM
25% of Ipad and accessories purchase costs
Lodging - Annual CASA Conference
Mileage - Annual CASA Conference
Meals - Annual CASA Conference

Reglstralon - Annual CASA Conference

■Mm:''
:¥46;8Q::
x'diie-;

totalI 1,818.75 : : : :ia.oa I o.oo t X'Xiiadd :::-50oaoo::::: : : : :t;8i8:2S::: ::: :3l8l.25

HARRISON, JENNIFER

totalI V. . . . . 0.00 }! xixipidQ :'5B00:(K): ;: : o;op: : : :sooPiOO

KITE, PAT

totalI ' ! dioo | b.cb ( 'xixiajpd X:::5qqp.pffX:X:X:X:X:P:C0:X:X:SCCP;qo

LATHI, ANJAU
Lorman Education Services Membership 383.SP

TOTALjvXvXgggjgiiixXxXxi^dP | 0.001 x:x:oaO:r::x:SQPO.Ptfx:x'x:x:S8i;S8:x:>x4fllMit
O.CPI 2SOOO.OP 3,714.06 21285.94GRAND TOTAL j 3,714.06 0.00 0.00

The Board of Directors' Quarterly Expenditure
Report Is attached as part of the check register
In accordance with Board Member Business

Expense policy adopted September 5,1991

178 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 711325666169050 $55,925.60 $62,326.67BROWN & CALDWELL CONSULTANTS10/4/2018 143

STANDBY POWER SYSTEM UPGRADE11325608 $6,401.0710/4/2018

4486 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE903709075169114 $22,106.00 $29,601.93EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES10/11/2018

TEMPORARY FERROUS CHEMICAL STORAGE AND FEED SYSTEM PER RFQ S-18-S-258903711014 $7,495.9310/11/2018 143

HEADWORKS SCREEN NO. 3154322169141 $25,972.93 $25,972.93WOODARD & CURRAN INC10/11/2018 143

SERV TO 09/30/18 CATHODIC PROJECT096020181001169130 $55.81 $22,884.49PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC10/11/2018 170

SERV TO 09/25/18 NEWARK PS761520180925 $22,537.9010/11/2018 170

SERV TO 09/30/18 CHERRY ST PS380420181001 $257.9310/11/2018 170

SERV TO 09/20/18 CS TRAINING TRAILER224720180927 $32.8510/11/2018 110

4850.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE901863169094 $3,480.70 $21,671.10UNIVAR USA INC10/4/2018 110

4848.6 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE901873 $3,479.6210/4/2018 110

4799.9 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE902131 $3,444.6710/4/2018 110

4852.1 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE902181 $3,482.1410/4/2018 110

300 GALS SULFURIC ACID 36%902404 $786.9110/4/2018 111

4849.4 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE902671 $3,480.1910/4/2018 110

4900.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE901872 $3,516.8710/4/2018 110

ANNUAL PERMIT RNWL-PLANT A12094EF63169046 $20,786.00 $20,786.00BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MGMT DIST10/4/2018

Page 1 of 10179 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

KRONOS ANNUAL SUPPORT11361447169124 $6,685.19 $20,485.19KRONOS INC10/11/2018 173

KRONOS CLOUD HOSTING FEE11361484 $13,800.0010/11/2018 173

SEPTEMBER 2018 DENTAL3057737A169060 $2,220.26 $18,227.88DELTA DENTAL SERVICE10/4/2018

SEPTEMBER 2018 DENTAL3057737C $16,007.6210/4/2018

POSTAGE FOR NEWSLETTER15501169116 $17,688.37 $17,688.37FONG & FONG PRINTERS & LITHO10/11/2018 150

ALVARADO INFLUENT PS PUMPS AND VFDS170522169110 $12,378.75 $12,378.75CAROLLO ENGINEERS10/11/2018

FORCE MAIN CORROSION REPAIRS - PHASE 22036145169140 $4,676.89 $10,682.89WEST YOST ASSOCIATES10/11/2018 143

FM RELOCATION NEAR HICKORY STREET2036272 $6,006.0010/11/2018 141

SERV TO: 09/20/18-BENSON ROAD4071036120180920169104 $10,659.57 $10,659.57ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT10/11/2018

CAMERA TRACTOR PARTS41866169099 $535.28 $10,640.14WECO INDUSTRIES LLC10/4/2018

PIPE RANGER REPAIRS41870 $10,104.8610/4/2018 123

4849.7 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE903465169136 $3,480.41 $10,512.72UNIVAR USA INC10/11/2018 110

4949.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE903029 $3,552.0410/11/2018 110

4849.5 GALS SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE903929 $3,480.2710/11/2018 110

41,640 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE33892169052 $5,477.21 $10,293.42CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES10/4/2018 110

38,600 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE33865 $4,816.2110/4/2018 110

USD PLANT MASTER PLAN26480169133 $8,220.59 $8,220.59RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT10/11/2018 143

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE - OCT 201837432220181001169071 $7,614.61 $7,614.61LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS COMP10/4/2018

Page 2 of 10180 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SERV:  08/20/18 - 09/19/1811944226169106 $3,587.35 $6,771.22AT&T10/11/2018

SERV:  08/20/18 - 09/19/1811944248 $212.9610/11/2018

SERV:  08/13/18 - 09/12/1811916196 $42.8210/11/2018

SERV:  08/13/18 - 09/12/1811916197 $65.8710/11/2018

SERV:  08/13/18 - 09/12/1811916198 $87.3510/11/2018

SERV:  08/13/18 - 09/12/1811916194 $758.0310/11/2018

SERV:  08/10/18 - 09/09/1811883260 $1,996.2510/11/2018

SERV:  08/20/18 - 09/19/1811944224 $20.5910/11/2018

(12) PIPE PATCH KITS68196169102 $6,193.20 $6,193.203T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC10/11/2018

PLANT SOLIDS SYSTEM/CAPACITY ASSESSMENT170153169055 $5,803.50 $5,803.50CAROLLO ENGINEERS10/4/2018

USD FLOW MODEL AND CAPACITY ANALYSIS (NEWPARK MALL)26455169083 $5,468.25 $5,468.25RMC WATER AND ENVIRONMENT10/4/2018 141

40,820 LBS FERROUS CHLORIDE33930169109 $5,031.84 $5,031.84CALIFORNIA WATER TECHNOLOGIES10/11/2018

5000 FISH ERASERS53207169103 $4,001.38 $4,001.38ABACUS PRODUCTS INC10/11/2018 144

(2) CHESTERTON SEAL REBUILD KIT SPLIT 442 4"29600158169079 $3,745.03 $3,745.03PAN PACIFIC SUPPLY COMPANY10/4/2018

SACGISA304581169063 $3,602.72 $3,602.72CITY OF FREMONT10/4/2018

SERV TO: 09/20/18-BENSON ROAD4071038120180923169040 $127.32 $3,219.32ALAMEDA COUNTY WATER DISTRICT10/4/2018

SERV TO: 09/20/18-BENSON ROAD4071037120180923 $3,092.0010/4/2018

LEASE 6 CANON COLOR COPIERS19220053169053 $3,154.15 $3,154.15CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC10/4/2018

OCTOBER 2018 VISION STMT20181001169097 $3,064.60 $3,064.60VISION SERVICE PLAN - CA10/4/2018

Page 3 of 10181 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

POSTAGE BY PHONE - TMS 3592820181010169121 $3,000.00 $3,000.00HASLER INC.10/11/2018 141

30 EA 10FT NEPTUNE CHAINSF417404169070 $2,907.62 $2,907.62KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES10/4/2018 170

2 FCI CALIBRATORS & 1 FLOW ELEMENT SIMULATOR1121056169062 $2,807.33 $2,807.33FLUID COMPONENTS INTERNATIONAL10/4/2018 172

RECYCLE & ROLL OFF - OCT 2018916003623552169131 $2,611.87 $2,611.87REPUBLIC SERVICES #91610/11/2018 120

REFUND # 213989873169077 $2,500.00 $2,500.00LUIS ANDRES ORTIZ10/4/2018

WIRELESS SERV 08/21/2018 - 09/20/20189815031395169096 $2,491.71 $2,491.71VERIZON WIRELESS10/4/2018

GRIT HAULING 09/03, 9/13, 9/17/201818092121169135 $2,287.09 $2,287.09S&S TRUCKING10/11/2018 110

GRIT HAULING 08/30/201818091466169087 $726.08 $2,238.51S&S TRUCKING10/4/2018 110

GRIT HAULING 09/06/2018 & 09/10/201818091456 $1,512.4310/4/2018 110

ASTD GREASE & OIL41579169095 $2,056.90 $2,056.90VALLEY OIL COMPANY10/4/2018

GRIT REMOVAL PERFORMANCE TEST - EXISTING DEGRITTER280169048 $2,000.00 $2,000.00BLACK DOG ANALYTICAL LLC10/4/2018 143

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL: 12/1/18 - 11/30/195188620180910169042 $1,750.00 $1,750.00APWA AMERICAN PUBLIC WORKS10/4/2018 150

TRACTOR CAMERA PARTS41937169138 $1,744.92 $1,744.92WECO INDUSTRIES LLC10/11/2018

6 PAD EYE, 1.31 IN. L, POWDER COAT, STEEL9887578582169064 $29.97 $1,661.28GRAINGER INC10/4/2018 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9889476595 $85.2510/4/2018 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS9889780590 $1,181.1710/4/2018

1 HACKSAW FRAME9886863555 $36.7310/4/2018 171

1 CLEAN & STRIP DISC9886045245 $328.1610/4/2018

KNOWBE4 IT CBT RENEWAL100097602169129 $1,650.00 $1,650.00OPTIV SECURITY INC10/11/2018 173

Page 4 of 10182 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ALLEN BRADLEY ANALOG MODULE311139900169051 $1,543.19 $1,543.19BUCKLES SMITH ELECTRIC10/4/2018 171

RETIREE MEDICAL PROPOSED CHGS - ACTUARIAL ANALYSIS18091169072 $1,375.00 $1,375.00MACLEOD WATTS INC10/4/2018 130

LAB SUPPLIES8083656416169098 $795.53 $1,341.35VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC10/4/2018 113

LAB SUPPLIES8083656417 $545.8210/4/2018 113

RIGHTFAX SUPPORT/MAINTENANCE RENEWAL9000752054169128 $1,295.00 $1,295.00OPEN TEXT10/11/2018 173

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12890850169108 $115.06 $1,261.70BLAISDELL'S10/11/2018

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12892000 $48.2510/11/2018

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12893060 $27.3810/11/2018

1 STEEL VALUE BOARD12901160 $279.8510/11/2018

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12899400 $89.4310/11/2018

1 SIT/ STAND WORKSTATION12896600 $592.6410/11/2018 122

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12889920 $109.0910/11/2018

7 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1128905169113 $530.00 $1,175.00ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC10/11/2018

13 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1128710 $645.0010/11/2018

PEST CONTROL - BUGS IN BLDG 70/CONTROL CP BLDG645702169105 $125.00 $1,130.00A-PRO PEST CONTROL INC10/11/2018 170

SEPTEMBER PEST CONTROL644843 $1,005.0010/11/2018 170

MONTHLY AUTO PARTS STMT - SEPT 201820180930169126 $1,107.56 $1,107.56NAPA AUTO PARTS10/11/2018 122

Page 5 of 10183 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

17 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1127728169061 $315.00 $1,067.50ENTHALPY ANALYTICAL LLC10/4/2018 113

8 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1127399 $172.5010/4/2018 113

12 LAB SAMPLE ANALYSIS1127736 $580.0010/4/2018 113

1 HQ30 METER11138578169120 $1,014.63 $1,014.63HACH COMPANY10/11/2018 111

TRAVEL REIMB: LODGING, MILEAGE, TAXI - OPTIMUM CONFERENCE20181003169101 $1,002.23 $1,002.23SHARON WEST10/4/2018 136

REFUND # 213819856169047 $500.00 $1,000.00BEN FRANKLIN PLUMBING SOUTHBAY10/4/2018

REFUND # 213799655 $500.0010/4/2018

CONFERENCE ROOM TABLE ASSEMBLY AND DISPLOSAL29023169125 $950.00 $950.00MB CONTRACT FURNITURE INC10/11/2018 173

LAB SUPPLIES8083757257169137 $172.83 $878.21VWR INTERNATIONAL LLC10/11/2018

LAB SUPPLIES8083750728 $705.3810/11/2018

4200 OWOW FACT SHEETS201820169107 $877.32 $877.32BASMAA10/11/2018 144

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL54K136694169111 $17.22 $853.13CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 210/11/2018

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE54K136693 $214.0010/11/2018

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS54K136695 $621.9110/11/2018

PAINT & RELATED PAINT SUPPLIES21593171169054 $592.14 $830.33CARBOLINE COMPANY10/4/2018 170

2 GAL CARBOTHANE21593994 $238.1910/4/2018 170

Page 6 of 10184 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

SAFETY SHOES: D. LU820145447169081 $204.25 $803.08RED WING BUS ADVANTAGE ACCT10/4/2018 172

SAFETY SHOES: T. PORTEOUS820146210 $208.0010/4/2018 121

SAFETY SHOES: M. LOPEZ820145923 $204.2710/4/2018 121

SAFETY SHOES: B. GALLEGOS169151756 $186.5610/4/2018 111

MICROSOFT SURFACE BOOKS FOR PILOTPDG5235169056 $786.00 $786.00CDW GOVERNMENT LLC10/4/2018 173

ASTD LUMBER SUPPLIES542468169123 $728.07 $728.07HULBERT LUMBER SUPPLY10/11/2018 123

REFUND # 213939858169057 $200.00 $700.00CHARLES CHEN10/4/2018

REFUND # 213949858.1 $500.0010/4/2018

HOT WATER LOOP SERVICE71536169085 $687.46 $687.46ROCHESTER MIDLAND CORPORATION10/4/2018 170

8.08 TNS 1/2"HMA64-10R15 E (3615)1464950169065 $686.96 $686.96GRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY10/4/2018 120

OCT 2018 EAP PREMIUMS43315169059 $639.40 $639.40CLAREMONT BEHAVIORAL SERVICES10/4/2018

AUG 2018 SERVICE FEES2522136016169045 $635.99 $635.99BANK OF NEW YORK10/4/2018

TRAVEL REIMB: WASTE WATER GRADE 3 REVIEW CLASS20181009169115 $599.77 $599.77AUSTIN FARSAI10/11/2018

CONFINED SPACE & FALL PROTECTION TRAINING - LI, C10028169093 $575.00 $575.00TURNER RISK CONSULTING INC10/4/2018 132

SAFETY GLASSES - SEPULVEDA, E258877169080 $268.89 $555.34PRESTIGE LENS LAB10/4/2018 171

SAFETY GLASSES - SOTH, S.258823 $13.1710/4/2018 111

SAFETY GLASSES - GRABOWSKI, M258862 $273.2810/4/2018 171

CONTROL CABINET KEY W/PROFILES74512466169075 $106.42 $533.50MCMASTER SUPPLY INC10/4/2018 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS74292692 $427.0810/4/2018 170

Page 7 of 10185 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

REFUND # 213809808169086 $500.00 $500.00ROOTER HERO10/4/2018

TRAVEL REIMB: LODGING, PER DIEM - TRI-STATE SEMINAR20181002169084 $466.70 $466.70AARON ROBLES10/4/2018 144

ASTD ELECTRICAL SUPPLIES1866857004169090 $454.84 $454.84SAN LEANDRO ELECTRIC SUPPLY10/4/2018

REPLACE WINDSHIELD T13601818619645169088 $451.12 $451.12SAFELITE GLASS CORPORATION10/4/2018 122

ASTD DUST MOPS, WET MOPS & TERRY TOWEL54K135593169058 $17.22 $434.13CINTAS CORPORATION NO. 210/4/2018 122

UNIFORM LAUNDERING SERVICE54K135592 $214.0010/4/2018

UNIFORM LAUNDERING & RUGS54K135594 $202.9110/4/2018

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS376959001169044 $430.80 $430.80AUTO BODY TOOLMART10/4/2018

INTERNAL FLOAT ASSEMBLY FOR VENT-O-MATIC18048169043 $382.17 $382.17AQUADYNE ASSOCIATES10/4/2018

PER DIEM ADVANCE-SMRP CONF20181001169132 $378.00 $378.00LOUIS RIVERA III10/11/2018 170

1 BINDER12882731169049 $6.25 $376.44BLAISDELL'S10/4/2018 170

1 TONER12886860 $159.1310/4/2018 144

2 BX STAPLES12884240 $18.0910/4/2018 170

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12886850 $102.7510/4/2018 144

ASTD OFFICE SUPPLIES12879080 $73.3710/4/2018 141

6 BINDERS12882730 $16.8510/4/2018 170

ANNUAL SAFETY LIFT INSPECTION851169073 $370.00 $370.00MAKAI SOLUTIONS10/4/2018 122

SMARTLEVEL RENEWAL 11/2018 - 10/201911000169091 $364.00 $364.00SMARTCOVER SYSTEMS10/4/2018 120

EXP REIMB: PER DIEM, TRANSPORATION-TRI-STATE SEMINAR LAS VEGAS20180928169078 $330.96 $330.96VICTOR PADILLA10/4/2018 144

Page 8 of 10186 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

LEGAL SERVICES PRIMARY DIGESTER #2 REHAB9/12/2018169074 $269.50 $269.50MCINERNEY & DILLON, P.C.10/4/2018 143

TRAVEL REIMB: WEFTEC CONF PER DIEM & TAXI/SHUTTLE20181008169112 $266.66 $266.66MITCHELL COSTELLO10/11/2018

WEF MEMBERSHIP-R. PIPKIN20181003169100 $263.00 $263.00WEF-WATER ENVIRONMENT FEDERATI10/4/2018 111

PER DIEM ADVANCE - CA PAYROLL CONFERENCE20181009169134 $252.00 $252.00JAMIE ROJO10/11/2018 136

E911 CLOUD SERVICE6020296169139 $250.00 $250.00WEST SAFETY SERVICES INC10/11/2018 173

SERVICE 08/22/2018 TO 09/20/201885340220180921169089 $227.93 $227.93SAN FRANCISCO WATER DEPT10/4/2018 170

138 7-LB BAGS OF ICE484977195169118 $202.86 $202.86GLACIER ICE COMPANY INC10/11/2018 120

8 PVC UNIONS3M6428169067 $123.57 $200.98HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS10/4/2018

36 ASSORTED COUPLINGS3M6502 $77.4110/4/2018 170

1 COFFEE MAKER9896723351169119 $133.90 $133.90GRAINGER INC10/11/2018 170

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE - MONTHLY CHARGE MONITORING AGREEMENT124354169092 $133.33 $133.33TRI-SIGNAL INTEGRATION INC10/4/2018 122

ASTD METAL TUBING197923169127 $130.38 $130.38NAYLOR STEEL INC10/11/2018 122

1 EA SHEAVE & BUSHING24043596169076 $121.58 $121.58MOTION INDUSTRIES INC10/4/2018 170

IRIDIUM SVC FEE OCTOBER 201896700169082 $112.00 $112.00REMOTE SATELLITE SYSTEMS INT'L10/4/2018

EXP REIMB: 6 DAYS PARKING FOR WEF CONF - NEW ORLEANS20181009169122 $108.00 $108.00MIKE HOVEY10/11/2018 170

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS5800585169068 $100.87 $100.87HOSE & FITTINGS ETC10/4/2018 121

27 ASSESSOR MAPS1486169039 $81.00 $81.00ALAMEDA COUNTY TREASURER10/4/2018

ASTD PARTS & MATERIALS7014373423169041 $26.31 $78.96APPLIED INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIE10/4/2018 170

6 GOLDSPEC 01 341-O PACK7014373424 $52.6510/4/2018

Page 9 of 10187 of 188



Invoice No. Description Check AmtInvoice AmtDate Vendor

09/29/2018-10/12/2018

CHECK REGISTER

Check No.

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Dept

ENCHROACHMENT PERMIT FEE305077169117 $49.13 $49.13CITY OF FREMONT10/11/2018 123

BUSINESS CARDS:  J RODRIGUES270552169066 $38.68 $38.68HANIGAN COMPANY INC10/4/2018 120

ASTD LUMBER SUPPLIES542465169069 $25.07 $25.07HULBERT LUMBER SUPPLY10/4/2018 170

 11

 52

 0

 103

Credit Memos :

$0 - $1,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Over $100,000 :

Total:

Invoices:

 0

 166 

 227,967.60

 178,594.79

 30,465.01

Checks:

$10,000 - $100,000 :

Total:

Over $100,000 :

$1,000 - $10,000 :

$0 - $1,000 :

 437,027.40

 21,304.55

 110,910.80

 304,812.05

 437,027.40

 50

 38

 15

 103

Page 10 of 10188 of 188



Desk Item 
Item 14 

10/22/2018 

 

 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 

 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 

 
Karen W. Murphy 
Attorney 

 

DATE:  October 22, 2018 
 

MEMO TO:  Board of Directors ‐ Union Sanitary District 
 

FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
Laurie Brenner, Finance & Acquisition Services Coach 

 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 14 ‐ Meeting of October 22, 2018 

Consider Approval of Portfolio Management Services Contract 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board consider authorizing the General Manager to sign the 
Portfolio Management Services Contract with PFM Asset Management LLC. 

 

Background 
 

Staff issued an RFP for portfolio management services, including service options, costs, and 
estimated rates of return from professional investment firms specializing in the public sector. 
This strategy behind the RFP was to maximize investment returns to the extent practicable, 
while maintaining compliance with all policy, legal and regulatory requirements for 
government agency investments. 

 

All qualified respondents demonstrated the capability and experience necessary to provide 
investment portfolio management services to the District and could do so in a cost‐effective 
manner. 

 

Staff conducted interviews with the top scoring investment management firms and 
unanimously selected PFM Asset Management LLC (PFM). 

 
PFM offers the District a tenured and dedicated team with both investment and associated 
financial advisory capabilities. PFM has over 38 years of public sector experience and has been 
managing assets in California since 1989. Currently, PFM manages $128.7 billion in total assets, 



Desk Item 
Item 14 

10/22/2018 

with $18 billion of that in California. California Special Districts account for $4.3 billion of that 
total. 

 

Based on their qualifications and fee schedule, staff recommends that the Board authorize the 
General Manager to sign a contract with PFM that will be reviewed for continued suitability on 
an annual basis, including monitoring of key portfolio performance measures. 

 

High level summary information from the review of the RFP respondents is captured in the 
table below (rounded): 

 
 Estimated Return 

Rate 
Total Annual 
Costs/Fees 

Annualized $ based 
on ROR 

USD  2.78%  $0  $1,300,000 

RFP Respondent 
Ranges 

2.13‐2.80%  $52,000‐ $85,000*  $1,002,000‐1,320,000 

PFM  2.80%  $60,000‐ rounded up 
slightly 

$1,270,000 

* Table value updated for inclusive actuals after interviewing final respondents 
 

A majority of the Districts’ investments have begun, or will begin to mature in the near future. As 
they do, the current rate of return will decrease unless a new investment strategy is developed. 
To preserve, or improve upon this rate of return, staff is of the opinion that utilizing the services 
of a portfolio manager would be prudent. Staff feels that the benefits of engaging an external 
investment management firm far outweigh the costs, as indicated in the table above. 

 

As previously shared with the Board, benefits associated with engaging a professional 
investment management services firm include the following: 

 

 Focused knowledge and expertise in investment strategies and instruments 

 Improved budgeting capabilities; more predictable and sustainable revenue stream 
(returns) 

 Enables staff to develop knowledge without putting District assets at risk 

 Greater awareness of economic, market, and banking trends impacting District assets 

 More rapid response to and communication of pending or potential legal or regulatory 
changes on the horizon 

 Improved reporting capabilities for the Board (customization) 

 District does not relinquish ultimate authority over investments 
 

Attachment: 
PFM Investment Management/Advisory Services Presentation (dated 10/4/18) 


	1 10222018_Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	7. Oral Communications.
	Motion 8. Consider Resolutions for the Application for Clean Water State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance for the Primary Digester No. 7 Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 9. Consider Resolutions for the Application for Clean Water State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance for the Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 10. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Contract Change Order No. 9 with Monterey Mechanical Company for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 11. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 2 to Task Order No. 2 with Carollo Engineers for the Primary Digester No. 3 Rehabilitation Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 12. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 6 with West Yost Associates for the Force Main Corrosion Repairs Project, Phase 3 (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 13. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 2 with Woodard & Curran, Inc. for the Headworks Screen No. 3 Project (to be reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee).
	Motion 14. Consider Approval of Portfolio Management Services Contract (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 15. Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 16. Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Meeting of September 20, 2018.
	Information 17. Board Member Expenses, First Quarter FY19 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	Information 18. Check Register.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	22. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to a Special Meeting in the Alvarado Conference Room on Tuesday, October 23, 2018, at 6:00 p.m.
	23. Adjournment – The Board will then adjourn to a Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, November 12, 2018, at 7:00 p.m.

	2 10222018 BOD Mtg Cmte Ags
	10172018 Budget and Finance Cmte Ag
	10182018 EIT Cmte Ag
	10192018 Legal Comm Affairs Cmte Ag

	4 10082018 Regular Meeting Minutes
	This item was reviewed by the Engineering and Information Technology Committee.  Technical Services Manager Ghossain provided a summary of changes to the Headworks Screen No. 3 and Primary Digester No. 7 Projects detailed in the Board meeting packet.

	5.1 September 2018 Monthly Ops Summary
	5.2 September 2018 Odor Report
	5.3 Odor Report Map Septembet 2018
	5.4 BS Monthly Ops
	1. Hours Worked
	Charts091918
	Report091918

	2. Budget & finance Report
	Dist Summary

	3. Revenues & Expenses
	4. Business Services Group Activities Report
	5. Portfolio Holdings Charts
	6. Portfolio Holdings Report
	7. Portfolio Activity Report
	8. Retiree Medical Fund Report
	9. Retiree Medical Fund CalPERS Report

	5.5 TS09-2018_MOR.Sep
	Construction Projects
	Fremont and Paseo Padre LS Improvement – Derek
	Chemical Tanks and Piping Replacement Project – Thomas
	Sludge Degritter System Project – Kevin
	Newark Pump Station Wet Well Improvements – Thomas
	Design/Study Projects
	Plant Solids System/Capacity Assessment Phase 2 – Curtis
	Local Limits Study – Raymond
	Cathodic Protection System Project – Thomas
	Newark Basin Masterplan – Andrew
	Standby Power Generation System Upgrade Project – Raymond/Kevin
	Force Main Condition Assessment – Andrew
	Emergency Outfall Improvements Project – Andrew 
	Primary Digester No. 7 Project – Curtis
	Plant Master Plan – Raymond/Curtis
	Effluent Management Study – Curtis
	Odor Control Alternatives Study – Kevin
	Plant Condition Assessment Study – Kevin
	Headworks Screen No. 3 Project – Thomas
	Alvarado Influent Pump Station Improvements Project – Thomas

	5.6 CS September 2018 Ops Rpt
	5.7 MonthlyOps_Sept
	5.8 _TD_Ops_Sep_2018
	8.SRFDigester7Rev1
	01 181022_Agenda-Digester7_SRF_Final
	02 Resolutions-Digester7_SRF_Final

	9.SRFStandbyPower
	181022_Agenda-Standby_SRF_Final
	Resolutions-Standby_Final

	10.CO9MontereyMechanical
	01 Agenda-Dig 3MMC_Draft
	The District has six primary and two secondary digesters at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant that require periodic cleaning to remove accumulated debris and to maintain treatment capacity.  Primary Digester No. 3 was originally constructed in 1...

	02 800-493 Contract Change Order 09_Draft
	Item: Sludge Mixing Pipelines Replacement

	03 Dig 3 - Table 1 CO Summary

	11.Am2TO2Carollo
	01 Agenda-Dig3_v2
	The District has six primary and two secondary digesters at the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant that require periodic cleaning to remove accumulated debris and to maintain treatment capacity.  Primary Digester No. 3 was originally constructed in 1...

	02 Prim Digester 3 Rehab - ESDC USD TO2 Amend 2
	1.   PURPOSE
	2.   SCOPE OF SERVICES
	TASK 1.0 – SUBMITTAL REVIEW
	TASK 2.0 – REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
	TASK 4.0 – Informal requests for information
	Task 6.0 – Periodic Site visits
	Task 9.0 – Project Management
	3.   DELIVERABLES
	4.   PROJECT COORDINATION
	5.   PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER
	6.   TIME OF COMPLETION
	7.  KEY PERSONNEL

	03 Digester 3 Rehab - USD - ESDC TO2  Amend 2 Budget

	12.TO6WestYost
	01 Bd_WY_TO6 (Final)
	02 Figure1_85x11
	02 Figure2_85x11
	03 FIG34567_PHOTOS_resized
	04 TO6_FMCR PH 3 Design_Draft
	05 Exhibit A - 2018 Rates
	06 Exhibit B - Design_Fee Estimate

	13.AM1TO2WoodardCurran
	01 BD_WC_TO2 Amend No.1_Final
	02 Figures
	03 Amend_TO2_Headworks_Screen_Final
	04 Amend1_TO2_Headworks_Screen_Exhibit A
	05 Amend1_TO2_Headworks Screen_Exhibit B

	14 PFM Contract Motion Item for 10-22-18 BOD
	Portfolio Investment Management Services Contract -Board Action Item -Final
	PFM Presentation
	Union Sanitary District�Investment Management/Advisory Services��October 4, 2018
	Introduction to USD’s Team
	Slide Number 3
	What We Do
	PFM is a Market Leader
	Asset Management Services
	Scope of Asset Management Services
	PFM’s Vision for Investment Program Success 
	Depth of Resources Supporting PFM Clients 
	Team of Specialists in California Government Code Sectors
	Slide Number 11
	Identifying Investable Assets With The District’s Cash Flow Analysis
	Core Portfolio
	Investment Policy Overview
	Supranationals
	Mortgage Backed Securities
	Evaluating Permitted Sectors
	Evaluation of Sector Spreads
	Improving Return to Positively Impact Budgeting Process and Outcome
	How Does the District Maintain Control with Discretionary Management?
	PFM’s Enhanced Approach to Credit
	Portfolio Decisions Informed by Research and Analysis
	PFM’s Role in the Flow of Funds
	Portfolio Compliance and Trade Execution Efficiency
	Daily Compliance Monitoring
	PFM’s Scale Provides Greater Access in a Competitive Market �
	PFM’s Competitive Bidding Process Creates Real Savings
	Flow of Information Supporting the District’s Needs 
	PFM Communicates Educational Opportunities and Content Regularly  
	Financial Advisory Services
	Scope of Financial Advisory Services
	PFM’s Specialized Experience with California Wastewater Finance Issues
	Financing the District’s Capital Improvement Program
	Current Market Themes
	Developments with the CA Clean Water State Revolving Fund
	Slide Number 36
	Appendix
	Fee Schedule
	Total Proposed Fees
	Fee Calculation Basis
	Financial Advisory Fees
	Slide Number 42
	Mortgage Backed Securities
	Fixed Income Sector Returns (1-5 Year Indices)
	Short-Term Credit Spreads Have Tightened
	Potential Yield Benefit from Supranationals
	Fixed Income Investment Strategy Committee
	Non-Discretionary Trade Communication and Approval Process
	Portfolio Reconciliation
	Accounting Tool to Simplify General Ledger Entries
	Key Features of PFM’s Client Reporting Website
	Client Communication and Education
	Composite Characteristics
	Disclosures


	15 FY 2019 Q1 Cal-Card Quarterly Merchant Activity Report
	16 EBDA Meeting of September 20
	17 Board Expenses, 1st Qtr, FY19
	18 Bd Ck Reg Rpt10122018



